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CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... Okay, we’re going to start the Budget Committee meeting of
Budget and Finance. This is the 21st of April. We are entering crunch time, Members.
This morning present for the Committee is Mr. Carroll.
..

.

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, sir. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well good morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, Members. We excused Ms. Baisa, Mr. White, Mr. Guzman,
Mr. Victorino. I believe, Chair White, Mr. Victorino, and Ms. Balsa has left for Oahu to
continue our fight on TAT, I believe, and other legislation that may impact this County
and its ability to what we consider in the upcoming budget. We will take testimony at
this time, Members, before we move into our continued review. We provide all people
requesting testimony to have three minutes, three minutes only. State your name,
your organization, if you do represent such, come forward to the podium. We will
-2-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2016

assist you with your time. At the two-minute-thirty mark, a yellow light will go on,
and at the three-minute mark, like the intersection, you will stop on the red light.
With that, we would ask Mr. Pat Borge to come forward, please, and share his
thoughts with us regarding the proposed budget.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ho, you look paliki this morning, Pat.
MR. BORGE: Good morning, Mr. Chair.
good morning

I figure I look good for the Budget.

But anyway,

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. BORGE: --Councilmembers, Mr. Chair. I’m here to... I noticed that the Tom Morrow
Equestrian Center Arena they came forward to ask for more money to redo, to remove
the sand and whatever, cost $42,000. And also do a trail, gonna cost, what was it,
$23,000. But I wanna remind the Council that in 2001, they were given $175,000. In
2002, they were given $75,000. So, you talking, $250,000. Now, as I look at this
arena, and I said it from my last testimony, that there’s no way that there was
$250,000 put into this arena. Most of the work was done by volunteer work. I talked
to a friend of mine who worked on this arena. He’s from the Big Island, Hawaii. He
moved from Maui to the Big Island, and I asked him, I said where did the kiawe trees
come from, the posts? He said I cut all those trees down in Kihei, and I never got paid
for it. So, that’s the kind of things that my friends.. .I’m here speaking for a lot of
people that talk to me about this arena. The thing about this arena is it’s in a bad
location, you know, sorry, but it’s in a bad location. If you look at the playground
equipment right now, I think, they got yellow tape around the playground equipment
because it’s unsafe because of the weather, you know, maintenance on this
playground equipment.
So, I cannot see the County putting more money into
something that it’s not gonna work. I don’t care what they do with that sand it’s a
bad, bad location. It’s a bad investment. You gonna put good money to bad money.
And you guys can spend that money somewhere else that’s more needy. I’d like to see,
my opinion is, I’d like to see the County come up to the plate and make an equestrian
center for everybody to use, for all disciplines, not just... this arena is run like a private
club. I no care what anybody tells me. You have so much rules and fees, like I said
before in my last testimony, when I go to the baseball park I don’t call somebody to go
get a key, and say I’m gonna go throw balls. A County facility don’t work like that. At
Panaewa on the Big Island, Hawaii, they have a beautiful arena. They have four
arenas that run by the County. And that’s the kind of thing that we need here, you
know, and right now if you people approve this money you putting it in a hole. It’s not
gonna make a difference because if this was a community-based arena, especially the
trail, the community will get involved and make the trail. As simple as that, but it’s
not.
It’s a private club and that’s why they don’t have the support from the
community. And I can tell you that right now they don’t have full support of the
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community. Thank you very much for your time and that’s what I have to say. Thank
you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Borge. Any questions for the gentleman on the testimony
provided? Thank you, again, for being here this morning, Pat.
MR. BORGE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there anyone wishing to provide testimony before the Committee this
morning in the Chambers? Having none, we shall go to our District Offices and ask
Ms. Lono in the Hana Office, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office and there is no one
waiting to testif~r.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Lanai, Ms. Fernandez, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: Good morning, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai and there is no
one waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. On Molokai, Ms. Alcon, anyone wishing to provide testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, ladies. Members, with no further request for
testimony, testimony shall be closed for today’s meeting, with no objections.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members. So ordered.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 16-29)

CHAIR HOKAMA: A few things, Members. We are gonna go through the CIP requests of
various departments this morning. So, if you need to now is the time to get any
charts.
We do have the second quarter CIP status report of the... from the
departments dated as of December 31, 2015. We are gonna have Mr. Baz give us
some opening comments regarding CIP, but we need to complete this review,
Members, today of all CIP requests. For the departments that are coming forward, I
will be asking for specifics. If you say things like related items or something generic,
you’re gonna have to provide us with better language or your project will not be
considered for the Budget. Again, we are finding.. .we either.. .we’re going.. .your Chair
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is either intending to follow the Big Island or City and County of Honolulu how they
attach their CIP to the budget document. So, it’s part of their ordinance proposal.
Okay. They wanna make changes to the project, they’re gonna need to have it
amended. Okay. We are gonna to take our advice as provided through Corp. Counsel
and the Auditor, and we are gonna strengthen what we expect. So, it’s basically what
is presented to us is what we expect them to do. Not tell us what they wanna do, we
give ‘em the money and they do something else. That will end with this adjusted
budget format from us. As your Chair stated earlier, your Chair is gonna ask you to
consider couple of things. If you have thoughts about provisos or others, please start
thinking of the language, or the project, or the item, you would like to have us
consider. We would ask for your recommendations of the language of how you would
like it structured. The Chair is open to language for projects, things in the larger pot
of funding for program areas, positions.
The Chair is open to your language
proposals. The Chair earlier, couple weeks ago, told you that the mark at that point in
time was a cut of 42 million. That’s the low end for your Chair now. I’m looking at
46 million to cut. And, again, the Chair understands, you also heard it, there is a lot
of request of need out there. I’m not making judgment on its importance, but the
Chair knows we only have so much fiscal financial resources. And we’re not... the
Chair is not gonna ask for higher fees and rates than what we believe is appropriate
for this time of our community’s economy. So, please, listen to the projects carefully
because this is one area I expect you to make recommendations on projects that can
wait. With that, Mr. Baz, opening comments.
MR. BAZ: Sure. Good morning, Mr. Chair. So, today’s agenda we’re gonna be discussing
CIP for departments that are smaller that we haven’t discussed already. We’re going
to be starting off with Department of Finance, and in the Department of Finance, that
includes the Countywide equipment bond that we are requesting. So, we have the
departments related to those requests here to answer your questions. And then we
will get into the Department of Fire and Public Safety’s budget, Department of Police’s
budget. The Department of Housing and Human Concerns has one project, and
Department of Transportation, and then well finish tonight with, or I guess, this
afternoon with the Department of Management. You have a meeting tonight so, I
know, we try to get everything completed on our agenda today, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Members, the report that the Chair has referred to is
MD-i, BF-i. It’s a legal size document. It lists by funds, by districts, the various
CIPs, the amounts, status, what is encumbered, what has been expended, what has
not moved forward, so that you can use as one of your references.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE
MR. BAZ: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair. So, Page 769, has the first project of the Department
of Finance and that is the, for our DMV Satellite Office upgrades. We do have our
Deputy Director of Finance, Mr. Mark Walker, as well as our Division of Motor Vehicle
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Licensing Manager, Mr. Lito Vila. And we can answer any questions you might have
or if they have any opening comments, Mark.
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Sandy. Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. WALKER: Good morning, Mark Walker, Deputy Director of Finance. Good morning,
Committee members. Just as a refresher, in 2014, we were allocated $100,000 to do
an upgrade of the Kihei Satellite Office. We went out for an RFP. We had spent about
$15,000 or $16,000 on consultants and architects. We had plans drawn. We went
out for RFP. The number came in over $300,000. That obviously didn’t go over. We
let that money lapse. We’ve gone back to the drawing board, worked closely with the
Managing Director’s Office, and a CIP Project Manager there, scaled down the work we
wanted to do in Kihei. And as you can see, for the Kihei Office now, we’re talking
about $68,500. Additionally, we’re asking for.. .what we’re doing is expanding really
the wait area for our customers. And with that, we’re gonna need some additional
furniture, totaling about $19,500. Further to that expansion, we are proposing an
upgrade to the security systems on Molokai and in Hana. This is to be in compliance
with our Real ID Program. And also asking that for some Plexiglas for the safety of our
staff to be installed in Kihei and Lahaina as well. So, our total request this year is
$137,200. As the Budget Director mentioned, I have Mr. Vila here with me who can
answer any real specific questions you have on any of the items we are requesting.
Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Walker. Mr. Vila, good morning. Anything you’d like to
share in the comments?
MR. VILA: Good morning, Mr. Chair. Thank you. Not at this time. I’m here to answer any
questions that Council may have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Vila.
resource people?

Mr. Couch, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Vila, for providing us
with this schematic, so... or blueprints. It looks like you’re going to go from five clerks
to six in the general section. And then, I guess, you’re gonna remove one, two, three,
four nonstructural walls, three, and then put a door into the room next door. Is that
what’s the major setup?
MR. VILA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Vila?
MR. VILA: Let’s see, as far as the structure is concerned the wall to the left, the three
separating walls between the two sections, those will remain.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. VILA: In the last go-round removing that wall was very excessive because of the
construction and the rebuild. So, our proposal is to cut a doorway into that to provide
access and relocate the.. .if you look at the 8’/2 x 11 that’s the current layout, remove
the very small inadequate storage area and relocate it onto the other side. Thus,
opening up the entire area
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. VILA: --for a customer flow, and the customer waiting area it’s basically doubled and we
have opened up the access into the courtyard area that’s waiting. Part of our project
this year is to upgrade our queuing system. We are planning to put a display unit
above that center door there facing into the courtyard so customers may elect to wait
outside ‘cause even though we’ve upgraded our customer seating area from, I think,
17 to about 30 to 34, a lot of times there are like 40-45 customers waiting at the Kihei
Office because it is the busiest. And what happens now is whenever the customer
waiting count exceeds people are standing throughout the area, and into the
courtyard, and it’s very, very constraining. And we’ve also partitioned out a better
written test area. Those are to the bottom of the new proposed layout, six tables.
We’re proposing to eventually wire that for computerized testing. That is probably
gonna be coming down shortly. And the camera is actually right by the bottom, the
driver license production camera, by that access control gate. With the Real ID
requirements we need to partition out and provide access control from the customer
contact area into the areas where our work areas are and the private.., the personally
identifiable information are kept. And so, we are expanding a little bit more. We do
find that since Kihei is the busiest, with this project, I’d like to put, even though I have
not asked for an additional position for Kihei. With this project, as with Lahaina, I
would like to build in the additional capacity in the event we need to do it. For
example, this go-round when we’ve had to close the Service Center, we don’t have any
more capacity at the satellite offices. So, there’s no way to expand. So that additional
position is just going forward looking at a possible expansion. And when you look at
this layout too even in the future should the communities continue to grow, and the
demand, we can easily relocate that access control gate on the bottom, move it further
back, and put in possibly additional counters if need be, but it’s not here. And this
layout will provide easy upgrade into that type of setup and opening up the back area
with an exit door. There is that pad in the back for other possibilities in the future.
So that’s the best plan we could have, and as Mr. Walker had said, we had consulted
with our CIP Coordinator for their best estimate as far as the costs and the component
cost to come up with our request.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Thank you.

Okay.

Thank you, Chair.

It’s much needed, much needed.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Carroll, any questions? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Vila, the cameras you’re requesting, is this going to be the
standard camera that we would use for other County facilities and offices?
MR. VILA: Yes, Mr. Chair. Each of my other offices are already equipped with cameras and
that is actually part of our security gap analysis in evaluating each office. I’m glad to
say that the Lanai Office with the security cameras we have in place has been
approved by the Real ID team as being compliant as far as the facility. I have
submitted the Molokai Office and with drawing in with the plan of requesting for these
additional security camera and security system to be installed. And they have given
me tentative approval pending, you know, the approval and installation of this. My
next step will be Hana. I am prepared.. .in looking at the gap analysis, security gap
analysis for that office, it is missing these components. And I’m pretty confident that
once I write it up with these components in place that that one-person facility, and the
two-person facility in Molokai, will remain compliant so that the goal of being able to
issue Real ID compliant credentials out of those offices will remain.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Happy to hear that, Mr. Vila. Your request also includes any software
monitoring requirements for your camera installation and operations?
MR. VILA: Yes, Mr. Chair. The camera system should be tied in to our Countywide system.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is this all in coordination with MIS and Mr. Verkerke?
MR. VILA: Yes, I have sent them requests. They’ve looked at it. We have, I believe, the
proper infrastructure. The security.. .the contact and the access security system is not
really involving IT. It involves the security vendor, we’ll be going out for bids, but that
price quote, I believe, is commensurate with the number of contacts, one or two
sensors, glass breaks for their office, and it should suffice.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Vila. Mr. Guzman, we’re on the first project,
Department of Finance, DMV Satellite Offices, request of 137,200.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Would you have any questions you may want to pose at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I don’t have any questions at this time. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Guzman. Mr. Carroll, any other questions, they
talked about Hana, Molokai, Lanai? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, next project.
MR. WALKER: Thank you, Chair and Committee.
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The next project that’s actually housed in the Department
of Finance more for our ability to manage it because it’s equipment purchases
throughout our County. It’s on Page 768. We’re requesting $6,250,000 for the
purchase of large costly long-life equipment, in ‘16, excuse me, ‘17. And we are...we’ll
start off with the Department of Environmental Management, if we could have them
come down.
These are in Solid Waste Operations Program, so we’ll have
Mr. Stewart Stant, our Director, come down. And we also have staff here if there’s any
resources that you need. They should have transmitted with the equipment, pictures,
and the maintenance logs, and all that kind of stuff for some of this equipment that’s
being replaced. So, we can go into those, Mr. Chair, and that information should be
available in your files.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Baz. Gentlemen, welcome. Director, any comments
regarding the request of equipment?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, sorry, I should have, before we actually get started in this described a
little bit about why we’re doing this. The bond issuances versus cash purchases or
leasing
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, go ahead.
MR. BAZ: --of equipment. In our... the project sheet there it does have a justification. I kind
of put together an analysis of, you know, why we’re looking at these large, costly,
long-life equipment purchases through bond issuance. And generally bonds, general
obligation bonds, have a lower interest rate than municipal leases. Municipal leases
range 2.5 to 3 percent or so of financing costs. And our bond last issuance was
2.08 percent. We do... actually for the, and related to that, the bond term that we do
for the equipment is only 10 years. So, when we issue general obligation bonds for
capital projects we issue them with a 20-year maturity. For the equipment bonds, we
did a special series, which had a 10-year maturity to make sure that we’re not paying
financing costs for this equipment beyond its useful life. And all of these equipments
have a useful life of at least 10 years. So that’s one of the considerations of that. It
also, you know, guarantees fixed payments for that 10-year life cycle of that
equipment and there’s no pay off at the end term of the lease. So, we have, you know,
looked at some municipal leasing options, and for this type of equipment, and this
large costly equipment it’s actually cheaper for us to do general obligation bonds. So
before we get started I just wanted to mention that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: And, again, Director, we appreciate your approach to fiscal discipline and
we thank you. So what kind interest would we be looking at for a ten-year bond?
MR. BAZ: Ten years run, I think, the last issuance, if I remember right, the 10 years were
about at 1.75 or so. It was under 2 percent.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Very good, Mr. Baz, thank you. I would say your Chair agrees with
Mr. Baz in general. My problem is the bids when it comes in. We tend to get very... I’m
just amazed the so-called overhead that I feel we get assessed that our sister counties
don’t get for certain equipments. I mean, you all can make the calls to sister counties
here in the State and others in the 48, and you’ll be amazed the range of prices
counties pay for the same piece of equipment. So, I would say that the departments
need to make sure the specs is accurate, it’s sufficient, it’s not excessive, and there is
no bling on it. With that, Director Stant, please give us your comments regarding your
Department’s request.
MR. STANT: Good morning, Mr. Chair, and thank you, Councilmembers, for having us here,
our Department here this morning. Being that these FY ‘17 requests for equipment is
all from our Solid Waste Division, I have with me the Division Chief here for discussion
and questions about the equipment. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director. Mr. Ratte?
MR. RATTE: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, Councilmembers. Yes, before you today we will
be able to answer questions for the equipment that we have for FY ‘17. We have 6
pieces of equipment totaling about 2.8 million in total. It should be known that all of
this equipment that we’re requesting is all replacement equipment. There is no
expansion equipment that we’re asking for this year. And this is all for our asset
replacement plans. So, we go out to about 20, 30, in fact, where we show what our
replacement for all our heavy rolling equipment is. So, this is commensurate with our
asset replacement plan in general. What we have is most of this equipment is in our
operations and it is in the landfills and our refuse collection. First item there is, we
have two 28-cubic-yard automated refuse trucks, about $900,000, that’s 450,000
each. We have 2 17-cubic-yard rear loaders with lifters. One landfill waste compactor
for Central Maui Landfill, 780,000. And a 20-yard automated refuse truck for 400,000
and that’s for the Lanai Landfill. Happy to go into more detail, but we can start from
there, and if there’s any specific questions you have, or, Chair, if you want me to go
through the handouts that we gave, I think, to Council previously, we’re happy to do
that as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Ratte. Mr. Carroll, questions on the equipment
request from Environmental Management?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I’m kinda sifting through these black and white photos of all
the equipment you guys are asking and reading the specs and the reasoning for these
requests. I think, it’s your actual equipment expansion budget request forms that you
officially give. And, I guess, it’s one of those be careful what we wish for, Chair, ‘cause
my office printed and look at this binder of all the equipment that’s being asked of.
So, you have an easier version, Mr. Ratte?
MR. RATTE: I don’t believe so. What we have is the one-page legal size that shows the
justification of the request and the outcomes and impacts and the agency goals that
are connected to that. Is that the forms that you have?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Ms. Cochran, no, in that response, it’s about the 28th page down, you get to
the equipment expansion budget request sheet that the Department of, or my office,
requests from the departments.
And so, that’s their justification.
That starts
off.. .you’ll see Priority 2 of 14, and then it’s got the refuse truck in there. Did you find
that?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, yeah, I have it. I guess, just the format. He’s got a
really nice long spreadsheet like Mr. White likes. But it’s okay. The information is
here, just gotta sift through more pages for it.
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thanks, Mr. Chair. I, too, have some concerns about,
you know, the bids that we’re getting. Are we actually getting bids on these, for
instance, your trucks at 450K each?
MR. RATI’E: Yes, certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You put it out as RFP and that’s the price you getting back or
you’re just estimating right now?
MR. RATTE: When we get these prices we’re actually going through various manufacturers
to get rough pricing and then we add to that inflation by the time this goes to out to
bid. So, the prices that we have are as close as we can get at this point in time. But it
goes out to formal bid, not actual proposal, but it goes to formal bid process.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
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MR. RATTE: Excuse me, Mr. Couch, also and we do normally get multiple bidders for this.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, yeah, your three, you have to do the three bids.
thank you.

Okay,

MR. BAZ: Yeah, just to clarify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: This isn’t where we’re just getting three quotes and getting three bids and then
choosing one of them. This is a public procurement process where bidders will bid on
it and so we do get. We can get one. We can get three. We can ten bidders, just
depends on the type of equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Thank for being here. Are the automated refuse
truck are actually replacements or expansions?
MR. RATT’E: Yes, all the equipment we asked for this year are all replacements only.
expansions.

No

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. So, as far as the rear loaders where are we going
to be using that? Is it Central?
MR. RATTE: The two rear loaders, the 17-yard, cubic yard rear loaders with lifters, one of
those is Upcountry, in Makawao area, and Upcountry area, and the other one is in
Central area. So Central includes Wailuku and Kihei and Paia, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you for being here, Mr. White. Any questions on this
bond request for equipment?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not at this time. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sorry for being tardy.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
TAT.

No, we thought you were maybe on Oahu representing our interest on

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, we have two others there and hopefully they’ll be able to take care
of business.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Thank you for being here. Mr. Guzman, any questions, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Actually none, Chair, but, I guess, I could ask you later. I
was curious about the phrase that you mentioned earlier about the overhead on that.
So, I’ll talk to you about it later.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Baz, we heard your comments and that’s why I’m
asking you this question now about the ten-year bond. We get it, useful life, life cycles
we get. So in this Division’s request, we have one, two, three, four, five, where the
Division projects useful life under ten years, five to seven. So since your comments
about why we wouldn’t look at one 20-year bond, how do you justify the 10-year bond
for equipment that is 5 to 7 years of life?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, they estimate that but...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean, we just working off what

--

MR. BAZ: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --they providing us.
MR. BAZ: Yeah. Their... and maybe Mr. Ratte can explain. But that is the industry
standard, but they typically keep them over ten years. Very rarely unless they have,
you know, major either accidents or equipment damage do they not last ten years.
That’s a very rare occasion. If you look at the majority of the equipment they’re
replacing only one of them is younger than ten years old.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what is the problem with that equipment, Department? Is it a
maintenance issue? Did we just have bad luck and we got one lemon out of the line
up? I mean...
MR. RATTE: Not at all, Mr. Chair. I think, to clarify when we’re asking for the replacement it
may be at the eight year interval, eight-and-a-half years, give or take, depending on
the equipment asset inspections we do every year. But by the time it actually gets
spec’d out, manufactured, and delivered, and commissioned, we are definitely, as
Mr. Baz had mentioned, closer to the ten and even 10’/2- 11 years, probably on average
there. So he is correct, but we do have to project for the future and look at the
condition of equipment and, I think, the ten years is on average.
MR. BAZ: And, Mr. Chair, that specific one they had issues with the robotic arm and
packing system and it’s costing.. .it would cost $57,000 just to replace that on a piece
of equipment that’s already halfway done with its life.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So this equipment request to this Committee, Director or Mr. Ratte, is this
in line with the agreement the Administration made with Anaergia and how we are
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supposed to eventually reduce additional costs?
costs for us?

Is this part of the plan to reduce

MR. RATTE: Yes, certainly. In general, the refuse collection to start with would still be the
responsibility of the County, so all the equipment that’s in our collections operations
certainly would be commensurate there. And as far as the landfill based our landfills
aren’t going to close down. We’re still gonna be having percentages of waste that we
have to landfill at all of our sites and facilities. So this is a matter of just standard
replacement from our asset management program. So, we don’t see any significant
impacts for what we’re asking for this year with Anaergia.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You see impacts in the near future years?
MR. RATTE: No, we do not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that your... okay, so, you’ve already made your projections for the next
few years?
MR. RATTE: I think that there’s some unknowns as to what the details of those impacts
would be. However, we do know that our landfills will still be operating, so if our
equipment is reaching the end of its useful life or is at that we definitely need to
replace that to be proactive and to provide the continuing services to the community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Does this take into account your eventual responsibility of the closure of
the C&D Landfill in Maalaea?
MR. RATTE: Yes, it does as well as there’s additional impacts with the C&D which can be
addressed in the short-term with potential premium pay if we have massive amounts
of C&D that comes in, you know, from a big project. I think, we discussed that
previously, so I don’t want to belabor that issue, but we definitely have a plan to
address that, and we’re prepared for that. It should be noted maybe this is a good
time to mention it, Chair, that just in the last couple of weeks we got an update from
the Department of Health regarding the C&D closure. And, I know, we will respond to
it in detail. I think, it’s in BF-8, I believe, that we just received yesterday. But there
will be a reduced request for our C&D items and we will produce that at that time. It
will reduce our budget request by about 360,000 because right now the projection
from the Department of Health is at the end of August, 2016. So, we will update.
There’s about 8 or 10 items that we’ll give this Committee to reduce 360,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank you for your good efforts.
Members, questions, before we move? Mr. White?

We appreciate that very much.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Mr. Baz, you mentioned that one of the automated trucks
it would cost 57... did you say 57,000 to replace the automated arm? Did I hear that
correctly?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, in the Department’s response that’s what it mentions. Yeah.
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. For the Department, how many backup trucks do you have now
for either rear loading or the automated type?
MR. RATTE: Thank you, Mr. White. I don’t have the exact numbers back up from each
baseyard. We do only have one or two per type manual and automated. Those do get
utilized at all the different baseyards as well. So, if we have equipment down they
could be used Upcountry, Central, or Lahaina. Sometimes we get into challenges
when there’s multiple pieces of equipment that go down all at once, and even if it’s a
minor repair, if the part is not available we do our best to make sure that it is, and
Highways supports us in that greatly. However, there are times that are unforeseen
and that does lead to delayed routes that are picked up the next day and some
premium pay. I certainly can get the exact quantity if you wish of
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, if you wouldn’t mind

--

MR. RATTE: --spares.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --because I’m assuming that this one that would require a $57,000
repair you would want to go ahead with the repair anyway so that you would have it
as backup.
MR. RATTE: Yeah, I probably could add a little more detail on that one. Which automated
truck were we referring to?
MR. BAZ: This is the Wailuku refuse, No. 1531.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
I think, what would be helpful for the Committee is to have a
statement from you all as to how many you need to have available on a given day, or
on a daily basis, and then how many extras that provides you. ‘Cause, I think, we all
realize you gotta have backups and if it’s gonna cost only 57,000 to get one back into
operable service then I’m assuming you’re gonna go ahead and do that repair anyway.
And I don’t need that number now. If you can get back to us on it that would be good.
Thank you, Chair. Oh, and the other question I had for Mr. Baz was what was, what
is the interest rate on an equipment bond?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, so, Mr. Char, the bond itself is the regular municipal bond, a general
obligation bond, that we issue with a 10-year maturity. And so, it’s a little less than
2 percent is what we’re looking at.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so it’s a similar rate?
MR. BAZ: Yeah, it’s shorter. It’s smaller because it’s a shorter maturity than our regular
20-year maturity, but being conservative and saying it’s going to be just only a little
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under 2 percent. I have to go back and check, I think, our 10-year maturity ones were
like 1.2 or 1.3, something like that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. That was it. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, questions on the equipment? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. So, is that safe what Mr. White was
talking about in regards to doing the work on existing equipment and keeping ‘em as
backups? Is that going to occur with all these equipment?
MR. RATTE: Yes, very good question. What we look at is the amount of repairs that are
necessary versus the actual value of the equipment at that time. So, if we’re looking a
year and a half, maybe even close to two years, from what we request today by the
time that equipment gets here we will do another assessment at that time. Normally,
we found in large part that the equipment has reached the end of its useful life and it
may not be worthwhile to spend that kind of money. In addition to the 57, and I’m
looking at the item now, there are quite a few other areas that would need
repair/replacement, not just mechanically, but from the body and some electrical as
well. So, yeah, we will take a look at it, but it is a replacement piece in general. So
normally we auction off the equipment at that point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, so, auction is an option and we obviously get monies
and put back into your program. Okay. Alright, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. You folks have opportunity to... I~ll say how plantation did it,
you cannibalize your old equipment for parts, for repair and maintenance
requirements of workable equipment?
MR. RATTE: I’m sorry, Mr. Chair, can you say that one more time, please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you cannibalize nonworking equipment for parts, other requirements
for operational working equipment?
MR. RATTE: Yes, we do, certainly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I think, that’s a good practice, as long as you write it off, keep it on
your books straight because, yeah, we don’t need vehicle that actually doesn’t exist
because you’ve already dismantled it for repairs. Members, any other questions... oh
there is one advantage to the bond. I will say the bond can front costs for the
divisions, but like with this Division special funds will be able to pay back the bond
and not general funds. That’s an advantage of a sort for us to consider the bond
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request, Members, and might help Mr. Baz to work his cash flow.
questions on this request?

Okay, any other

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Looking at this.. .the equipment details, I guess, on the
request it looks like you have really, really itemized service accounts on vans, SUVs,
things of that nature, but then the heavy equipment stuff I only see what you’re
requesting and then some picture. And, for me, I mean, I’m taking it for granted that
yes that is the piece of equipment ‘cause there’s no correlating sticker, ID number on
that vehicle, into what they’re asking for, and things of that nature. It’s a compactor
and a loader. I can see it’s a compactor or loader, so. But there’s no other detailed
account on that equipment, what kind of services? What’s their past history of
services? What broke down on it? Who did the job? So, I don’t see any of that. So
why is that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. RATTE: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Councilmember. I believe, I
don’t have it in front of me, but BD-5 should have records of... we certainly can provide
that. I had assumed it was in there, but we certainly have maintenance records from
our asset management for each piece of equipment that we have there, so.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, all right, I don’t care for more paper, but it was just
interesting, Chair, that I can see it’s almost like, you know, Valley Isle Motors could
print out all the work they’ve done. And here it is but then for some reason it didn’t
correlate with the other bigger, heavier equipment. So, it’s just a question. And
anyways I don’t really want more paper, but it was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand your concern, Ms. Cochran, and that is why for certain
components I’m looking at consideration of pilot fleet programs, like Oahu.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Which is, sorry, what is that, Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We create a pooi of vehicles, anyone can go down, sign it up, note that the
gas is full, the car has been maintained and serviced, and then off they go, and they
return it. And then, you know, it’s for multiple departmental use, not just for a
individual assigned to a car or a truck or a SUV.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions for this request? Okay, thank you very
much, Director Stant, Mr. Ratte, for Environmental Management and Solid Waste
Operations. Who you want up next, Mr. Baz?

-
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MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, we will have Public Works come down. Our Director David Goode.
They are requesting a truck tractor and two vacuum sweepers.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
you.

One second, Mr. Goode.

Okay, Mr. Goode, if you would please. Thank

MR. GOODE: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Director.
MR. GOODE: Good morning, Members. David Goode here, Department of Public Works and
we have a few items here in the equipment bond. The first item is a truck tractor for
Makawao. We have two truck tractors there. We need to service an area that
stretches from Wailua to Ulupalakua and down to Paia. And we have multiple crews
on the road on any given day. We need to move equipment for those crews. We have
two truck tractors. This one is a.. .that needs replacement is a 1992 model. We’ve
been advised that parts are no longer available. It’s typically used at least 3 times a
week. And this is again a 1992 model and has over 100,000 miles on it. So those are
the main justification points for the replacement, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Director. Let’s see, Ms. Cochran, any questions for
Director Goode?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, Chair, what page is this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is on 768, this is all under Finance, the general heading, but it’s
broken down into three departmental requests. So under project description it is the
last component.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No, no questions, Chair
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Carroll? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I like this request because it’s 1 year older than my tractor and it’s
got 400,000 miles on it did you say?
MR. GOODE: No, I think, it had a 100,000 on it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’m good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good. Thank you.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I’m good.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Let’s see where’s my notes? Mr. Goode, I apologize if
you mentioned it earlier but where are you.. .this equipment is for what, your general
baseyard or is this for a specific district or?
MR. GOODE: Yes, Mr. Chair, this will be stationed Upcountry. All the equipment, you know,
can be moved from the various districts especially when you have large jobs. Districts
help out each other. But the Upcountry District, as I mentioned, is vast. And we have
multiple crews and when they’re working two totally different areas we need two
trucks to handle the need.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your vacuum sweepers is for what also Upcountry, the two?
MR. GOODE: The sweeper request, the next two items, one’s Lahaina, and one is Makawao,
excuse me, Wailuku.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
620,000?

Okay.

Ms. Cochran, any questions regarding the second request,

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, no, but maybe just bookkeeping or whatever. This
Department actually has the information that I was looking for from Solid Waste
attached to heavy equipment, which is nice to see, reasoning, explanation, break down
on services that have been done through the history, and what have you. So that is
nice. I found what I was looking for. So, I don’t understand why the other, the
previous Department it’s not this way. It’s like everyone does something different. I
don’t get that, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Part of it is caused by me, Ms. Cochran, because how I am asking them to
submit information that, I believe, is to the Committee’s advantage. Part of it is,
again, working through, for the departments, going through an A, B, C accountability
requirement, so they’re adjusting. And, secondly, because we’ve had comments from
the Auditor and Corporation Counsel about the CIP projects, the narratives and
whatnot, to avoid future issues of potential disagreement that is why the Chair has
asked for more specific information regarding projects and everything else. I think,
Mr. Baz will continue to work the departments so that we can hopefully get to a
standardized way of submittal of certain requirements of the Budget. We’re not there
yet. So, I can appreciate your comments, but I will ask for a little patience on all the
Members’ part to allow Mr. Baz and myself because it’s gonna be, need to have some
coordination your Chair feels from the Director of Management. They have the
oversight of all departments. And, so, I would expect the MD to do his job to make
sure that there’s conformity departmental wide. Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Very good. Thank you so much. And thanks for the efforts
of all the Departments. So, I understand. It’s a work progress and we’ll get there. So
thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
replacements?

I can’t find my information that Ms. Cochran has.

Are these both

MR. GOODE: Yes, Chair and Mr. White, these are replacements.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, and the age of the two pieces?
MR. GOODE: Yeah, each district has a dedicated street sweeper position. And both of these
vehicles for whatever reason have had a lot of rust outs. One of ‘em has had like 70
work orders in the last few years, the other one has had about 40 work orders. And
so, one of ‘em, the Wailuku one, we had such a hard time getting parts. It took like
two months to get done. And for both of these with our MS4 program, one of the key
elements that’s going to be in the M54 program are cleaner streets. And so it’s really
important that we have good operating equipment going forward.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m okay. Thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
Mr. Goode?

Mr. Carroll, anything on this request? Okay, anything else,

MR. GOODE: Nope, that’s it for today.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank you very much for your assistance with the Committee this
morning regarding your requests.
MR. GOODE: You’re welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if we could take a brief recess and see where the Fire Department is. I
think, they’re on their way, but it’s up to you. We can also just move on to, I think,
Police Department is here, if you wanna start going over their capital projects.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well this is the third time we waiting for Fire. They better get their
program together. Who’s next, Michele? Okay, we’ll bring Police down.
MR. BAZ: So, Mr. Chair, the Police Department, let me get to that page here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Staff is handing out, Members, a response from the Department
regarding questions that we have forwarded to them. So what the Chair will do
is... and again, Mr. Takahashi and officers, we’re gonna take a five-minute recess so
you can review the documents Staff is currently handing out. This is from the
Department of Police and the Assistant Chief. And so we’ll take a five-minute recess.
(gavel).
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:06 a.m.
10:11 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
We shall bring the Committee review back to order. At this
time, we shall go through the requests from the Department of Police. So, I’ll have the
gentlemen introduce themselves to the Committee so if you will, please, Chief.
.

.

.

.

.

DEPARTMENT OF POLICE
MR. JAKUBCZAK:
Good morning, Chair, and good morning, Councilmembers, and
Committee members. My name is Assistant Chief John Jakubczak. I’m the Assistant
Chief of the Support Services Bureau.
MR. HOLOKAI: Good morning, Chair, Councilmembers, Captain Clyde Holokai, Technical
Services Division.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and of course in the back, everyone knows, Mr. Takahashi. He is
one constant force within the force. Chief, if you would go through your request,
please.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Chair. The first item on the agenda here is the Wailuku Police
Station parking lot repaving. This is an item that was previously put on our budget
proposal, which was cut the past couple years. And then it’s coming to a priority. The
parking lot because of the trees that are planted there, the foresight of, I guess, the
design back in 1987. The trees have grown and the roots have now protruded through
the asphalt. And it’s becoming a very major safety hazard as we’ve had a few incidents
of injuries occurred in the parking lot. So this is to rehab and repave that parking lot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chief, what is your project cost amount?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Five hundred seventy thousand dollars for that, Chair. And I can have
Captain Holokai go over the break down on that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Before we ask for Captain, one second, please. When you mention some of
the incidents, was that to persons and body, was that to vehicles and equipment?
Can you explain that?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Actually, both, Chair. Yes, Chair, both incidents, which, I know of one
personally where an officer walking through the parking lot got injured. And, I think,
just about couple years ago he was finally medically retired due to that incident in the
parking lot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And the others was on departmental vehicles?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Department vehicles, minor, usually minor vehicle accidents due to the
curbing and the holes in the parking lot.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so with the corrective measures needed regarding the, obviously the
issues the trees have become have you been getting cooperation from the arborist or
have you been hindered by either no action or disregard of the status and situation?
MR. HOLOKAI: We have been in contact with the arborist regarding these trees, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And what is the result of that communication?
MR. HOLOKAI: They actually came, I would say a few months ago, and helped us out with
that, trimmed the trees, and they were looking at the roots that actually coming up
through the pavement themselves.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, they have a mitigation plan that they gonna pay for?
MR. HOLOKAI: That I’m not sure. I need to check on that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I really don’t need more, you know, this is something that the
districts also face besides your main quarters. Did you have a chance to talk with
Public Works to see if our repaving program can handle your project?
MR. HOLOKAI: No, not yet, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: If I might. We... I did have a conversation with them about that because the Parks
Department is also requesting a significant amount of repaving activities. And there
had been intention from the Council to have them do War Memorial. So, the basic
response that I got is that the crews that we have are very good at repaving roads,
right. They can do the roadway, no problem. When it comes to parking lots, it’s a
-
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completely different animal. Yes, there’s asphalt going down there, but the curbing
and the requirements for figuring out the parking, engineering, and structure, and the
grading is different than repaving roads. And so, at this point, the Director feels that
the crew isn’t at that capacity to do the detailed work of parking lot repavements.
They might possibly be in the future after some more experience and doing more
different activities. Also, you know, the crew is just, is still getting established and
they have lots of roads to repair so they haven’t even caught up with that activity yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand, but we know that they did Wells Park parking area, right?
Didn’t they do this major building area, the parking as one of their earlier projects,
initial projects? Didn’t they start with parking, parking areas and in front of War
Memorial? I thought they did that one too.
MR. BAZ: They did.. .yes, Mr. Chair, you’re right, they did this building and it was definitely
a learning experience for them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I agree, but I thought they did a good job. Wells Park excellent job. I
mean, this is something that we have visibly seen and that is why we have created,
supported, and expanded this program.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair? The other thing that we haven’t quite figured out yet and they have
their fiscal financial analyst is reviewing is, you know, they’re Highway Fund funded
operation.
And so that’s for Highway Fund funded.. .funds are for roadway
improvements. And parking lots aren’t necessarily roadway improvements. So, we’d
still have to come up with the money, and I definitely understand your desire, if
especially it’s going to be lower costs for us to do the work in-house. We could have,
you know, General Fund pay for those activities, but it’s something we haven’t quite
worked out yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Baz. We’ll come to that point, Members, because if we make it
a directive through ordinance it’s gonna be one directive.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, we’re asking for the details of the... in the response, sorry these page
numbers aren’t... these pages aren’t numbered, but about the, maybe the seventh page
down there’s an e-mail from the Department of Management, CIP employee, to the
Department, with a breakdown of what the costs of that would be for paving.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that.
the request?

Mr. Guzman, questions on this component of

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thanks.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Have there been any estimates done on just spot repairs as opposed to
complete repaving?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, thank you. Councilmember White, we have done spot repairs here
and there. Again, with the roots there’s not much we can do, again, without the
arborist. And there are some photos in your packets there that show the extensive
damage caused by these roots on the curbing and the asphalt parking. I think, one of
those spots, two parking stalls are not usable at this time because of that, the damage
it can cause the undercarriage of our vehicles.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, you know, $570,000 is a big chunk of General Fund monies,
and, you know, anyone who has had to follow the County’s landscaping rules for
parking is dealing with the same things. I’ve got big, I’ve got 40-year-old trees, and the
roots are 40-years big, and we dig it up, and we repave that section but not the whole
place. So, I would be interested in knowing just how many really critical areas you’ve
got, and whether we can get a quote for just addressing the real challenges, and then
patching the cracks where they occur elsewhere.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Councilmember White, we can probably look into just doing those
specific, the worst areas at this point, if that will help.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions, but I’d like to ditto your comments about
trying to have it done within, you know, most companies do things like that
inter-department. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And the arborist, what is the.. .what is
his/her or whoever’s take on existing trees that caused all of these issues? You
leaving ‘em, yanking ‘em out, root binding them, or how’s that working... gonna work?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Captain?
MR. HOLOKAI: Councilmember Cochran, it’s been an ongoing thing with the arborist.
Apparently we caught them in a transitional stage where they’re between contracts
with one company and another. Just getting them out there to trim the trees, it took
some doing. And we’re still communicating with them to kind of figure out what the
plan is gonna be, if any at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. I mean, it’s the root of the problem and if we’re not
going to take care of the root of the problem and pave over it then it’s not really gonna
solve itself. And so arborist, you’re meaning the tree company? We have an in-house
County arborist that’s why.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: The County... the current County arborist, which there is a bill for us to
consider regarding what we want to do with that position.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. BAZ: And, Mr. Chair, the breakdown includes about $65,000 to specifically address the
root problem, which usually when they come in and redo stuff like this they put in
barriers so that the roots, you know, either metal, or some, you know, very hard
material so that the roots can’t penetrate that and cause the problem again.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Airight, thank you, Chair. I mean, we need to just fix
this but let’s get the best bang for our buck. And if it’s doing it in-house then I’m all
for that too. So thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s why they make chainsaws. Mr. Carroll? One thing that I am gonna
ask the Chief is that you might wanna look for potential other areas within the
Department facility to consider replanting better vegetation, whether it’s another type
of tree or a bush. I don’t have a problem you knocking down, chopping down, digging
out those trees, and then replanting something that makes sense in an area that won’t
disturb your requirements of operation and parking requirements. Okay. You know I
understand there is a State law regarding exceptional trees, but these trees shouldn’t
be a giant expense to this County General Fund. And now it’s becoming one issue
where we get potentially now personnel issues of injuries, bodily harm, claims,
medical retirements. The tree will come second to our people. Okay. Any other
questions on this item? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Not a question, just a comment. But the County requires shade trees
to be planted in every parking lot. And every private employer or every private
landowner has exactly the same challenges
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --that the Department is having. And so, I would just like to say if
we’re gonna let our own off the hook that we better be ready to let everybody else off
the hook too. And that’s why trees get trimmed so that the roots don’t grow and, you
know, people scream bloody murder when people cut them back too far but the reality
is, you know, we have not cut ours back and we’re dealing with the, you know, we’re
dealing the root issues. But it is a tough choice because if you have the shade you’re
gonna have the roots. And when you got the roots you’ve got repairs. So, and, you’ve
got potential liability, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I take that comment, I appreciate it very much, Mr. White. I think, we
should be looking at the subdivision code because what is one of the first things new
subdivision owners, homeowners, do after a year or two? They start chopping down
those trees that are, been planted for the subdivision. Okay. Whether its autograph
trees, or what else I saw. People cut ‘em down because it’s either too much rubbish,
now it’s interfering with lines connecting to the house, cable lines, electrical lines,
-
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raise the rubbish factor or it doesn’t go with their landscaping plan, whatever it is.
People start cutting down trees, we see it all the time, Mr. White. And my thing is
obviously the standard doesn’t work. We need to get off the insanity trip and try
something else.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well I like the trees.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t have a problem with trees.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That’s why we cut ours back

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I just saying we can plant it someplace that is smarter.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --but it does present challenges. So anyway.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m with you. Trees get old. Trees get diseased. Trees die.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Hey, wait a minute I’m old too, you know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We all are. So, we know where we heading to disease and death. Okay,
next project.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Thank you, Chair. The next project is the renovation of the Wailuku
Police Dispatch Center. Again, as it has been mentioned before the Patrol Division is
the backbone of our Police Department.
But our Communication Section, and
specifically the dispatch area, our dispatchers are the link with our community, and
emergency services, not only police but also fire and medics. So, this renovation
would bring up, we’re looking at is making the room itself one level floor. Right now,
it’s a two... three-tiered floor, which makes it very, a safety hazard for some of our
dispatchers and the accessibility to the down.. .further tiers for a couple of our
dispatchers who have issues. So this would bring it up and help also make it in line
with our 911 services communication equipment and ADA compliant.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How much is this project?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: This project right now is 500,000.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you believe this improvements may help you retain your dispatchers?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: It would definitely help with the, their attitude, I mean, not attitude, but
coming in, their sick leave, I think, just making it more inviting and efficient room for
the dispatchers to use. Definitely, ‘cause right now it’s a little crowded so this would
help with the crowding.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And we know you have, you know, we understand it’s a stressful
environment. They deal with stressful calls and so we know that you have vacancies
in this area because of the demands of the position.
-
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MR. JAKUBCZAK: Correct, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And so yeah, if this is one way to help your employees have a better work
environment we appreciate the request. Mr. Guzman, questions? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, I think, this one makes some sense. I think, it’s an area that has
to be as good as we can make it because it is a tough job and the turnover rate there,
if we can help adjust that then that’s a good thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Not at this time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll? Okay, Chief, next project.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: And the last one on our list here is the purchase and installation of a
medical waste incinerator for the proper disposal of narcotics. Currently, our Records
Section and Evidence Unit has been undergoing a complete review and revision of
procedures, directives, and storage operations. The section recommended that a
medical grade incinerator be purchased and put into use for the reduction of aged
narcotics and illicit drugs evidence, which we store at Maui Police Department. So
right now those... there’s nothing to get rid of them. They’re just being stored in our
Evidence Unit at this time. And along with the initiative.., the drug take back
initiative, excuse me, prescription drugs, trying to get these taken care of safely in a
safe environment. This is why we’re asking for this incinerator.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so this is what 40,000, 50,000?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: I’m sorry, $40,000. It includes not only just the equipment, but to put a
little, like a concrete pad for it to be and fencing for the security of it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Where are you planning to locate the equipment?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: At this point in time it’s the Kihei Police Station, the rear portion of the
police station.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Don’t we have such equipment within the facility we bought for the
medical examiner requirements and the Department?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: No, sir. There’s no, nothing, no incinerator there.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So for requirements of medical examiner what happens with all those used
needles and syringes and other components regarding medical waste then from the
facility?
MR. HOLOKAI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Captain?
MR. HOLOKAI: When we were at the hospital, the hospital would take care of that for us.
Now that we’re in the forensic facility its actually been piling up. And we’re looking at
going to funeral homes to utilize their resources for the disposal of those types of
things.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You also, at this time assist, State and Federal agencies by holding
their evidence or that was, that’s for cases?
MR. HOLOKAI: Yes, but for the most part it’s temporary until their case close.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They take their stuff out after a while?
MR. HOLOKAI: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, it’s just County police narcotics and evidence that needs to be properly
destroyed?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Chair, yes, we do, I think, assist the Federal drug initiative, buyback,
turn-in initiative. So, we do take some of their equipment... or waste and hold that as
well ‘cause we participate as a partner with them.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Why wouldn’t we consider the facility we bought for the medical
examiner as the site for the incinerator? It’s a medical facility.
MR. HOLOKAI: Chair, that’s actually one of the places where we did look, well we did
consider at point, including also a spot behind our own main police station. It’s just
right now it seems like the best bet would be in Kihei at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is the advantage?
MR. HOLOKAI: We have a section that’s out there already that’s actually just starting up the
Records Division, so.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: The unit that would be responsible for this incinerator would be the
Records Division, specifically Evidence Section, and we have personnel in Wailuku as
well as in Kihei at this time. None at the forensic facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we are underutilizing that medical facility? We spent good money to
go buy that, fix that up to take care the needs of the medical examiner and the Chief
-
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as the coroner under Chief Phillips. So, I’m kinda disappointed we’re not making
better use of that since we pumped out good money for it. Mr. Carroll, questions on
this request? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And he brought up asking the funeral
homes and I thought it was kind of morbid of me to think that. But, I guess, that was
kind of an option and then also Humane Society does cremations too. And then I
thought okay and have Fire stand there and have a controlled fire happen at the time.
But, you know, this is something that’s definitely needed and I just can’t imagine all
this stuff stockpiling like you say it is. And, I think, my initial thought was, I guess,
it’s too late, but, I mean, with the Kihei facility something like this could have been
incorporated into the original design of it. But, you know, that’s neither here nor
there. So, it looks like something needed, but, I think, yeah there could be other
options. So, I don’t know, maybe Humane Society would... is that an option or no to
dispose of this?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Thank you, Member Cochran. Part of the issue would be that the
biohazard waste that we’re dealing with is a biohazard as well as evidence. So, there
would have to be someone, an evidence personnel, sign off to make sure and this
would be Internal Affairs would have to be present to make sure that the biohazard or
these evidence is destroyed in a manner appropriate with the CALEA standards as well
as with prosecutor’s approval.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, okay. I hate to have my pet cremated and then have
some residue of your stuff mixed in so that wouldn’t be good either. Okay, thank you,
Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What other methods are there for disposal of these drugs?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Right now there is.. .the only other way we could do it would be like was
mentioned package up the evidence. But, again, you would have to have someone
sign for it and transport it. It has to have the chain of command or chain of evidence
to go to where it has to go to be destroyed. We’re having issues doing that, having to
transport the evidence, especially biohazard evidence. And having another place, like
HPD or someone else, assist us in the disposal of these biohazard evidence.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: How do they dispose of it?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: They have their own incinerator, I believe.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thanks. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Thank you, Chair. I actually support this purchase and, I
know, that the chain of custody is important. And I can’t recall how long the evidence
needs to be stored after appeal process. But, I know, that at some point it can be
destroyed and the fact that it’s being stored, Chair, leads to temptation. So, I would
rather that it be destroyed, and maybe we have to purchase this. I think, it’s for the
better good of the Department as well as making sure that our community is safe from
it being redistributed through the community. So, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay, anything else, Chief? That’s the last we had on your,
on Page 826.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: I believe that’s it, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, next project.
MR.

JAKUBCZAK:
Yeah, next project, which is near and dear to, I know,
Councilmember Crivello’s heart is the construction of a new Molokai District Police
facility. Right now, I’m looking at $1.37 million for this project. It’s been an ongoing
issue. I’d like to publicly point out and thank Department of Management. And I see
Wendy up there, helping us out in this project, trying to negotiate for this property,
and it’s been going on for, for me, for the last year or so. So, we’re continuing to
negotiate and talk with the property owner on Molokai for that parcels.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so, Chief, why did you ask us for design money last year if you don’t
have the land yet?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: We anticipated having the land out at this point in time, and it’s
continuing to go on back and forth with the property owners. And it’s, at this point, I
believe, we’ve.. .with the help of Department of Management and also Corporation
Counsel, we’re moving in another direction.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, the FY ‘16 design money was based on the funding that was approved
in FY ‘15 for the acquisition. That funding did lapse and so this design funding is
gonna lapse too unless we can move forward somehow.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we’re gonna lapse the 250 and then we’re gonna ask... then just be
asked to put the 1.37 million this year? Is that what I’m hearing?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I believe, that they were hoping to be able to use the 250 and 550 for
design of the project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but why would we give ‘em design? They don’t even have the land.
That’s why they didn’t use the 250 we gave ‘em this year. This is one ass backwards
way of doing it for this Committee.
MR. BAZ: Yes, we understand.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Next. Questions, Members? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: What is the appraised value for the land that you folks are
looking at?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: The latest appraisal was about, approximately 640,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: How much is the landowner asking?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: One point four million and they haven’t come down from their price.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I wouldn’t. Sorry.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: That’s the issue we having right now with this trying to acquire.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, not 1.4.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have an issue with the 1.4, Ms. Crivello? Is that what...okay, I just
wanted to be clear what part you was unhappy with. I had to make sure.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well 600,000 appraised value.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am, we heard that.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And then the landowners’ asking 1.4.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: An initial appraisal was 820, I believe, that was a few years ago. And
then we reappraised it last year, it came down to 640, and the property owner
continued with the same price they asked the last time, which was 1.4 million.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Has the Department talked to Corporation Counsel about other venues of
acquisition?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Chair, we’ve looked at other venues and the venue that we’re looking
at... that we’re negotiating was the best area, location, for the police station. The other
locations had some issues that could run up the cost of construction and design.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I have some challenges with this project moving forward for the.. .part
of the reason is the price of the land. But the other challenge that I have is that, you
know, the fire station moved out of that area so we have structures there that could be
utilized to expand the police station. And I realize that it floods from time to time, but
and we knew that when we built there. And I don’t know what the cost would be to
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deal with the drainage issues. It may be less costly if we deal with the drainage issues
than move the facility up the hill and end up with another big edifice like we have in
Kihei and Molokai Fire Stations. So I’m a little concerned with these kinds of facilities
getting out of control. And if the landowner is not gonna come off of the 1.4 million
then go find another place. That seems pretty simple or let’s find out what it would
cost to fix the drainage problem because it’s not just the Police Station that’s impacted
by that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Past Council, in consideration of the Kaunakakai Fire Station,
the new station, we discussed whether or not we should move police then with fire.
That was one of Mr. Kawano’s considerations to support the project for the rest of the
Members. Police chose not to move although that was the site we agreed to to be the
base of all communications is the new fire facility. That was part of the understanding
of how Council funded that project. And the amount of land we bought... acquired to
accommodate other future needs. Mr. Kawano just felt that elevation and ease to get
to West and East was advantageous of the current new site, so Council supported that
request. But we did ask police to move at that time with fire, and would build a very
good complex for Central Molokai. The Department then chose to decline as I recall
my memory. So this is not a new project, for me, per Se. I’ll ask Mr. Carroll if he has
questions on this project? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, you know, I’m gonna support the
call of what Ms. Crivello is saying and that’s it’s not an opportune time here and this
type of pricing. But I am trying to figure out the comment from Member White in
regards to fix the problem. If it’s not going to be moved and they chose back in the
day as you were explaining to not move.., a retaining wall of sorts or something
infrastructure wise that can help make the area doable, usable. So, I don’t know, if
any of that type of adjustments to the current lot site has been looked at. So, but,
again, I would think, I don’t know, but perhaps there is alternative spots to look
towards. But Mr. Jakubczak’s saying no it’s more costly then the figure we’re looking
at here today, so I’m not sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The current site does have its challenges, Ms. Crivello can definitely share
her experience and knowledge of the site. It does have geographical disadvantages,
but the County knew when we built of the issues regarding flooding and drainage.
You know but the Board of Supervisors in the past made that call.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, I, too, will follow the lead of the
area rep on this one. But the question I have is should you find a space, a suitable
space, et cetera, how realistic is your projected construction cost of $4 million? I
would think that’s awfully low.
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MR. JAKUBCZAK: I’m not sure how, what that, how that figure came about but that would
not be sufficient for a new police station. We’re looking more at a similar style and
possibly cost may be a little bit more because of the time now but as the Lanai Police
Station.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: A little bigger than what they have.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
wasn’t it?

And I think that was around 10 million so many years ago

CHAIR HOKAMA: It wasn’t that high.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It wasn’t that high?
MR. BAZ: Actually, yeah, Mr. Chair, this number did come from the Lanai Police Station’s
costs.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: They were doing great on the project till the famous phrase change order
came about. But
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --that’s how much we put out for Lanai. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. And I appreciate the efforts from the Police
Department and needless to say we need better accommodations. Number one, for
our officers and also, I think, the incarceration or that, what do you call you’re your
temporary holding, for, you know, those that you’ve arrested and how you end up
commuting them to Maui, and then you already have an overcrowded facility here.
But my, you know, it’s not like the landowner are having a whole rash of sales,
especially in that area where you folks are looking at. I think, it’s, in my opinion, I
think, we should sit down with the landowner. There are other properties. Maybe
may not have the existing infrastructure that you’re looking at. But, I think, there
should be further conversation. And I don’t know what the MD’s Office, what sort of,
you know, setup or conversation have been going on. But 1.4 million, I’m sorry, I
cannot support that kind of purchase at this time because you weigh the appraised
value and that. But hopefully we can have dialogue, further dialogue, and, I too
coming from on behalf of my constituents, who are having continued conversations
with the big landowner on Molokai for other facilities that we may consider. And
there’s very good doors that are opening, how maybe kinda give back to the
community in a sense maybe. But gotta have the dialogue. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Crivello. Members, any other questions on this project,
Kaunakakai. Molokai District facility?
. .

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And I’m thinking back when Chief Yabuta was here and
talking story with Department at the time in regards to West Maui ‘cause as we all
know little old West Maui’s Station too. I’m not trying to downgrade or minimize the
need for Kaunakakai one bit. But there was discussion and at the time he was very
supportive, but then, of course, new Chief and all this stuff. But then the whole... the
shift occurred within the Department that Kaunakakai is the number one, you know,
priority, which very supportive, once again, as Ms. Crivello is explaining, cost wise it’s,
I guess, not to our liking it sounds like. But so I’m just trying to figure out if these
monies don’t go forward for this particular project at this time where can it go? How
can it be used and past lapsed monies?
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Committee.

Well the lapsed monies are available for re-appropriation by this

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So and that would be the 250 and...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah that’s what we forgetting their intention is to lapse the 250 as one
option or they might wanna use as part of the design. But, for me...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Why you designing with no land?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why just put money on the side for design until we know whether or not
we’re going have that site to utilize? I mean, I’m not willing to tie up three-quarters of
a million dollars sitting around doing nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is general... .well this bond money but still yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, and so, and then hearing, I guess, the asking price is
1.4 mil, yet the monies here being asked of is only 820. So how’s that supposed to
have paid for the 1.4 mil ask anyways for acquisition?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe, they hope to have more success in the negotiation of an
acceptable price.
MR. JAKUBCZAK:
Yes, Councilmember Cochran.
The 820, I believe, was the initial
appraisal value of the property a few years ago. Again, since then, since last year
actually, the appraisal has been updated and went down to 640.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
wants us to pay for. Anyways.

But, again, it doesn’t hit that 1.4 that the owner

CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean, it’s like a date that, you know, everybody wants to take to the
prom, she’s holding off for the best offer.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thanks, Chair.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: And if I may, Councilmember Cochran, West Maui Police Station that’s
still a priority of ours, but the initial priority is Molokai at this point in time.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Chair.

Okay, understood.

Thank you very much.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions for this project? Again, we will seek the advice
of Ms. Crivello as the district member regarding the project. Okay, Department, next.
Is that it, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. That’s it for the Police Department. Oh, we do have Mr. Pacheco
here that we know... we had a discussion on the Public Safety Radio System project
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: --when we brought Police’s Operational budget here.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. BAZ: But just in case you wanted to go over that we do have Mr. Pacheco here to go
over that project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’ll have, Mr. Pacheco, if you would come down, give us a status of the
projects that we have given you for the current year and what’s your successes?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, ma’am?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Before Chief or whoever is leaving, the handout that was put
on our desks
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --upon their arrival, we did address some of the items, is
that because the other items are out of a different kind of fund on this list?
CHAIR HOKAMA: After we get this review from Mr. Pacheco, I’ll ask Mr. Baz to give us some
comment
--
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --because they were not part of the submittal to this Committee from him.
‘Cause, again, I don’t know how it impacts his calculations on Debt Service and other
factor that’s gonna make a determination for us. Mr. Pacheco, welcome, thank you for
being here.
MR. PACHECO: Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members. Update on the projects so far, the last
full year was spent on the full deployment of the radio equipment, turning the sites
into full operation, getting all the subscribers swapped out, collecting all of the
obsolete equipment, and preparing that for disposal. It was a challenging year. That
was the first year with Captain Amaral’s retirement, and then we kicked into
deployment, plus continuation of construction projects and everything else. Very
challenging. We are at this point now we’re completely on to the new system. It is
functioning very well. The Fire Department has an experience with the Kahikinui and
have expressed to me that they’re very happy with the way it has performed for them
in that very remote area. There are still a few challenges that we’re facing in the
system itself, one link in particular that we’re trying to correct. But overall the system
is operational. It’s meeting all of our design expectations and we’re actually getting
more people lining up to get onto the system within the County. We’re having
departments expressing an interest in participating in the system. The other aspect of
it is the construction projects. We had some delays on our Waiakeakua project. It is
moving forward. The communications tower has been erected and the work on
electrical in the facility continues. Two other smaller projects associated with it, one
at Kaumalapau on Lanai is just about done. We have some small things to do before
we finish that project off. And in Kahakuloa, there are still some work to be done, but
that facility itself is very near completion. We do have planning going on for two
facilities in West Maui and those are the facilities that we’re requesting fundings for
construction. Last year we did take a break from asking for more monies just because
piling more stuff on would definitely have broken a lot of what’s going on. So, at this
point, we’re asking for funding for two of the facilities in West Maui along with some of
the electronics that would go in to make those facilities fully functional. In the initial
project we had to short some of the equipment counts to bring it within budget, and
we’re looking to now that we’re far enough along, and everyone who is on this system
is in a good spot, we’re looking to now fill those shortages... shortfalls that we had,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
So, your other...your request under Other for $1.9 million, that is
equipment? Is it basically equipment, Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: That is actually high, it is equipment that was associated with this system
and the additional subscribers, that will probably be paired down. I did submit an
update to this, but it didn’t make it in time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if you can make sure that our Staff gets it. Did we receive that yet,
Ms. Yoshimura?
-
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MR. PACHECO: We were actually looking instead of the 1.9 to something more like $750,000
for the equipment alone and moving the remaining money into the future year for the
Puu Nianiau project. That one we are expecting to run into some environmental
issues and some considerable view plane issues.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So this Puu Nianiau

--

MR. PACHECO: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --give us a bit more geographical.
MR. PACHECO: It is the Puu that is about two-tenths of a mile below the National Park
entrance. As you’re driving up to Haleakala National Park there’s the area just before
the park that was like a cinder pit. It’s the hill right behind that. In fact, that is part
of Puu Nianiau. There is a significant telecommunications present, and we are
currently in there in a commercial facility, which is presenting its own challenges to
the level of protection that we need to have for a public safety system. We’re looking at
the standards that we build our facilities to in grounding, in power, and those types of
things. As it’s a commercial facility the towers that are there are significantly loaded.
There is no room for expansion and we have concerns about those facilities. The
facility we’re looking to do would present a new tower. Public safety and local
government only type of a facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But you did say that you’re gonna have some, I guess, an EIS or EA
issues?
MR. PACHECO: Yes, sir. Based on our experiences from Waiakeakua and going on its been
a tremendous learning experience for me about endangered species
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay so

--

MR. PACHECO: --and dealing with that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --saying that and you’re asking us to, you know, and make adjustments
on this year’s request and put it to future years. You have similar issues with Hana?
MR. PACHECO: No, from what I understand in speaking to the State biologists, that’s
probably the only facility that was on our list that would probably not have an
endangered species impact.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why wouldn’t you push up Hana then?
MR. PACHECO: We’re looking at...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Give you enough time to deal with your issues up the mountain.
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MR. PACHECO: We could rearrange that. For us, it’s a matter of trying to get into a better
place for operations of the system. Puu Nianiau is rather pivotal to a lot of facilities,
not only the Police Department. It is a significant communication site for a lot of other
carriers as well and we’re trying to protect that. We can move the Hana forward, we’ll
just shift gears, if that would be the Council’s preference.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And you have the breakdown per project for us, Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: I do not have a breakdown. Currently, we’re still trying to look at getting
numbers from a rough design from our consultants.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Would be great if by Friday, tomorrow, you can give us what each
project you’re having us consider would be the dollar amount.
MR. PACHECO: Very well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Can you refresh my memory on who all is going to be participating on
this system? Will we have DLNR and Coast Guard and others on this system as well
as County departments?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: We have other agencies, partner agencies, within the County of Maui. The
Coast Guard is one of them. We have National Parks who also have a limited number
of users, like the Coast Guard, who access our system to be able to talk to us directly.
We have Department of Land and Natural Resources Conservation Enforcement
Branch, the Law Enforcement Branch of DLNR, has access to our system. They also
have a State system that they operate on, but this allows them to talk directly to our
law enforcement. DLNR’s DOCARE, their forestry people, as well work very, very
closely with fire and they’re getting a small presence on this system. It is not for their
day-to-day use. It’s mainly for those times when we have to co-respond. The only
other people who are on the system outside of this that are on it relatively full-time, we
have EMS in East Maui. Their system does not cover into East Maui very well so
they’re operationally on with us. They co-respond with police and fire a lot. So, their
operations is almost exclusively on this system. On Molokai, they use it often as well
although they do have access to that EMS. We do have other Federal partners with
the Police Department, FBI, DEA. Again, these are very small user basis and direct
interface with the departments.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So other than EMS it’s not the primary system for the DLNR and
others? It’s just so they can talk to us.
MR. PACHECO: No, it’s not the primary for them, except in very limited areas.
-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
can...

Right.

So, there’s no... I’m assuming there’s no cost sharing that we

MR. PACHECO: There is no cost sharing with any of this today.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What is the total buildout. .what are you projecting the total buildout
to be once this is all done?
.

MR. PACHECO: With all the construction and the radio system itself, we had projected
about $32 million total, which included, you know, facilities in places where we had
little or no coverage to expand that coverage for our users.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair. Big chunk of change.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we don’t even charge fees for those that wanna be on our system that
we’re not responsible for?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair, we don’t have anyone that’s really riding our system other than
County agencies. We have people that we interface with to the advantage of us during
those times where we need to interoperate with them. Other users that are coming on
to the system, Parks, for example, is beginning to develop...
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, EMS just goes on during emergency status?
MR. PACHECO: Only.. .normally when they have to directly interface with us they’ll usually
go through dispatch. In East Maui specifically their coverage is very limited. They
have one site that’s actually out of town and then the other coverage comes from the
Big Island. So, their signal, their ability to communicate is difficult, and they do
operate a lot with Fire and PD on our system in East Maui.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, we just wanted to have a good understanding, Mr. Pacheco,
‘cause Oahu-eccentric legislators don’t understand what the County provides to the
State in our County. To me, the State cannot function without the County, not in this
County. Mr. Carroll, questions on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Just one, I’m glad to see there’s so much
inter department communications going on. But you also have a contingency plan to
work where the police or anybody can work directly on the ground with the Coast
Guard helicopter? That was a problem before that’s why that we had in Hana several
times to where it was very difficult, and we made a link from the police to the station,
they call on the phone to go over there get da-da-da. And so, but it didn’t work very
well. Do you have something in place, a plan to be able to work with Coast Guard
helicopters or even with the military helicopters if you have a disaster?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: We’ve been working with the Coast Guard, Maalaea Station. The difficulty
is the way the Coast Guard is in the State of Hawaii. The sector actually runs out of
Oahu so their air frames...their helicopters and the C130s do not have the means to
directly communicate with us. We are working with them, through the Statewide
communications interoperability plan committee meetings that we can attend
regularly, and working with them to try and find that means where we can get them
more directly connected to us. The County of Maui’s move to a standards-based
digital radio system allows an opportunity with the Coast Guard to possibly implement
a different radio within their air frame. It’s still an aircraft radio, but it will allow them
to talk to us if they’re able to change that equipment out in their air frame that we
would be able to give them our programming and they would essentially be able to
directly communicate with us. We’re working with them on that locally in Hawaii.
The difficulty is is that the Federal agencies have a configuration management policy
where they can’t just switch equipment out. So, we’re trying to help them find those
resources. We’ve provided them with a couple of options that will work. I believe,
they’re moving forward with one of them, but if the County takes a while to move, the
State takes a longer while to move, the Feds take an immense amount of time move in
a direction, and effect types of changes.
They are working on it.
We are in
discussions with them. As need be the local Coast Guard does have equipment on
loan from us, from the County of Maui, to be able to speak directly to us in the law
enforcement as well as rescue and environmental protection, fire.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. I’m glad to see that’s being worked on. It was a
real problem several times. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Cochran, questions on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes, thank you, Chair. And it almost seems like these... this
is like radio towers, the actual tower along with whatever associated equipment, like
the coverage doesn’t seem to, I don’t know, expand out very far. Is there like a rule of
thumb of one tower can reach, make communications expand out a radius whatever,
X amount of miles or something?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: Okay, the two facilities that we’re looking to do in West Maui plus they’ll
help the radio project in that we’re bringing connectivity into West Maui. We can
speak... I would prefer to speak privately about any vulnerabilities in communications.
But the facilities will allow us to robust that communications, make it a lot more
effective, efficient, and more durable during brush fires, or, you know, other incidents
where the current communications connections would be compromised. So, the
facilities we’re looking to do are not necessarily to expand the land mobile radio
coverage. It’s primarily to support it and robust the County’s ability to communicate.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But does that mean coverage though? That doesn’t mean
you’re expanding coverage of radio communications?
MR. PACHECO: Not with these two projects, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And why not?
MR. PACHECO: At this point in the project we’re trying to make the foundation of the
network that supports it more stable, more robust. West Maui’s been cut off from
communications on multiple occasions in the past. Those same outages would affect
us and our ability to communicate in West Maui being connected to this system for
not just police, fire, it’s Public Works, it’s everyone else that’s on the system.
Additionally, because we do partner very closely with the ITSD folks, this is also the
means that County services communicate into West Maui. We transport them into
East Maui, to Molokai. We’re working on getting better connectivity into Lanai as well
with the projects that we’re building. So, all of these not only help the land mobile
radio, it’s County network communications in general. Wherever we go, we bring
them.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, ‘cause wasn’t there an additional tower, maybe this
was for another reason, but in Honokohau?
MR. PACHECO: That facility has been built. That was specifically to cover an area, which
was a significant problem with communications. Honokohau Valley was a hole. You
get into the entrance of the valley and it was smoke signals and shoot flares kind of
ways to be able to communicate. The facility that we did build out there is a limited
facility specifically for that. And it’s been functional. It does bring coverage into the
valley now. That was a test for that type of facility. What we wanna be able to do now
is to be able to expand that to these other facilities, other locations. We’re looking at
in the future looking to extend this into places like Halawa Valley on Molokai.
Beautiful place, very remote, nothing ever happens until something happens. And
when it does it requires significant efforts to be able to communicate. Similarly, we’re
also working with our State and Federal partners through the
to address
Kalaupapa. So, we are looking at these things. We’re not a point where we’re ready to
come out and say we need money to build. We’re still working on everything in the
background to be able to solidify the coverage that we have. Currently the system was
designed to have a 97 percent probability of communications Countywide. So when
you hit the button on the side of the radio there’s a 97 percent chance you’re gonna
talk. There are places in the County of Maui, unfortunately, Mr. Carroll has a few,
number of those where the 3 percent exists and those will take time to be able to fill
completely. We’ll never be able to get 100 percent, but we’re trying to fill those areas
that we know to be problems and that we project to be problems down the stream.
_____

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And thank you for that improvement at Honokohau. I’m
just a valley over so keep Honolua in my next time. And so Lahaina Water Treatment
Facility, I’ve been hearing the buildup of the tower may interfere, and this, I spoke to
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Department of Water Supply. They said they’ve been in contact with you folks. And I
keep, this particular resident keeps saying no, no, no, that’s not correct. So just want,
since we’re here on the record this additional tower, I guess, the concern is when, if,
and ever DWS, Water Supply, needs to helicopter in materials to Kanaha intake this
tower may hinder that?
MR. PACHECO: If they’re in the valley and going up to the intake up in the valley, we should
not be anywhere near them. We are, if you look up at Lahainaluna, the large water
tank, very, very up on the top in back, we’re gonna be adjacent to it, up on the ridge.
We’re not gonna be anywhere in the valley. The total height of this is 45 feet, is the
project. It was what we had projected including all of its appurtenances. So, we are
not significantly higher than what’s there.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay, no, good to know. Thank you, so I can at least
relay to message back to the constituent
MR. PACHECO: Oh no problem and if he does have a question, by all means, point them
towards my direction. I’ll be happy to speak with him.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Mr. Hans Michel, I’m sure knows how to reach out to the
people. And then my other thing, I guess, my question in regards coverage-based,
Puu Mahoe, I actually had the privilege of going up there and touring that facility with
Officer Amaral just prior to his retirement. And so that does not help us this radio
contact in the Kahikinui area? And also this new, this Puu Nianiau one kind of... it’s
up on the mountain. So, I just thought why so many and then if that one does not
help assist the Kahikinui stuff?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: Okay. Unfortunately, the problem is geography. The terrain will obstruct
the radio signal. We can’t talk through the rock. Kahikinui actually gets its coverage
from another facility, and in that Kahikinui fire, they were speaking on the system
loud and clear. The radio equipment actually has features in it, which cancels noise.
So, they were able to speak in the areas where the helicopter was operating loud and
clear versus hearing all the rotor wash, hearing the wind. So, there’s some significant
improvements that we have made with the quality of communications as well as in the
coverage.
Unfortunately, Puu Nianiau is on the opposite side of the mountain.
Puu Mahoe brings some significant coverage into South Maui. It also covers into West
Maui to some extent and also onto Lanai. So, it doesn’t necessarily cover right at its
feet. It covers also out at a distance. This is the type of things that we look at when
we try to site facilities is where do we get the coverage into the areas that we have
problems, and the answer may not be right at the problem. The answer may be out a
little ways.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. Well very interesting.
Thank you for your efforts. Chair, thank you.

Thank you very much.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, any questions? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Have we checked, I’m sure you have, whether any Federal funds are
available for these projects?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Pacheco?
MR. PACHECO: Mr. Chair? All the time.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And are they?
MR. PACHECO: We have pursued some funding and we were successful using Homeland
Defense funds actually to build out the microwave infrastructure and the data
network that supports the County’s overall communications. It supports the radio
project as well, but it’s just a small user on that whole thing. And when we were
building these, we looked at the cost of the equipment and the cost to go from extra
small to double extra-large. And by looking at the cost difference it was small enough
that we just built everything out as large as we could because with data if you build it
they’re gonna come and they’re gonna use it. And we’ve noticed that it’s being used a
lot more. What this does is it helps reduce some of the costs to pay for someone else
to provide those data services and those data services are not cheap. So, we’re already
having to do this. We’re already having to maintain this for the radio system. So, it
just made sense to share this with County ITSD. So, we are pursuing Federal dollars
wherever we can, but unfortunately the Federal dollars are not flowing like they used
to.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Few quick questions, Mr. Pacheco.
request but you mentioned Kalaupapa.

I know it’s not for this year’s

MR. PACHECO: Yes, sir. We are looking at a means of providing better coverage into the
peninsula, primarily because of what happened with Ms. Fuddy. That was...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is the State Health Department gonna pay us for this?
MR. PACHECO: We’re working with them to figure out what we can do collectively, whether
they build it, we build it, the Feds build it, something just needs to be done. And
we’re helping collectively come up with ideas to make this thing go. It may not be
something that the County of Maui funds. It will be something that we will have to
support, and like we did for the State, and the State’s communications facility, at
Puu Nana, we will be present at those community meetings and express our support
for it.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. PACHECO: So, it is not necessary something that the County itself will be building. It
is something that the County has an interest in making sure it gets built.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is very good clarification comments, Mr. Pacheco, because that’s the
County of Kalawao
--

MR. PACHECO: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --not the County of Maui, okay, by State Constitution. So, any other
questions for this project? We’re gonna call for a recess. The staff and the Chair...
MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, just real quick before... I know Member Cochran had a question
about the projects that weren’t submitted by the Chief’s response this morning if you
wanna go over those now or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, not now.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re in recess till 11:30.
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

.

.(gavel).

11:19 a.m.
11:32 a.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
.(gavel)... We shall return to order. Ms. Cochran had asked earlier to
the Chair regarding a document from the Department of Police, dated... received on
4/2 1. So, Mr. Baz, any comments?
..

MR. BAZ: Yeah, Mr. Chair, thank you. So what the Department responded to was actually
what their proposed.. .the Department’s proposed budget request to the Administration
was. What you saw in the Countywide police projects, the $1.1 million was what was
proposed by the Administration to Council. So, they included some projects in here
that we based on a priority and available funds, we decided to not fund this year,
possibly fund next year, and it also includes some of the small projects to be funded
out of operations for repairs and maintenance activities like painting and the locker
room repairs. Those are more like repair and maintenance activities versus Capital
Improvement Projects.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we understand your comments, Mr. Baz, and so thank you very
much. Members, you heard the comments from the Budget Director. He had to make
decisions on what he would submit from the overall Budget for all departments. And
so what we have in the official submittal is what they are recommending for our
consideration. Ms. Cochran?

-
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for that review of this
handout. And so, I see the locker room you’re gonna take care of it how you
explained. And the automated entry/exit gate at the forensic facility, is that gonna be
taken care of?
MR. I3AZ: Yeah, no, Mr. Chair, that one and the other larger projects were gonna be pushed
off until FY ‘18.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: The Countywide camera project?
MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Alright, okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Yeah.
Only what you see on Pages 728 and 826 is what the
Administration submitted for our official review.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Thank you very much. But I just wondering if it was
gonna be taken care of in a different manner versus through this budget process
today.
MR. BAZ: No the...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So, I’m hearing, no, just the locker room.
MR. BAZ: Yes, that’s correct. On that list just the locker room. They also proposed
painting, you know, the Lanai facility, but we, we’re going to be funding that with
operations as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, actually enjoy seeing this.
submitted, what was given, and I kinda like this background.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And again, Mr. Baz

I mean, the, what was

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So thank you, Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --had to make, you know, choices that he had to make... he had to submit
a balanced budget. So, yeah, he had some, his own challenges in putting forth what
they could recommend and support before this Committee. Chief, any comments?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: No, Chair, just well actually the submittal of this document we got the
request maybe a day or two ago, and myself and Captain Holokai, were both
indisposed until this morning. So, we kinda quickly put something together for you
folks this morning. We apologize for being, I know, we wanted to get to you earlier,
but by the time we got to it this morning you got the document that’s in front of you.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you, Chief. We appreciate your comments. And, again,
Members, you have this information.
I would say if you want us to consider
something that has not been part of Mr. Baz’s official, I’m open to it provided you cut
out something else. Okay, you can replace. You can recommend replacement, but I’m
not gonna just take adds. So, I’ll give you that flexibility. Chief, one thing I did
wanted to ask you and the Captain that I was curious because we’ve invested money
under Department of Finance, real property taxation, the Members have supported
upgrades in what we call in generic pictometry or the upgraded of the aerial
photograph and for our records, real property tax issues. I was just wondering if those
upgraded imagery has also been a benefit for your Department in your operational
requirements? And if you could maybe give us some comments, please?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Chair, and thank you for those questions. The pictometry, which is
basically the mapping system we use for our dispatching, it’s essential to our
dispatching needs whether we’re dispatching police, fire, medics. And we asked, in
our contract, for the basic service, and, I know, the Department of Planning, I guess,
has a little more detailed addition to that basic package that they need or are required
of them. But we can’t necessarily do our job or we can’t do it to the extent we can do
it now, especially with all the geographical challenges we have in our County. And, we
have, again, three islands. We have to take care of rural areas in Hana, Molokai, and
Lanai. So definitely these are things that are needed to help us dispatch emergency
services to the community.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, ‘cause, I believe, the division is asking us to consider improving the
level of the pixels so that there is even greater clarity, greater definition for their needs
as well as we think would be beneficial for your needs also, Chief.
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Right, any additional improvements to the system would definitely benefit
us as well as Department of Planning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, we appreciate your comments, Chief, this morning.
questions for Chief or Captain or Mr. Pacheco?

Any

MR. JAKUBCZAK: Chair, if I may? I believe, in that system that you’re talking about, I’m a
member of the E9 11 Board, and most if not all of that, our cost can be reimbursed by
the State Board.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that information, Chief. We appreciate that. Any questions
for the Department? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
greater

Just for clarification.

Are you suggesting that if we upgrade to the

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Pixel level.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --pixel yeah, that the E9 11 can pick up that additional cost?
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MR. JAKUBCZAK: Just the basic coverage that we ask for. Yeah. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: That was my understanding. So okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello, any questions for the Department?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair, thank you. And I’m still interested in this document
and trying to look at... ‘cause very supportive of the Department. I mean, they do such
a great service and I always feel they are very deserving and needing of, you know,
giving the best to accomplish the public safety. And thefts at this forensic facility
that’s totally unacceptable. Wow the nerve, I mean, it’s a police facility and people are
stealing right there in front of it all. And then this Countywide camera project also, I
mean, we talk about wanting eyes and ears out there when our officers and people
cannot assist. So, I think, it’s really important. But my main question here is in
regards to this improvements to the firing range that you’re look for, which is in
Ukumehame, and this is a question maybe for Mr. Baz. Can a firing range be
considered a park? I only ask because of park assessment fees, Chair.
MR. BAZ: Yes, Mr. Chair? Actually that firing range is a park.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. BAZ: It is managed by the Parks Department.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
District, Ukumehame?

And is that in the West Maui District or the South Maui

MR. BAZ: I believe, it’s in the West Maui District.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. So, alright, just a general question, for me to ponder
and look into.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I’m...
MR. JAKUBCZAK: And, Chair, if I may?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Park assessment money from West Maui can only be spent and used in
West Maui, so that was a good question.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Very good. But, I guess, there’s been an ongoing
debate between myself and the South Maui representative, who insists that this area
is South Maui, and I keep saying go look at the map and I beg to differ, so.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: I can, I’ll arbitrate that for you folks. Any other questions? Chief, you had
something you wanted to share?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Chair, if I can make comment on some of the comments that
Chair Cochran [sic] mentioned. The request for the camera and the security for the
forensic facility, we looked into that earlier ‘cause we had some issues. And it’s just
come back again as issues recently that even after the budget had been discussed and
submitted. So, those are things that we definitely need to take care of. And, again,
maybe future we’ll work with the County and work on those issues. But those are
issues that came up, both in court and just a couple of days ago, at our main facility.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you for that further insight. In regards to this
firing range improvements though, classroom and all this, I mean, you really want to
provide a whole, I don’t know, structures and what have you there?
MR. JAKUBCZAK: Yes, Chair, I mean, Councilmember Cochran. Right now as it stands our
training out there would have to take place in Wailuku or Kihei at a station, in a
classroom setting, and then transport out to the current firing range. So you lose
valuable time in that and it extends the amount of time you can do classroom work.
We do some classroom work at the facility itself, the firing range, but, again, not in a
classroom setting. It’s basically outdoors and trying to get everyone’s attention to
understand what’s going on and for the safety of the people on the range.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right, okay. Well thank you very much. And thank you for
that time, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You’re welcome. Other questions, Members? Okay having none, thank
you very much, Chief, Captain, for your assistance. And, Mr. Pacheco, thank you for
your assistance to the Committee this morning. Okay, Human Concerns it’s your
turn.

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND HUMAN CONCERNS
MR. BAZ: We’ll have our Director of Human Concerns, Carol Reimann, as well as our CIP
Coordinator, Wendy Taomoto, to discuss the project in the Department, and it’s
related to their Kaunoa Senior Center in Spreckelsville, and a requirement for some
sewer upgrades. It’s also on Page 782.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven-eight-two, Members. Director, comments please?
MS. REIMANN: Aloha, Chair, Members of the Committee. Good morning, and thank you so
much for having us here. So, basically, this manhole, sewer service manhole at
Kaunoa Service Center is so that we can comply with Chapter 14.25A. That requires
manhole for each service lateral that connects tO the sewer main line. With me here
today is Wendy Taomoto to answer any technical questions you may have about this.
Thank you.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So how long has the lateral been in place?
MS. REIMANN: We’re not quite sure when Kaunoa was constructed, but since construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And when is this requirement came about?
MS. TAOMOTO: Wendy Taomoto. The requirement came about in 2015 when the.. .actually
it wasn’t the Department. It was the Energy Commission if you recall had a power
purchase agreement. This site was part of that and they installed PV on the carports.
And when they applied for that building permit it triggered a letter from the
Department of Environmental Management requiring the property sewer service
manhole, so 2015.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For a photovoltaic electrical project we doing one sewer CIP?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, and it was further required or reiterated when we.. .Management
assisted... is assisting currently Kaunoa with the installation of lobby doors in their
main facility.
It was reminded that the property sewer service manhole is a
requirement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why wouldn’t this be the responsibility of DEM to put in the manhole?
MS. TAOMOTO: We’ve had this discussion with DEM on multiple projects. I think, I believe,
like five years ago we did a manhole at the Wailuku Fire Station also for this PV thing.
But their policy is it’s the owners responsibility, which is the department seeking the
permit.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I can see if they were touching a plumbing fixture, a waterline, a toilet.
We putting one PV panel. Mr. Carroll, any questions you may wanna ask on this one?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, sounds absurd, but so we may need to change the
County Code ‘cause the County Code is dictating this to happen this way?
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s part of, I would assume part of the electrical/plumbing codes be
upgraded. It’s part of the subdivision requirements. I mean, it’s either State law. I
would assume County Code, Department of Health rules and regulations. Did I miss
something, Mr. Baz? EPA, State Department of Health.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And, I guess, justification is in the end, we are a County
sewer system at risk from receiving undesirable waste material from discharging into
the system. So, I don’t know, Chair. This is something that has to be done and
putting us at risk if we don’t then we need to do it.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: The manhole... can you tell us some better information on the location of
the project, please? Is it on the State highway, Hana Highway?
MS. TAOMOTO: The sewer line is in the roadway, but
least two feet or two feet inside the property. It’s
look at the Kaunoa Center the manholes are on
lateral, sorry, that we have to install the manholes

the manholes are required to be at
on the owner’s property. So, if you
the Paia side of the driveway.., the
to connect to. There’s two laterals.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And for this manhole it’s on County right-of-way going to be? Is
that what it is?
MS. TAOMOTO: No, the manholes are required to be installed on the property, the Kaunoa
property, not the right-of-way. And it’s...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, okay, ‘cause most of us see manholes in the streets.
MS. TAOMOTO: No, that’s why, Chair, it’s called property sewer service manhole.
required to be inset on your property, two feet inside the property.

It’s

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch, questions? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I love this request because it shows everyone what everyone else has to
put up with in the County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand that. I understand that, Mr. White.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And I’m happy to reject this just on the principle of it. So that’s just
my feeling.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well that’s the authority of the Council.
Mr. Couch?

We are not required to fund.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, you know, some of this came, we
did in, I believe, it was in Ms. Cochran’s Committee, we did talk about this and tweak
the law. But still we knew this was gonna come up and they’re doing it in our building
right out here on the corner on Wells Street and on Kaohu Street. They’re doing
exactly the same thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well I just find it interesting when they impose certain requirements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We did that.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: No, I understand that, Mr. Couch, but, you know, years ago, 9th floor
made renovations. They did it. Council went in to do renovations here, next thing we
know, we gotta upgrade what is that, the intake valve in the front of the building. We
had to do all these other additions for our renovation, out of our budget. I found that
interesting that when the 9th floor did theirs they weren’t required to do those
improvements since they went before our improvements. So, I would say that the
Department should not underestimate the knowledge of the Members. Any other
questions on this project request? Next.
COUNCILMEMEER COCHRAN: Sorry, real quickly.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So are we to expect future proposals such as what we see
here today due to the County Code changes at all, Ms. Taomoto?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes. For instance, if another facility, a County facility comes in for a
building permit and the letter, when the staff at Department of Environmental
Management reviews the building permit, and they can’t find a property sewer service
manhole, a letter will be generated notifying them, us, the property owner to provide
information where the location is. And if there is no property service sewer manhole
one will need to be installed. I wanted to clarify because you’re asking the question,
the first permit you come in for, you’re exempt. But the second permit it triggers the
installation, that’s why you’re seeing the construction going on now instead of before.
It was the second permit we applied for that triggered this sewer manhole in the front.
So, the first one we were exempt, which was the PV on Kaunoa. But this second one,
which is the lobby, it’s kind of like they tried to put a heavier hand down and say now
it’s required.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. But you didn’t add in any more fixtures or any added
to the infrastructure, I mean, you added more doors maybe they thought you were
gonna add more bodies to walk in these doors or I don’t know. So is it safe to assume
that one manhole equals $20,000 or varies?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So what the hell you guys did with the 120,000 we gave you before? It
says encumbered, expended, 120,000. It ain’t a $40,000 project.
MS. TAOMOTO: I would defer to the Budget Director. We didn’t... that prior encumbrance
should be zero. The 120 may be the change in the project title maybe, Sandy, because
Kaunoa is doing the lobby improvements.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
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MR. BAZ: Yeah, I’d have to double-check on that of why that number is in there. It could be
the Kaunoa lobby improvements, but I can verify that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions, Members? Next.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, that’s all for the Department of Housing and Human Concerns.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Members, I’m hungry. We’re gonna take a break before
we take up the next department. We’ll be in recess till 1:30 p.m.
.(gavel).
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

11:54 a.m.
1:32 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel).
Let’s get back to work, Members. There is light at the end of
the tunnel.
Okay, we’ll bring up the Department of Transportation.
We have
Mr. Takamori, our Deputy, present with us this afternoon to go through their request
with this Committee. So, Members, please turn to Page 792 in your book, please.
This is under bus stops and shelters.
.

.

.

.

.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Eight ninety two?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Eight ninety two.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Eight-nine-two. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: You said 792.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, no. Well, I apologize. It was an after lunch test.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We all pass.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Director, if you would please run through your project.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
MR. TAKAMORI: Good afternoon, Budget Chair Hokama, Council Chair White, and County
Council Committee members. Thank you very much for having us. today to go over
our CIP project, Bus Stops and Shelters. We are requesting for this upcoming fiscal
year $1 million, 200,000 for design, and 800,000 for construction using, I guess,
general bond funds. We currently have 28 bus stops/shelters built. We have 9
currently under construction.
We have 10 under design.
And based on our
projections, we are expecting to have a total of 53 or so bus stops/shelters built before
we start looking at just improving the bus stops and potentially putting down benches.
If you guys have any questions, we’ll be happy to answer them. Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you have like a bird’s-eye perspective of your route map and where
each stop or shelter is located on your routing, Mr. Director? You know, so we could
see like maybe the island of Maui, you show Upcountry route, and then, you know,
wherever it be, Kahului Shopping Center, stop here, Pukalani Shopping Center, stop
here. Do you have those things and what is already constructed and what is planned
for within the system?
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes, thank you. We don’t have.. .we can create a map that actually shows
all of our stops that have shelters. But we don’t actually have one that just is
specifically for locations of where we have bus stop shelters built. I do have a list that
shows all of our current locations that we actually do have shelters built. And, I
guess, your question was you’re just wondering in the various locations where all of
the shelters are built?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we want a visual map instead of a narrative.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay, we can work on creating one, that shouldn’t be too bad.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, if you don’t have it then, you know, we understand.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah, I don’t have it. I don’t have something like that with me right now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But I think, that would be good for your overall Departmental documents.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes, that’s a good idea. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, questions? Mr. Carroll, any questions on transportation on this
project?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. The bus stop that we’re putting inside,
those run about $200,000? How much does it cost to put in one bus stop?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. It truly varies. So, it can range, so, in the past we’ve seen
projects range from $43,000 up to 124,000. So, it truly depends on what’s going on at
that location. So, when we go out with our design, we contract out the designs to
Fukumoto Engineering, so when we go out with them we typically walk around the site
where our current bus stop is and we try to find the area that wouldn’t throw
surprises or cost a lot. So some places we haven’t moved forward on would be where
we have a stop that’s kind of right at a drainage, like a drainage sewer line. So, we
won’t actually improve that type of area because we know we would have to move the
pipes or move, you know, dig into the road and move those sewer lines. So, it truly
depends on the site.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The other question I had was how hard are we looking on
trying to get bus stops to where the bus can actually pull at least part way off the
-
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road? I mean, Paia, well you know how that is, yeah? And some of the other places,
and Upcountry by Pukalani Community Center, on the side. It seems the engineering
you could make it, but how much consideration in putting the stop, or you put into
trying to get it set back somewhat for the bus itself?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. Yeah, I guess, the hardest part about having pullouts is the
County right-of-way. So, if we put stops in front of like a park, because the County
owns the park we typically would work with Parks Department to find out, hey, can we
take a little bit of their land to be able to put a pullout in. But areas where there isn’t
enough County right-of-way, it makes it very difficult to put pullouts. So areas like at
the beginning of Kihei, on say the Kihei Canoe Club area, that area was on a, I guess,
a beach park area and so since we had the control we were able to put a pullout but to
put any pullouts down South Kihei Road is very difficult because there isn’t enough
County right-of-way. So, if we are able to we try to do that but in most cases it’s very
difficult.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, the Pukalani one I was looking to its right in front of
the Community Center, which is ours too. And, Paia, there is also if you move it down
there’s enough space over there to be able to have the bus go inside. It’s kind of
dangerous Paia. Over there and cars just don’t stop, you know, they start whipping
around over there. Anyway as long as it’s, I think, that should be a priority though
trying to see if we can fit them into where we can get the bus out of traffic. It would
make it a lot safer. Thank you, Chair.
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments, Mr. Carroll. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And, thank you, Department, for being
here this afternoon. I’m just curious as in if you’re looking at the bigger picture in
future developments to come online and also to garner some monies, you know, to
build infrastructure through them as they’re progressing through permitting and what
have you, zoning changes, and et cetera. So, I wanna focus mainly in West Maui, have
you folks looked into that, say the Kahoma Village project or any others that are
looking to be built in the future?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Takamori?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. I guess, if you’re specifically asking about West Maui, we don’t
have anything that we currently have in the works with developers in West Maui. I
know that we met with one that was kinda a really large development up, I don’t know
if it’s up by the airport area or surrounds the airport area. So, we did have meeting
with them where we said that if you were to start developing we would like an area
where we can potentially have bus stops. But, in general, on Maui island, there’s a
few developments that we are currently... or a few developers we are currently working
-
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with such as the old Maui Lu as well as on Piikea. I guess, that development right
behind Azeka’s or sandwich.. .yeah. We are working with them to put bus stops in for
us. And so, we’re slowly getting the momentum where if it will work with our routes or
potential expansion of routes we are having them dialogue with as we move forward
now.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, and that’s getting a type of cost sharing perspective to
it too? Or we’re just providing it for them completely and they are not taking any kind
of funding to help assist?
MR. TAKAMORI: They are actually paying for it to be put in, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Excellent, very good. So how could I get a certain
area in West Maui to have something constructed? ‘Cause, I know, prior to Ms. Winer
leaving it was unfortunate that this one heavily used stop is sorely needed in the hot
Lahaina sun and what have you to have some type of coverage and amenity for the
people there. A lot of kupuna. .this is all Lahainaluna Road, I’m speaking about. And
unfortunately did make your folks list when you did your go-round in West Maui. So,
very disappointed in that part. It was a day late and a dollar short in getting it on the
list, so how can I now move forward to working with you to get something done there?
.

MR. TAKAMORI: We are open with having the dialogue with you.
meeting and sit down and we can talk about it.

So, if we can set up a

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. TAKAMORI: We’re...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Funding-wise for this go-round budget, Chair, is there?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I am open to your proposal. So, if you want us to consider that
Lahainaluna site that you’ve just mentioned to the Director, we’ll be open to it. Cut
something and you can add this.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, ‘cause this monies really isn’t pinpointing specific
district or.. .right? I mean, really general in its description and justification I’m
noticing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so the way it’s presented

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that how I’m.. .yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --would not make the Chair’s requirement, minimum requirement to make
it in for the budget ordinance.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, right.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Not in this language of the way it’s being written.
won’t make the Chair’s cut.

Currently written it

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, thank you, Department, for your
comments. I do have some questions for you. When you design these do you work
with the Department of Public Works as far as where they think the best area is?
Because you mentioned two that I have, one that I have great disappointment in and
then another that has a potential for disaster. So, let’s ask first, do you work with
Public Works?
MR. TAKAMORI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. We actually do. I guess, in regards to when we first select the
potential bus stop site to improve it’s based on the ridership count. So, if it’s a high
ridership boarding area, we tend to look and phase it in that way. In regards to
working with Public Works, our designs after we meet with our like Fukumoto
Engineering, and we find a really.... oh a site that will work in that location, all of those
drawings then go through the process that’s reviewed by Public Works. So, we do get
signed off by Public Works.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s not the same thing. That’s sign off by Public Works. I’m
talking about in the design. Let me give you an example, Maui Lu. Your bus stop is
right at the end of the T currently right now going heading south. There’s really strong
talk with Public Works about putting a roundabout there. Do you even know that?
MR. TAKAMORI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. We are actually.. .we’ve been having meetings with.. .we’ve had
meetings with the contractor or consultant that’s working on that project along with
Public Works, and our engineer, and Don, our Director, in regards to that. So right
now we’re looking at moving our stop towards the Whale Sanctuary and not having a
stop right at end of the T. So, we did hear that there’s been talks about having a
roundabout, but, yeah, Maui Lu is planning to build the shelters south of Kaonoulu in
front of the Whale Sanctuary. So, we won’t be at that T intersection.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Alright, thank you. The other one that we’ve always had
concern on and still have no resolution is the one you mentioned at the Kihei Canoe
Club. You mentioned the southbound one, but the northbound one is in the most
worst place and somebody is gonna get killed there one day. It’s just that people
are... our kids are crossing the street in front of a bus, people are moving
around.. .going around the bus illegally, and it’s in the most worst place you could
imagine over there. And I’m asking if you could consider moving that or working with
Public Works to make it a safer spot.
MR. TAKAMORI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. In regards to that stop, I believe, there’s been conversation
from the Public Works Department with us in regards to your concerns. So, we are
happy to work with them to figure out the best way to make it a safer area for our
pedestrians definitely.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And I’m just asking.. .I’m reluctant to fund
anymore, to go ahead with funding anymore until it looks like you guys are working a
little bit closer with the other departments. That’s my biggest concern. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We appreciate your comments, Mr. Couch. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, am I to understand that you’re not working closely with
the Public Works Department or are you?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. I would say that we have had or are in dialogues with them.
So, I wouldn’t say that we don’t work with them. We typically do because in order for
us to be able to build bus stop shelters, we need to work with them because we are
building off the side of their roadways that they control.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So you mentioned about you need to have 53
total bus stops. Is that throughout all of your routes totals to 53? And you have
about 28 completed?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. Our current plan is to have up to 53 and that doesn’t include
the four stops or four shelters that is being built by developers. So, if developers
build, and then once they build then they turn that over to us, and then we, we’ll add
it to our list. But, yeah, and right now it looks like we’re gonna be having a total of 53
stops not including the 4 shelters that I spoke about earlier.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So and this should cover it with the 53 and then you have
about 9 under construction and 10 being designed?
MR. TAKAMORI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So when that’s completed you just about six more to reach
your total. And so, these fundings are part of the 19, or part of the 6, or is it total?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. The funding that, yeah, the funding that we are requesting for
will pretty much sum up the next designs that we wanna build, which includes the
State stops that I spoke about earlier on Tuesday. So pretty much next fiscal year if
we truly decide to stop improving our bus stops locations and not putting benches
down or anything like that then this upcoming fiscal year would be pretty much our
last fiscal year asking for a million dollars.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO:
But my question was about your total 53, your 28
completed, your 9 under design, your 10 under construction, or somewhat like that?
MR. TAKAMORI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: And then so you have out of that 53, 6, this funding you’re
asking for now?
MR. TAKAMORI: The.. .I’m sorry could you repeat that one more time?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So how many, just how many shelters are you using, this
monies to build how many more shelters?
MR. TAKAMORI: The million dollars, we are looking at, let’s see, so the 800,000 for
construction, for Fiscal Year ‘17, we’re looking to build 8 stops. And then the
200,000, for design, we’re looking to design probably 6 State stops and potentially look
into seeing what it’s gonna cost to just improve the stops and not have a shelter but
have benches. So that would give us a good indication of if that’s something that we
wanna move forward with or not.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: But is that including the one under construction now or
under design now, I’m sorry?
MR. TAKAMORI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Under design because your numbers
MR. TAKAMORI: I’m sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --you said total 53.
-
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MR. TAKAMORI: Right. So what we have.., so what I was mentioning earlier when I said that
we had nine under construction and ten under design, those monies are in... it’s been
funded and that’s how we were able to move forward with it. So that nine and ten are
not.. .we’re not using the monies for next fiscal year for that, the nine under
construction and ten under design.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I understand.
MR. TAKAMORI: They’re under contract right now.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, airight. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. So do you have the construction funds available to
you for those that are under design? Or is that what you’re asking for this year?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. We actually have.., so the ten under design right now we have
monies for construction to.. .we’re planning to go out to bid soon for those ten under
design. But we know we don’t have enough money to actually construct those ten
designs. So a few of those designs will then be moved to next fiscal year that will then
be part of the State construction stops.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And then this year and...well Fiscal ‘16 and ‘17, you’re using bond
money and then you’re switched to Highway Funds for 2018. Is there a reason why
we’re not using Highway Funds this year?
MR. BAZ: I’ll answer that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. It’s a matter of funding availability. Highway Fund is short. We don’t
wanna have to, I mean, we’re already proposing to raise the tax, the fuel tax this year
And they’re still gonna be kinda short. So what we do is we project and hope that
initially, you know, I mean, eventually they’ll be enough cash for this type of project.
But we... if there’s not enough cash then that’s why we’re proposing bond.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So, for 2018, are you projecting the increase in the gas tax if it goes
through will provide adequate revenues to both increase our pavement work and
spend money on shelters and on the bus needs?
-
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MR. BAZ: The fuel tax will definitely assist in that goal. I mean, you know, we’re
looking.., having to look.., we’ll probably have to look at other revenue sources as well.
The Highway Fund is a challenged fund when it comes to revenue as we discussed.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, so I was a little surprised to see Highway Funds used for this.
MR. BAZ: Again, you know, it helps when we’re looking at future needs and forecasting what
expenditures, you know, the six-year capital plan if we have the capabilities we try to
forecast what’s needed and using our funding priority levels, right, you know, so if we
fund with grants or assessments, great. If not, cash, if we have enough cash. If we
don’t have enough cash then we do borrowing. So, it’s still based on that structure.
So, we try to plan for that we have enough cash. But when it comes down to that year
then we’ll determine whether or not there’s enough cash to actually fund it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Thank you.
Ms. Cochran?

Any other questions on Transportation’s request?

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. I guess, my follow-up question is if I do
find funds, and speak to you folks, what are the odds of you actually being able to
build something out there?
MR. TAKAMORI: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director?
MR. TAKAMORI: Depending on what location you’re mentioning. In order for us to build
something we have to design it first. So, if, basically you can definitely work with us
and we can utilize the design monies to design that stop. And then use what we have
based on whatever leftover of construction we can then use that to build the stop
again. In order for us to move forward we would have to do a design on that location.
So, if you’re saying that we... it didn’t make our list then mostly likely we don’t have a
design for that location.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah. So, I think, in next fiscal year we’re asking for 200,000
we’re looking at doing the State design stops as well as a few potential looking
improvements to bus stops and potentially having benches. I think, it will
with considering the location that you are mentioning to potentially look at
design for that stop.

because
at doing
be okay
doing a

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, it seems pretty straightforward in a sense
where I’m discussing. Somebody’s already put their own personal benches out there
at this point.
-

60

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Director, tell us this afternoon, every stop is redesigned? You don’t
have a standard design for all stops and it’s the only site work that would be the
difference?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that down the road, you gonna say we’re coming in for 25 XXX size
dimensions because it’s all standard for all the bus shelters and this is our
maintenance program? But is every shelter gonna be different from one another?
MR. TAKAMORI: Thank you. In regards to how the stops are built, pretty much if you look
at a straight down satellite view of our stop, it’s primarily always designed similar.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
So, we know we look at the picture everything is green should be
standard. The only thing, I think, you can ask us for to be different is the site work of
the pad.
MR. TAKAMORI: Oh, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: But the design itself should be standardized

--

MR. TAKAMORI: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --so maintenance, everything else down the road is all standardized,
similar dimensions, similar materials, because we are not gonna pay for 50 individual
different type of shelters.
MR. TAKAMORI: Yeah, so, yeah, in regards to the picture, yeah, everything above the ground
is primarily standard. We do have a few different designs for our shelter roof type. So
near the ocean it’s more of a like a road or barrel roof and then in town it’s more of
this pitch roof. So, but pretty much, yeah, it’s either or and so
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, good.
MR. TAKAMORI: --yeah everything above ground is pretty standard.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Ms. Cochran, why don’t you talk to Engineering in Public Works, ask
them what would their estimate be for the site work at the location you looking at, and
then you can let us know on what your recommendations would be.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Anything else, Members, on this project? Anything you’d like to
add, Mr. Director, or Ms. Yogi, before we finish up this review of this project?
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MR. TAKAMORI: No, we appreciate your guys’ support on Transportation. And thank you
for having us today.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. TAKAMORI: If you guys have any other questions then just send it to us
CHAIR HOKAMA: Give us the specific

--

--

MR. TAKAMORI: --and w&11 be happy to answer.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --sites you looking at for this year’s money request and then break out
about how much you wanna spend at each project site that adds up to your total
request on this page.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We work with details.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay. We can do that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, so and that will help us give your project a full consideration.
MR. TAKAMORI: Okay, and if, Councilmember Cochran, if you can also send us the location
you were mentioning, that will be great. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Director. Ms. Yogi, thank you for your presence.
MS. YOGI: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You need something, Mr. Ratte? Mr. Baz, if you could maybe help
out Mr. Ratte. You missing something, Mr. Ratte?
MR. RATTE: My cell phone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we have it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that it?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we have it. Thank you for at least identifying that for us. Thank
you. Okay, Management, put on your flak jackets, come on down. Mr. Baz, you have
anything you wanna...

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT
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MR. BAZ: No, just, Mr. Chair, we’re on Page 787. We discussed the Public Safety radio
system in Department of Police, so the first project they’ll be discussing is the
Waikapu Baseyards.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Ching?
MR.

CHING:
Aloha, Chair.
Aloha, Members.
Good afternoon.
I’m gonna let
Wendy Taomoto, our CIP Manager, start off on the details of our proposed CIP
projects, and I’ll jump in when the opportunity arises.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Before Ms. Taomoto starts, Mr. Ching, why don’t you tell us at this point
in time how many projects has your Department undertaken on CIP, and how many
projects you have completed?
MR. CHING: Chair, I believe, the response has been submitted to the Committee. I do not
have the details of that response with me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting response, Mr. Ching. Thank you. Ms. Taomoto, you can start
your comments.
MS. TAOMOTO: Okay, the first project on Page 787, is the Waikapu Baseyards. The master
plan was completed by staff and a consultant. And the request for Fiscal Year 2017 is
to complete archaeological services.
The specifics of that is to procure an
archaeologist to prepare a Archaeological Inventory Survey plan and to complete the
field testing. Very similar to Mokuhinia archaeological inventory work going on now.
This was triggered by recent discovery of iwi on the project site. And as we understood
from SHPD, this Archaeological Inventory Survey requirement is the first step in their
review process for this project site. And our request is for $300,000. The second
request, I’ll let Mr. Ching talk about for Fiscal Year ‘17, is for planning and
consolidation of facilities.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching?
MR. CHING: Thank you, Chair. We’re requesting $500,000 to be used in the planning and
organization stages for actually getting the departments who will be involved in
relocating activities to the Central Baseyard, to actually get all of that organized, get
the personnel, the necessary personnel movements and changes, and administrative
elements of the project to be organized and put into a workable project plan. That’s
what we’re proposing on this phase of the project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions, Members? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Have we done cost estimates or what this is likely to cost when fully
implemented with the construction of each of the baseyards, the design and
construction of all the baseyards, and then comparing that to what or what not
moving ahead with this would cost? And what other options there might be? This
looks like a really big-ticket item.
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MR. CHING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching?
MR. CHING: Member White, in the actual plan that has already been conducted there are
cost estimates for each segment of the project. And it’s basically for the physical
buildout of the project. What part of the consulting money and planning money that
we’re asking for this year entails is the actual business case side of the project. So
what you’re asking for is whether or not this really makes or can pay for itself in
certain periods of time. All that needs to be researched, calculated, and put forward.
Right now the whole plan just outlines the physical construction of the facility and
that’s the only cost estimates that have been put forward.
So consolidating
operations, moving operations, savings in economies of scale, that has not been
worked out yet.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
answers?

And so with the allocation of $500,000, we’ll be getting all those

MR. CHING: That’s the intent, yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And for, Ms. Taomoto, what is the extent of the archaeological
services? What area?
MS. TAOMOTO: This project sheet is titled Wailuku Baseyards. So, if we’re given the
funding I would need to clarify if we can... because, you know, how we had discussed
when we acquired property where the community had concerns about placing the
Waikapu Baseyard across sheet from the residential subdivision, the Waikapu
Country Town. So, we had proposed moving the baseyards farther away towards
Kuihelani Highway. So, the actual 100 acres that was purchased for the Waikapu
Baseyards is not the final location of the Waikapu Baseyard because of this concern
from the community.
So, we had always discussed about a consolidation
resubdivision.
So, I will probably need to consult with Corporation Counsel if,
because of the title of the project sheet, if I can, the archaeological scope can take
place over an area that is not designated, the TMK that we acquired. Because the
intent of this project is not place the Waikapu Baseyard where we purchased the 100
acres, but closer to Kuihelani Highway. So, I think, a clarification because, you know,
we haven’t done the consolidation and lot subdivision.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So are you suggesting that you’re not ready to spend the 300,000 until
that happens?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, we’re just gonna.. .we’re gonna just request the.. .if not we’re just
gonna have to survey the 100 acres we acquired. It’s just a clarification on the project
sheet if that determines the location because the picture that you have here with the
different colored squares, that’s the master plan location for the Waikapu Baseyard to
address the community concerns about putting that baseyard across of the residential
-
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subdivision. We had located this to the, towards Maalaea end of the property, closest
to Kuihelani Highway.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah my recollection was, in our discussions, the baseyard was going
be moved where it was mostly aligned with the highway, not the Waiale Road
extension. And this shows it extending it all the way to Waiale when my recollection
was we were trying to stay from the park and stay away from the residential.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, the baseyard if you look at this colored drawing, I assume you all
have colored, the first yellow square is the Fire Department. Putting them there will
allow them to have easier access to the residential areas. The rest of the squares, the
CDA is Civil Defense... the future Civil Defense. And then the green square next to the
that to the right is a nursery sod farm for the Parks Department as well as the darker
green squares there, Administrative Offices. The rest of that colored squares is the
baseyard of, as you know, you know, the Public Works baseyard, the Environmental,
the Water baseyard, the Parks... no sorry, I did mention Parks, yeah. The three
baseyards as well as the consolidated fuel and car washing stuff and maintenance
facilities.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And do you have another map that shows this alignment with respect
to the complete, is it 309 acres?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yes, we can forward that map.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, that would be appreciated. Thank you.
MS. TAOMOTO: To include the 100 and 209 acres.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So, you note here for the Waikapu Baseyards
that you have Building 1, Building 2, Building 3. What departments are in your plans
to occupy Building 1, Building 2, Building 3?
MS. TAOMOTO: So, we’ve kind of, you know, trying to put as much information as we can in
our six-year CIP. But like Mr. Ching had mentioned the discussions on consolidation
of employees across departments is what he’s intending that $500,000 would bring
about that discussion. But from a planning perspective when we looked at the types
of buildings that we, Water, for instance, warehousing. We’re looking at maybe
Building 1 being the Water, managing the consolidated warehouse, where you have
various pipes and materials stored and they kind of manage a warehouse. Building 2,
you know, Building 1, 2 and 3, can...it’s a priority thing. They don’t have to come
first. Water doesn’t have to come first. Public Works could come first with Building 1,
maybe doing the maintenance facility.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
There’s nothing definite.

So part of your planning, there’s nothing definitive then?

MS. TAOMOTO: That’s why we need the planning.. .that’s why he’s saying we need the
planning money. We felt like we wanted to give you guys an indication of how much
the building/warehouses would cost versus just leaving it blank and saying give us
the planning money. And then my engineers took a look at the size of the lot, and
they came up with a estimate through their discussions with the consultant on this is
the estimated cost for steel, simple warehouse steel buildings, not administrative
offices.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Ms. Taomoto, so actually when you, say you get a planning
consultant or contractor however, I’m not really familiar, but I would think, you know,
you would say we need this building. We need this warehouse for this particular
department, and they in turn would plan it how to accommodate what your actual
conceptual vision is. Is that how it works or they come up with the plan?
MS. TAOMOTO: Are you talking about the Department specifically?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Well I’m asking you who belongs.. .who would occupy which
building?
MS. TAOMOTO: And I’m trying to say that the planning monies that he’s requesting for a
half-a-million dollars this year would initiate conversations in terms of there’s a lot
union discussions that need to take place first for some these consolidations of
operations between, for instance, Water has mechanics, ‘cause they have light
vehicles. Public Works has mechanics. They have light vehicles. All the departments
of have cars. They can’t get it serviced fast enough, they contract out. So, it just
depends on the outcome of the planning and consolidation, but I can let Mr. Ching
expand on that.
MR. CHING: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching?
MR. CHING: So, we do have, one second, we actually, and forgive us for not doing this
sooner, we do have copies of the master plan that we can transmit to you folks, and
we will do that shortly. But, again, the plan was built with some foresight involved for
trying to consolidate and take advantage of economies of scale and to reduce
redundant activities across departments. So, but, the plan focused really on the
physical construction of the consolidated baseyard. The plan did not go into the
myriad of issues that are gonna be involved in actually creating these new
organizations, consolidating various operations from different departments into
cohesive operations. For instance, like vehicle maintenance, taking that from three or
four different departments and putting it into one vehicle maintenance operation. I’m
mean that task in itself is gonna be very, very massive. So, the business side of the
project really has not been addressed yet and that’s what we’re asking for the
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consulting money for. It’s in the end I’m afraid it will probably not even be enough
money knowing how these things are. But at least we can start addressing some of
the questions that you’re asking. And who goes first? Who does what? Who decides,
you know, what activities are gonna be combined and what the timing for that is? So
there’s a lot of unanswered questions
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah.
MR. CHING: --on the business side. And that’s as good as we can get right now. But we do
have a comprehensive plan that we will transmit for the physical construction of the
baseyard.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Ching.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so under the operating impact
narrative it says facility will be treated as separate CIP projects, which seems, I don’t
know, is that a good thing. I’m not really sure. So the first yellow block Fire
would... monies would be expended via that Department that’s why, and they would
have to do all their planning, and design. So treat it as separately each, an individual
square up there is gonna be doing their own thing, at different timing, at different, I
mean, it just sounds a little complicated, and a lot to coordinate, and organize versus
an overall complete management job, to manage the total start to finish buildout. So,
if I can just get comment on how is this supposed to roll out and work?
MS. TAOMOTO: Thank you, Member Cochran. That’s why we kind had what we felt was
accomplishable, well consolidations with Building 1, like mentioning maybe vehicle or
warehousing, so that type of building is for a simple warehouse building. If it’s, for
instance, if it’s the Department of Public Works, and they’re gonna do a maintenance
facility, we hope that their Department would be able to oversee the design contract
for that facility, but they may not. We’re doing the Department of Public Works’
Molokai Baseyard facility design oversight. And if it’s fire or police, it’s likely it’s gonna
come back to Management’s, my staff, to oversee the contract. But what I’m going on
when we say this, when we said this, is because it actually goes in that department’s
CIP. It goes in their department’s CIP but then Department of Management assists
with the contract management. So, though you might hear me, or my staff, you know,
be in charge of the project, like on Molokai Baseyard, it’s actually in the Department of
Public Works’ CIP budget. And I’m not sure, I think, that’s we feel that’s the best way
to handle it because like, for instance, that Molokai one they didn’t realize they needed
our assistance, you know, till after it was budgeted, so.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Yeah, not quite sure if I truly understand at this
point, but I’m not an engineer person, so, don’t know what to ask. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, we should know whether they can bring in their projects on time and
on budget ‘cause I don’t appreciate overruns and delayed deliveries. So, since you
mentioned you have a consultant and you have a plan that you provided, where did
you get your money from since you show no previous encumbrance or expenditures
for this project? How did you pay for all this?
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah. We were not tasked with filling out the appropriation column, so, but
there is an expenditure for the master plan contract under HDR. I didn’t bring down
the exact amount of that contract, but, I believe, that was.. .would have been under
other or planning. As we understood when we submitted our project sheets that was
going to be populated. So, we didn’t fill out that portion of the sheet. But we can get
that information to you for the HDR contract.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Mr. Baz, how much did they spend so far on this project?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, you’re going to have to give me few minutes to look that up?.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, did the Committee hear right this afternoon that part of the
Kuihelani Highway portion, to get away from proposed housing, is on land we
currently do not own?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: I think, what she was trying to describe is the 100 acres that was purchased with
general obligation bond, and the 209 acres that was purchased with Open Space
Funds, and the requirement that, you know, the Open Space Fund did purchase be
inequitable transfer, if we’re not gonna build the baseyards on the 100 acres that we
purchased. We just need to make sure that the 100 acres wherever we build it on,
you know, it will be on the same 309-acre piece, but just not exactly where the
100 acres was purchased. And so, in previous recommendations it was that, you
know, we have to make sure that the value that the Open Space Fund purchased was
equivalent to whatever they’re getting to make sure that the funds were used
appropriate.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So why wasn’t the current contract to take care some of the archaeological
requirements now?
MS. TAOMOTO: Can you.. .what did you say? Can you repeat, please?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Why couldn’t your current consultant do some of the archaeological
requirements for this project now?
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MS. TAOMOTO: The appropriation that we sought and we contracted for did not include
archaeological.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so why didn’t you expand the scope?
MS. TAOMOTO:
We didn’t have enough funds to encumber that.
That’s why we’re
requesting it in Fiscal Year ‘17. There was insufficient funds to go complete any
archaeological with the funding that we were previously given, which is why we have
this request before you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, how much did we already give this project, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Like I said.. .let me... I’m still working on that. I gotta look it up in IFAS.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We understand, Mr. Baz, you need some time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are there other questions on this project or let’s move on? Okay, next
project. You know what before you take your, start the next project, we have some.
requirements for Staff and Members so we’re gonna take a five minute recess

(gavel)...
RECESS:
RECONVENE:
CHAIR HOKAMA:

..

2:26 p.m.
2:31 p.m.
.

(gavel)... Okay, next project, please. Department?

MS. TAOMOTO: The next project is on Page 789, New County Service Center. Unfortunately,
it was brought to our attention that we forgot to plan for the permit, building permit
review fee, and the DCAB fee, and the business park association review fee, and the
Maui Electric fees to submit the building permit. That’s involved when we submit the
building permit. So, the County Code currently only exempts us from paying the
building permit fee. It doesn’t exempt us from paying the plan review fee. So, the
break down for that is, our request is for 200,000. And the breakdown for that is the
building plan review fee is about 38,000; the DCAB fee, 9,800; the fire plan review fee,
4,800; and the Maui Electric fee, 145,000. So these fees are part of the plan, building
permit review process, and I can give you the project status. The project status is the
design is about 15 percent complete. They’re meeting with the individual divisions
and departments on the interior layout. They’ve notified me that they’re gonna be
ready for bid sometime in May or June of 2017, with probably a one-year construction
period, which brings us to occupancy in the summer of 2018.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Members, before I ask you for your questions, I’ll be up front, the
Chair doesn’t support this project. Mr. Carroll, questions? Not at the site.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not right this minute. I’d like to come back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran?
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Sorry what’s the.. .you got the grand total on that,
Ms. Taomoto? On the additional phase?
MS. TAOMOTO: The grand total we rounded it up. I kind of rounded it up when I gave it to
you, but it was 200,000. It’s 198,364.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh, okay, sorry, sorry. I thought the unfortunate was on top
of this 200
--

MS. TAOMOTO: Oh, no, no.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --it’s all this... okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: That is the breakdown of the 200.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay, I got it. Okay. Thank you. And don’t we have
our, what is that, revolving fund, permit review revolving fund, or something or other
that does not apply to our own selves to utilize? I mean...
CHAIR HOKAMA: It’s in the Code. The ordinance is specific on what is permitted to, how to
use those monies. So, we will need to check.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Alright, no more questions. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, we’re paying ourselves to review our
plans? So, we need to work on the Code, right? That would be in Ms. Cochran’s
Committee, I think? Or is that
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Portions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --would that be.. .pardon?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Portions.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah. ‘Cause this is crazy. One thing that I would like to see if
you haven’t done that already is--you know, we’re leasing space right now--how much
the lease costs are for whoever is moving into this location versus what it’s gonna cost
us to carry the note. I know, you did that a while back, but this looks like it’s gonna
be a new plan, plus we still have the whole DMV to deal with, ‘cause I could have
sworn two years ago we saw some sort of plan when we bought the land. You had a
picture and you were showing, I mean unless I was dreaming that there was a drawing
of what it was gonna look like and cost benefit and who was gonna move in there, two
years ago. So, I’m just a little flummoxed as to why it’s taking so long to get this far.
But, I know, we do have to have a facility to move into for DMV very soon and that was
-

70

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2016

the whole impetus for us buying that land, however many years ago that was. So, I’ m
just concerned is why it’s taking so long.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The impetus was Baldwin Beach land, not that site.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: On some people’s part.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I also get concern is that we.. .our approach to purchase
and then we don’t move for the reasons and the things that we decide to purchase to
relieve our extreme rentals. So, is it because you’re short-staffed that there is a slow
approach to this or should be there reconsideration to contract this out, or put it out
for consultants to do it? Or, I don’t know what’s the problem? I think, that’s what I
would like to know as to why we have such oversight and takes time for us to meet the
kind of needs that we have for these projects.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ching?
MR. CHING: Chair, I’m going to ask Ms. Taomoto to comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MS. TAOMOTO: The staff has been working on this and there is a consultant. It’s not.. .I’m
not an architect, neither is any of my staff. So, we do have an architect as well as a
whole team of engineering consultants to support that architect for this project. It
takes a lot of time because it’s a full interior buildout, not just shell. We’re not just
building the shell. We’re building the full interior buildout too for the departments
‘cause, you know, even if we built the shell, the departments would just have to come
back to Management staff to assist them in building out the shell. So, we have it all
under one contract. And it just takes time because, you know, now that each
department has to look at their current operations, which, you know, everybody wants
to have it better and more efficient. So, we’re working with each division, each section,
to make sure that this new facility takes care of all their needs, and making sure that,
you know, we address those things, and everybody has an opportunity to think really
hard what their needs are, and try to fit into this Service Center. They’re working on it
diligently. That’s all, I can just speak for, seeing my staff right across my office
working on this thing. As well as the repairs to the existing Service Center, we’re also
been assigned to do that repair work too, you know, as well as this. So, we’re trying to
balance the two, our time, with this and other projects. But, in my opinion, they’re
not waiting for us because of anything. When the consultant is able to do some work
and then get back to us, that’s when we do other work. So, it’s kind of like, it’s
moving. It just, it takes time because we wanna make sure and the employees have
expressed to us that they’re heard. And it just takes time to hear every section of
every department
--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
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MS. TAOMOTO: --for that facility.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, as I said this morning, I enjoy it when the County has to put up
with their own rules. And how much have we given you for design money so far?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MS. TAOMOTO: This contract, it’s newer, so, I can remember.
just say, it’s over 1.6 million. I think, it’s 1.6 and change.

It’s somewhere, I’m gonna

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Yeah my concern is that if you guys aren’t aware of the
County’s own rules, how are we supposed to trust you with moving other projects
forward? We purchased the property about 17 months ago, is that right? Or at
least
--

MS. TAOMOTO: Sounds about right.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --we authorized it at that point, so. Yeah, I guess, I don’t have any
questions. But just not feeling like we’re moving very quickly. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Well you know the Chair, my whole thing is that Wailuku is
the civic center. It’s the current policy of this County, and I’m going to make sure that
Wailuku stays the County seat and we keep our appropriate infrastructure in
Wailuku. And so, I will not support this project. We already moving the municipal
parking lot project forward, and I expect construction out of that, or we’ll find
somebody else to do the job. But that is, for me, a key component of revitalizing
Wailuku Town. This is the County’s seat, not Kahului. Next project.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, before we move on. We could discuss the... I did look up the Waikapu
Baseyard’s prior year numbers.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Please tell us what did you find out, Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: In Fiscal Year 2013, $2 .710 million was appropriated for the purchase and initial
master planning work. So, out of that $2,705,702.04 has been either encumbered or
expended, $2,515,458.04 was for the purchase. The balance of $199,000 was for the
master planning work, which all but $12,500 has been expended.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Ching, who is the contract with for consultant work?
MS. TAOMOTO: HDR.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: HDR?
MS. TAOMOTO: HDR, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You mean the firm out of Nebraska?
MS. TAOMOTO:
library.

I believe so whose office is.. .Maui Office is across the street next to the

CHAIR HOKAMA: Interesting. Next project.
MR. CHING: Chair, this is our Wailuku Town Surface and Satellite Parking project.
gonna ask Erin Wade from Planning to provide details.

I’m

MS. WADE: Thank you, Chair and Members. Good afternoon. The Wailuku Surface Parking
and Satellite Parking objective is to identif~r parking lots outside of the immediate
downtown core, meaning outside of the Wailuku municipal parking lot. You did, and
thank you, allocate 7.4 million last year for the design and development of that lot
specifically. And we are actively working on that today. But in order to accommodate
the construction activity, and the displacement of the stalls that’s gonna occur during
construction, and to some extent preconstruction as well, we do have to create
additional satellite parking outside of that municipal lot, and we cannot do that with
the 7.4 line item. So, we’re asking to do that. The 1.5 would allow for us to either
lease or acquire additional properties to put surface parking, to construct that
parking, and to possibly provide a circulator shuttle that would service that parking.
We do have a series of alternatives that we’re looking at right now. I’ve been working
with Guy Hironaka and Scott Teruya to determine fair-market rate for some of the
properties and with Department of Transportation to determine costs for a circulator
route that would service those. That is the intent of the 1.5.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How many stalls or how much space are you.. .you believe is required for
us to replace on a temporary basis and who created those agreements or
requirements?
MS. WADE: Mr. Chair...
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is our parking lot.
MS. WADE: Correct, Chair. Currently, there are 210 stalls in the Wailuku municipal
parking lot. And it is full on weekdays during peak demand times. Therefore to keep
the businesses and the surrounding area viable during construction, we feel it’s
important to provide adequate parking to keep those businesses in operation during
the time of construction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have a map of your locations and how much the approximate price is?
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MS. WADE: I do have a map that identifies different alternatives, which I would be happy to
provide to you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, that would be required if you want this to be considered for the, to
go to the next phase of the Budget process. Regarding the municipal parking lot
project since this in a way tied to it, where are you with that now? Are you.. .you have
consultants moving it to design stage? Where are you?
MS. WADE: Mr. Chair, we do have a consultant on staff who’s helping us to develop the
scope for the design phase. We intend to go out for design contract end of May of this
year. And then move forward through design through the end of December of this
year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What is the general scope of the design currently to be bid out?
MS. WADE: Mr. Chair, the scope of the design includes the development of a parking facility
that would accommodate in excess of 300 parking stalls to provide space for special
events within that Wailuku municipal parking lot and a community facility, such as a
community center on the Vineyard Street side of the parking facility. And I would be
happy to provide you additional details on that as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The community center is a low a priority for me. It’s more about
County administrative offices that can utilize the services surrounding like the banks,
financial institutions and whatnot. That is something the Council has been telling the
departments, the MRA for 20 years on this project. If you folks are not gonna open
ears, you’re gonna find funding shut down really fast. Questions, Mr. Carroll?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I might have missed that but how many parking spaces are
we talking about?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The proposal or currently?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Currently?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Currently, I believe, Ms. Wade said 210 about

--

MS. WADE: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --approximately.
MS. WADE: Yes, correct, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And then the project is looking at 300.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Okay. And I’d really, like you said, I’d really like to see a map
of that, the area we’re talking about.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll put that request in, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, thank you. Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, yeah, we were hesitant to provide a map to the Council because of
information that would have contained regarding some of the locations that were
identified and we have not started negotiations with current owners yet. So, they
might be kind of surprised to find out that we’re identifying their parcels.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t have a issue if you send it to us under work product and a request
to keep it confidential because it’s still in a work product status. And therefore, it is
subject to change and therefore we prefer not share all details because it’s very fluid
and it may be a totally different final draft. But, I think, Mr. Ueoka, and our attorneys
can defend us. We’re going under work product as a, ‘cause it’s unofficial. It’s not
proposal. It is a option or an idea towards a proposal is how the Chair would look at
it.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chair. We will work with your Staff and Corporation
Counsel to make sure that it’s delivered appropriately.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And so, this satellite parking, is it to be a
temporary permanent thing that we all like to talk about? What is it going to be after
this full buildout has occurred? Will it continue to be for parking? Are you slating it
for something else in particular?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Wade?
MS. WADE: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I would expect that we would design and build it as
temporary parking. As the new parking facility comes online and our hope and
expectation is that economic revitalization will begin to occur then within the
immediate vicinity and additional parking may indeed be necessary. But we’ll have
the opportunity as that time to make the decision whether or not a permanent parking
development would be appropriate. And we would certainly come back to you before
that would happen.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. And a little bit more detail on the
circulator route you described. Is that you’re looking for an outside shuttle service to
provide that or would that be added into our bus route thing? Or what’s the
discussions there?
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Wade?
MS. WADE:
Mr. Chair, thank you.
We would certainly anticipate first seeking a
collaboration with our Department of Transportation to the extent possible. Right
now, the County and State government campuses have approximately 215-stall
parking deficit based on the office occupancy. So, we would first like to target County
and State employees off-site parking and running a shuttle service potentially just
from War Memorial depending on the availability of the parking stalls. But because
the district even before we start creating additional stalls is in a position of parking
deficit, we’d like to do our best to see if there are other outlying sources that we could
utilize to develop employee parking. We know customers want to park as close to the
front door of their destination as possible. Employees who are planning to leave their
car for a longer period of time, we’re hoping to identify locations and to change some
behavior to create opportunities so they could park a little further away. And the
circulator satellite transit route of some kind would be an incentive to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
Thank you, Chair.

Sure.

Okay, well, thank you, for looking at the options.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Department. We’re done with Department of
Management, Members.
MR. CHING: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let’s bring Fire down.

DEPARTMENT OF FIRE AND PUBIC SAFETY
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, if you don’t mind, we can start on Page 768, with the Equipment
purchase in Department of Finance’s Countywide Equipment.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Seven-six-eight?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Seven-six-eight.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, 768, and they responded, a separate response from the other equipment,
let’s see here, to make sure it was...
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CHAIR HOKAMA: BD-5, Members.
MR. BAZ: BD-5.
CHAIR HOKAMA: BD-5, BF-1.
MR. BAZ: Yeah, BD-5, but dated April 15th, and this only has the Department of Fire and
Public Safety there. So that has the details and the maintenance logs.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay.
BD-5 is April 15th, Members, 2016, under the heading of
Department of Fire and Public Safety. Okay, Chief, why don’t you start off with your
first request under the Equipment.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair, good afternoon. Good afternoon, Members. We have two
items on there. One is a ladder truck for our Wailea District and a pumper for
Kahului. Both totals up to $2.5 million. And up to this point, we have spent $57,000
on repairs to Wailea’s ladder truck and it has been down for just about 9 months
throughout the calendar year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. How old is the truck, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: It is a 2002.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Two thousand two, okay. Okay, we got it, you got 39,000 miles, 3,800
engine hours. And then from this report, your issue with the ladder is from 2014, is
that correct, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And the manufacturer is Pierce, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And they could not in almost two years find a way to address your
Department’s issue with the retraction? Or have they been able to resolve the issue
with the truck?
MR. MURRAY: We are able to fix it and then within a few weeks just up to about two months
then it breaks again.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Same issue?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, same issue.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So that would be a manufacturer default?
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MR. MURRAY: I don’t know.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Did we try and put in a claim to the manufacturer for faulty construction
of our equipment?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we have. It comes out through their investigation that it’s not.
time a vehicle of this weight tends to break down more often than not.

Over

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, but, Chief, you know, I can see if you talking about the chassis, the
transmission, the engine, but this is the retractable ladder.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, we also been having steering problems with that one too.
problems as well as front suspension, multiple issues.

Steering

CHAIR HOKAMA: Your proposed new vehicle that you’re requesting from us, are you going
back to Pierce?
MR. MURRAY: We don’t know. It goes out to a bidding process.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause I would hate to get another lemon.
MR. MURRAY: Well, we were doing well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You were good for what ten years?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You hinted at my question was can we avoid going to Pierce again?
And, you know, if we have a, I don’t know what the procurement process is, but if we
have a piece of equipment that breaks down frequently and can’t be fixed I would like
to think we could avoid going back to the same manufacturer. And if we can’t then
the procurement process is broken.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I think, we were also looking at creating, through the County, away from
the State statute, Mr. White, regarding debarment, to consider a County ordinance
that within the County itself we can pretty much, with appropriate cause and
justification, legally black ball bad entities from doing work with the County.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
truck?

And, Chief, do we have similar challenges with the Lahaina ladder

MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do. And like I mentioned earlier these type of special apparatus is
the heaviest of its kind out in the field. And the wear and tear on those things, it’s
hard to say how long, usually that’s why we come in at the ten-year mark because
that’s what the history has shown, not just throughout our Department, but through
-

78

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 21, 2016

other departments as well. From the apparatus of the different companies that I’ve
seen, Pierce does an excellent job for the most part. I mean, I cannot explain what
happens to these ladders, but, I know, that weight is a huge issue to as it responds on
a daily basis.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But weight is an engineering issue, and if they’re not engineering it
properly, and not manufacturing it properly, then we’re ending up with the problem.
And what other companies are there besides Pierce?
MR. MURRAY: Oh, I couldn’t name ‘em all. There gotta be about 60 companies out there.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Sixty?
CHAIR HOKAMA: So one of the things that, I think, we should be looking at is how all the
departments write their specs because at one time for certain type of vehicles of this
County they wrote the specs specifically so that only one manufacturer could produce
the specs for this one vehicle. I was gonna try and see if with Mr. King who can
ensure that the specs are written so that unless you get a minimum of, whatever is a
fair amount of minimum bidders, they gotta rebid. We won’t fund.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You can start with...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Because I won’t be held up.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Start the specs by saying a ladder that works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: With my hands and my pockets empty because one vendor has that
hammer over us. I’m not gonna put this County in that position.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The other question I had was I realize we’re replacing, when they
replaced the Wailea truck and I was hoping that we would find that something could
be repaired on the Wailea truck so that it could be placed possibly in Kahului because,
you know, we have big buildings in Wailea and Lahaina and Kaanapali. We also have
some big buildings in Kahului. Very wide buildings and it seems to me that a ladder
truck is probably appropriate to assign to Kahului or Wailuku at this point. Well no
room in the Wailuku Station, but so I kinda support you moving ahead. But I’d like to
think that we can end up with a backup ladder truck in Kahului that could actually
cover Kahului, if needed. But, if we can’t get a ladder to work then poho.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’ll find somebody else that can build it for us.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Maybe we should turn the ladder apparatus to over HC&S and have
their shop guys work on it. I bet they could get it going.
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MR. MURRAY: I’m sure they could, but then it wouldn’t fit the criteria of NFPA,
understand your concern. We have the concern and if I may speak bit
bidding process and the specs. It’s wide open. The specs are wide open.
proprietary verbiage in any of that spec. The spec went from 30 pages to
and for a ladder truck 210 pages.

so. And I
about the
There’s no
160 pages

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Is the Lahaina truck a Pierce truck?
MR. MURRAY: The new one?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Yes. We haven’t had problems thus far. Historically, in all departments, they
have issues from about ten years on or higher usage sometimes from five years on
with ladder trucks. So, it’s not uncommon to have these types of issues. I mean, our
guys work closely with the manufacturer to make sure they can get everything back
up and running. I cannot answer the question of why it breaks.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: But nine months is a...
MR. MURRAY: Nine months off line, yeah, that’s terrible. We utilized.. .we tried to refurb the
Lahaina ladder that was replaced. We utilized that, that one broke down as well. So,
we were using an engine and that one broke down as well. So, I mean, prior to 2008,
we had no backup that was running. But we have a handful of those now and we are
looking into keeping those two ladder trucks as backups for situations like this. But I
appreciate your comment about having one in Kahului. That was always the intent
since 1981, but funding never allowed it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, with the big box stores and other

--

MR. MURRAY: I agree.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --really big buildings it’s a little bit of a challenge. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Our.. .your mechanic... heavy mechanics, your technicians, don’t service
up the, your ladder truck, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, they do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, ‘cause here I am looking at August 2012, Brian Fitzgerald, Pierce
Tech, will advise when tech can be on Maui. And then the estimate time is one month
later, September. So, you folks wait for the tech from the manufacturer for one month
before anything is done to the vehicle?
MR. MURRAY: In some cases our people can’t touch it because they’re not certified to do
that, especially with a ladder truck because of its specialty. They have to have a
skilled technician that comes in and certifies the repair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, questions, sir? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, thank you, Chief. I understand
your frustrations. I’m sure you understand ours. You said it was 3,800 hours is on
that truck?
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just reading it off their report, Mr. Couch. This is on their submittal to
us in response to BD-5, BF-1, Page 1, Report Criteria. You will see, on the date, on
the left, 12/14/2013, Fire Vehicle MFD163-L14, Labor Report.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I see, where it’s got the mileage and the...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Engine hours.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, there’s 3,800 hours and you said we got this in 2011?
MR. MURRAY: Two thousand and two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Two thousand and two, sorry, yeah. So, if you do the math
that’s basically, you know, giving 8 hours a day, that’s only 475 days’ worth of
operations from this thing. That’s an awful lot of expense for a little over a year’s
worth of operation. And, I know, you spread it out over 10 years, et cetera.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I mean, itjust...that’s real frustrating.
MR. MURRAY: I understand, but it is a specialty piece of equipment that we try not to run
as much so that we don’t have this issues.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
actually had to use the ladder?

So when you run it, I mean, how often have you

MR. MURRAY: Well tons of times. Did you remember the Kahana fire where the fitness room
burnt up next to the condominium? We had two of ‘em there. And, I know, there was
a comment made when the fire alarm went off over here, the ladder truck was sitting
on High Street. So, it does respond to major occupancy fires based on the district and
which one is the closest.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And this isn’t one that you take out to medical calls or
anything like that? You just leave it unless it’s...
MR. MURRAY: For the most part we don’t, but if we have to we will. If we’re en route from
one place to another they go to a medical call. And usually because the other
company is out.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s not a lot of hours on a truck. Alright, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No further.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, we’re on Department’s request for equipment.
regarding the ladder truck request. Any questions, sir?

This is

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thank you..
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Chief, why don’t you give us comment on the pumper, please?
MR. MURRAY: Alright, thank you, Chair. Our Engine 10, which is located in Kahului Fire
Station, is a 2004, and it has 78,000 miles. This is one of our vehicles that does
majority of the second in. In other words, back up to all other companies, Central,
Upcountry, Southside, Wailuku. So, it moves quite a bit. It serves quite an area of
population as well. We came in for this last year as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, any questions, sir, on the pumper request?
Mr. Couch, any questions, sir?

Thank you.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, any questions regarding this for Kahului?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yes, Chief, what’s the mileage on the...
MR. MURRAY: Seventy-eight thousand.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Seventy-eight thousand?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is that.. .that doesn’t seem like a lot of mileage.
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MR. MURRAY:
high.

It doesn’t for the average private owner, but for a fire truck that’s actually

COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: What is the average for a fire truck for it to be, you know, I
guess, in
--

MR. MURRAY: Ready to replace.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --the medium of, nationwide.
MR. MURRAY: Anywhere between 30,000 and 60,000 miles.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
standards? Is that a...

Thirty and 60?

And that’s based off of what kind of

MR. MURRAY: Normally, it’s just a use standard, engine hours, pumping, what have you.
It’s all dependent.
There’s a wide range through the National Fire Protection
Association, but it just fit our criteria, and it is one of the most highly used apparatus
in our Department.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Is the pumper truck?
MR. MURRAY: Is that one specifically, Engine 10.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh, that specific one.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chief, when you say that’s your, I guess, the word would be primary
equipment, that is your number one pumper that goes out on most alarms first? Or,
you would like at something closest to the call out area? So, if it’s in, let’s say,
Waiehu, Wailuku would respond first?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Then Kahului would be the backup?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. That’s exactly how it works.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you send the Wailuku pumper first?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, Wailuku would take care of their, in district first based on the call, and if
there’s anything that our CAD would say another engine is required, or a rescue, or
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HAZMAT, or a Battalion Chief, then it would come up on the alert through dispatch
and that would be running as well as a backup.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Is there any relationship between engine hours and pump hours,
Chief? Again, you’re the professionals, I just asking if there is any relationship
between pump hours and engine hours. I don’t know that’s why.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, there is. Engine hours is the total running time that the engine runs.
Pump hours is only hours that the pump actually runs, but the engine runs the
pump.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, the pump is not necessary... is only engaged when you need to
have water force through the system?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, is when we pressurize the system.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Pressurize the hose, right? Okay. Okay. It appears your pumps last
pretty good, Chief. I don’t see much things from the pump itself. So that hasn’t been
an issue for your Department?
MR. MURRAY: No, because we do...
CHAIR HOKAMA: In general compared to other issues?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, the pumps used to be an issue. Eight years ago, we made it a priority
to maintain those more than just periodically. And actually that’s where the big cost
of maintenance is normally, but we haven’t had that issue.
And then about
three-and-a-half years ago, we’ve changed the specs to the pump to utilize the pump
that is less problematic and fits the criteria of our operation.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. I appreciate that information you’ve sent to us, so
thank you.
MR. MURRAY: You’re welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Carroll, questions on the pumper, sir? Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
ladder truck.

Not the pumper, but I wanted to go back to the Wailea

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let me just ask if there’s anything

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --on the pumper. Mr. White, anything on the pumper?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
pumper?

Chief, I’m sorry.

I know, you said it, but what is the age of the

MR. MURRAY: The pumper is a 2004.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, so 12.
MR. MURRAY: So, 12 years.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Under the fire needs assessment report, which is the most recent one,
it says that 46 percent of all fire department engines and pumpers were at least
15 years old.
MR. MURRAY: In some cases.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well it’s 46 percent of the cases, so.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, they’re not in Hawaii though.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, but there are a lot of places that are.. .we have a whole lot of
folks living on the coast on both sides of the country, so. Okay. I don’t really have a
question. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Mr. Guzman, any questions on the pumper, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. Ms. Crivello, question on the ladder?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. So right now your Wailea Fire Station ladder truck is
down? Do I understand that, it’s you can’t use it for any kind of response
--

MR. MURRAY: I believe last week

--

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --to utilize the ladder?
MR. MURRAY:

--

it just went back to Wailea.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So it’s operable?
MR. MURRAY: It’s operable today, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. But you had it down for the last nine months?
MR. MURRAY: Off and on, total of nine months.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, so, supposing that these fundings get approved, and
then so you have basically almost a year before you get your specs all fulfilled and you
get your truck. So you’re crossing your fingers that this ladder truck is gonna be able
to sustain itself for another year or be operable for another year?
MR. MURRAY: That’s exactly...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: The reason I ask this is because you mentioned something
that, I think, Mr. White, was who asked if we could utilize some mechanics outside,
like HC&S, or what have you. And you mentioned that it, because of the
--

MR. MURRAY: Certification.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: --national fire certification.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So, how does that differ if it’s just inoperable and can’t
utilize it and meeting certification? I mean, why can’t we try and utilize somebody
outside who maybe have the expertise?
MR. MURRAY: To be honest, I believe, that we have the best fire apparatus mechanics here
on island. There’s rarely anybody that could fix fire apparatus. We contract items out
if possible if we can’t do it ourselves.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, so, we’ve been trying to do.. .we’ve had them trained. And we wanna do
those things in-house. The things that we cannot do or become backed up or
long-standing issues then we contract those out. We’ll contract out a regular vehicle
as opposed to a fire apparatus before...
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Right, I can, you know, applaud your mechanics with the
work that they do. But, for instance, you talked about training. So, if you have a new
equipment, do you send your mechanics out there to that particular manufacturer to
get properly trained to
--

MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CR1VELLO: --be able to maintain and repair?
MR. MURRAY: So, couple of the things that we do specific to our mechanics is they are part
of the acquisition team. So, they are there at the buildout of the apparatus, the specs
buildout, and when they receive it. So part of the contract for that is that training is
provided for our personnel that will be assigned to that apparatus as well as the
mechanics.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see.
MR. MURRAY: So, they’re very well aware of what they’re getting before we get it.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MURRAY: You’re welcome.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions on the ladder request, ladder equipment
request? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Am I reading this, the reports correctly that your
total repairs on the ladder truck during the period covered by these reports is 50, it
looks like about $58,000?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. And then are our mechanics certified on Pierce?
MR. MURRAY:
They’re certified on the components because none of the parts are
proprietary, meaning that all companies have access to those specific parts of the
drive train, the motor. The only specifics that are to Pierce will be very few items on
the truck.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I guess, what’s got to frustrate you is that even though the repairs only
cost 57,000 on a piece of machinery that’s over a million dollars in value, it’s still
down for 9 months.
MR. MURRAY: Right because we had to wait for parts from the manufacturer, which is in
Wisconsin. And also what we’re not calculating is the amount of man hours that is
put into these vehicles that could also be added to the cost.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So that’s not in here? I thought that was one of the columns.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, in the details of the logs, it looks like many of them have a small
amount for labor or parts, dollar amounts, but many of them are also, I think, they
didn’t put in an actual amount in there. They’re zeroes, so yeah, I believe, this is a low
estimate.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, that’s fair to say. Okay.
same would hold true with the other one?

Okay, thank you.

MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And the reports, it’s not all that helpful.
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MR. MURRAY: We lost our staff that assist the mechanic shop with inputting all of these
things. We are currently.. .we have a job offer out for that. So, we’ll be able to keep
better track through our maintenance connection, so what we’re trying to keep all of
that information so that we can be more helpful.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, any other questions? If not, let’s go to the next project.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, so the first CIP project here under Department of Fire and Public Safety
is on Page 774, and this is for the Countywide Fuel Tank Replacements. They have
one request for 2017 at Pukoo Station.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Chief any comments, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: I would believe that the picture explains it all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chief, this 105,000, the way I’m reading some of your verbiage, all of
this is for Pukoo, 105, and this is, so only one station will have, what is it removal and
installation of tanks?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Ms. Crivello, questions on this one?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
Thank you.

No, you’ve got the Lanai salt air, so, yeah. Tells the story.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Are you looking at new products regarding protection of the tank
because of as our esteemed member from the island states she understands the salt
impact on equipment?
MR. MURRAY: I’m going to let Fire Services Officer Taomoto answer that question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
MR. TAOMOTO: Hi, Mr. Chair. Yeah, so there is, there are different products. They’re steel
tanks and they are concrete tanks that are available.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So tell us what is existing and with the money what are you going to
replace it, please?
MR. TAOMOTO: I haven’t got to that point, a decision as to steel or concrete. But leaning
towards concrete because of the salt air in Pukoo.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And that would still be better than stainless steel?
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MR. TAOMOTO: Yeah, I’m not familiar with the stainless steel if it is available. I need to
check with our Fire Prevention Bureau whether it’s approved by Code. But, I know,
steel and concrete is what’s available.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And, you know, I understand, you know, for us, we are aware of
unique circumstances as it relates to Pukoo. It may not be the most advantageous
site for the Department. One it’s not our land, it’s State of Hawaii, right?
MR. TAOMOTO: That’s correct, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We’re in a, what would Corps of Engineers call it, a flood zone?
MR. TAOMOTO: It is in a inundation zone.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Tsunami... inundation zone.
MR. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, yeah, we have issues, yeah, with this site?
MR. TAOMOTO: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: That we know for decades. Ms. Crivello knows the issues with the site. Is
there a better site for us to do this to kind of resolve some of this other
--

MR. TAOMOTO: We are just...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --geographical issues that you face at Pukoo? So is this now a good time
for us to look at a secondary site for something that is better than the current site,
Chiefs? Because, I mean, if you gonna ask us to invest, it doesn’t make sense for us
to invest in a site that for future needs it can handle the future requirements of
Molokai on that end of the island. Chief?
MR. MURRAY: If I may Chair? Thank you for the opportunity. That is an excellent question
and that is something we’ve been milling around for years. We just most recently met
with Administration to talk about that specific location. The issue doesn’t just hold to
this fuel tank. It holds to the engine that is out there now that we are getting
replaced. It holds to the building that we occupy. So, we were in a process of
providing a spec per se for land process and station, and we were gonna reach out to
Councilmember Crivello, and ask her her thoughts ‘cause we wanted to also do a
public meeting to find out what their needs are, and maybe the residents there would
tell us where would be a good area that has water, that is possibly County land, or
what have you, and then we could pursue that. ‘Cause, I think, it is very necessary
due to the location and in both tsunami and hurricane inundation zones. So, it has
been talked about. It is on the radar. I mean, this is just one portion of our needs.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, thank you, Chief. We are happy to hear that you are looking down
the road because we already approved a replacement pumper, right
--

MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --for Pukoo? So, again, we are investing lots of money to your Department
for this area. And I am just happy to hear that you are looking at a potentially better
site than the current site, which, for me, doesn’t really work for us anymore.
MR. MURRAY: We agree.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, I’ll ask Ms. Crivello if she has any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, but comment. Thank you for looking into it because
even before I came on board, I’m going wow, inundation, hurricane. And flood, that
stream going right there.
MR. MURRAY: Flood too, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: That Pukoo river going down. So, it’s like how will you
respond? My question is does the land have to be at a.. .can it be more towards
Ualapue, or do you have to go from Pukoo out? Is there some sort of... it doesn’t
matter or is there something that do we have to take into consideration
--

MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --because when I look at County land, I think, it’s like
Ualapue. But, and, going out further. So, I’m wondering is there just have to be a cut
off to meet whatever insurance requirements or what have you? I’m not sure.
MR. MURRAY: We’re trying to do that analysis for site criteria and that is part of our
accreditation program. And historically we moved to places that people either rent us
for cheap or give us land. But through this data analysis we’ll find out exactly where
we actually need to be based on the call volume and all the data is there. So, we’re
working on that right now and that’s part of the presentation that we wanna do to you
before we reach out to the community because, of course, if there is land available
that is more affordable than the next then that might come into play as well. But
ultimately would be the location for the safety and response needs of that community.
So, we are definitely looking into that so that’s an excellent question.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay. Thank you, Chair. So call on me whenever we need
to, even to go mahaoi landowners. Call on me.
MR. MURRAY: ‘Cause we really tried that with some of the residents and asked them to do
it, but I don’t know if the urgency was the same for them, ‘cause I tried to have people
on Molokai ask the questions, instead of I coming in and ask the questions. But we’re
at the point where it needs to be...
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
community

We can facilitate.. .I’ll be happy to help you facilitate the

--

MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --advocacy that we need. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you. And, Chief, you should talk to Ms. Crivello, but people
like me would be open to potential land exchanges with the State or Federal
government if that’s something that for you to consider
--

MR. MURRAY: That is always...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --besides acquisition. You know, we’re happy to save. Say, the State get
this nice parcel, can you guys at least talk and see if an exchange or something make
sense for you guys, and get the land for the Department. I’m open to those things.
MR. MURRAY:
Chair.

We appreciate that.

That is always on our checklist as well.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch, questions? Mr. Carroll, questions on this project?
Mr. Guzman? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You know looking at this tank. I just... I get
concerned when I see this kind of deterioration with no apparent work done to make it
better. And I guess, Mr. Taomoto, do you have the ability to request that the folks that
are at the fire station maintain things like this? Because an extra coat of paint every
now and then might have kept it from being as corroded as it is.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
MR. MURRAY: They are required to wash it and keep it clean. In the past, we utilized people
to add a coat of paint, but now we’re at the point where through negotiations we are
not allowed to mandate that they do that. But they can maintain all of the items on
our property.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: You know, I’m not surprised to hear that you can’t tell ‘em what to do.
But, you know, that makes it really, really hard for guys like me to stomach
Rank-for-Rank Recall, which is a $2 million cost when we get no added service, no
added coverage, no added anything. And we can’t even take care of a tank that’s
rusting. We can’t ask them to do any maintenance. I’m really not happy to hear that
because it’s part of taking care of your own stuff. And, I’m sorry, but if our
negotiations and, I know, you’re frustrated with negotiations as well but if the
negotiations have gotten to that point where we can’t ask people to protect our assets,
and yet they’re asking us to bend over backwards and charge a whole bunch more
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money to the rest of the residents so they can have their Rank-for-Rank Recall, I
think, that’s a real shame and a shock. Thank you, Chair. I’m done.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Any other questions on this project? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. Please excuse my ignorance, but I wanna ask
this question. You know, Hoolehua is worse than Pukoo, right? The salt air, I don’t
care where you live in Hoolehua. And so when I was building my house I stayed up at
my son’s house, and then I said oh my gosh I going get eaten up with all the rust
before I know it. Of course, today my truck is just typical farm, fisherman truck. But
so I was told to put in a chip in my car engine or whatever. So, you guys would know
that better. And that was done, and it really gave me longevity for as far as, you know,
what have you, especially for the Hoolehua area. Is there such a thing that could add
on to something like this so it doesn’t... I don’t know?
MR. MURRAY: So, I’m fairly familiar with that item that you’re talking about. It’s a zinc chip
or an anode that they utilize usually through some type of low-grade electricity. We’re
unable to use it on something like this.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Just thought I’d ask.
MR. MURRAY: No, we talked about that but that would be make it explosive, so.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
explosive.

Okay, okay.

Just drive around my car with something

MR. MURRAY: No, no, in your case it’s not actually. It’s safe in your case. But, I agree, with
Mr. White. We do a lot of maintenance, but somehow this one just does not fit that.
But they do clean it. All of our stations, that’s part of their weekly duties, monthly
duties, to maintain everything that’s on our property, so.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’d like to make a comment in regards to that. Molokai, I
hate this term, but we’re quite unique. And I’ve had situation like that managing and
sometimes you’re not so specialized because you just have to make do to make sure
you take care of your community. So, I came in with the approach that guys sit down
with me, call your union, I wanna have a meeting. So that’s how we made sometimes
like ten-hour workday or you’re the leader man for this ‘cause you’re specialized to
this. And, oh, no, you’re not, yes you have your job. Could that kind of conversation
begin with your union people to sort of have this dialogue to say, you know what, we
need to have this maintained. It’s gonna cost us $105,000 and, you know, maybe
quarterly you can take a little extra step to... could that be arranged? I kind of during
that time I really stepped out of the box and, you know, did that because it’s a matter
of the uniqueness of the island that you’re going to make do with what you have, but
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you have to come together and work together to malama and to take care your
equipment or whatever you have ‘cause we don’t have all the resources, yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Right, I totally agree. We are currently in negotiations, again, that is a topic.
Not saying anything specific, but I don’t disagree with your thought process. I know,
that the other Chiefs feel the same way, and we’re gonna try our best to make sure
that that’s part of it. I mean, we always have taken care of our station whether it’s
paint, putting in something new, reroofing it. Not reroofing, but solving the leak
issues. We’ve all done some of that and try to have some pride in where are, right?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief, I hate to interrupt, but this is a discussion that I would prefer to go
to a specific standing committee. I would like us to go back to the CIP projects,
please, Members. I don’t dismiss what Ms. Crivello brings. I think, Mr. Carroll has
also shared how Hana, they kumpang with State National Parks and County
departments when we have landslides and other issues that challenges East Maui.
I’ve heard of your comments how the agencies work together for the common good,
Mr. Carroll. And, I think, Ms. Crivello, is asking for the same type of cooperation
between government agencies that at certain times it make sense to work together and
achieve the mission successfully. And that is why I would say if as an employer
representative we should be looking at, because we’ve done in the private sector that
each cost center if, can move on a specific memorandum of agreement for specific
situations, and both sides agree then I don’t see a problem, but that has to be a
mutual agreement by both parties agreeing and executing a understanding of what is
to be done. So, I think, Ms. Crivello brings a good option on how to approach things
in certain districts. But I would like us to try and move up because, Members, I’m
trying to have you deal with OCS by 6:00 so that you don’t have to return tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yes, sorry about that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, no, it was a good discussion, but we need to move on, please,
Members. Chief, next project?
MR. MURRAY: Alright next project you have before you is the Hoolehua Fire Station. And...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is not Hoolehua.
MR. MURRAY: Right now, I’ll turn it over to Chief Taomoto.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Taomoto, give us your comments, please.
MR. TAOMOTO: So, the Countywide Fire Facilities, we’re asking for 300,000, which was
intended for upgrading the apparatus bay floors with nonslip finish. Some of the
concrete is, you know, that really fine slippery finish type flooring, and we wanted to
improve that for slip and fall prevention. Some of the building renovations this would
be intended for is for structural components. At the Kahului fire facility the salt air
has kind of degraded the steel supports on the mechanic shop building. And we
would need that for some of that. The picture that you see is Hoolehua. And, yeah,
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that was a picture from last year. I overlooked upgrading any photos for this
particular program. But the description for the program includes the flooring as well
as building renovations and for renovations to house our Ocean Safety personnel.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The garage structure is a new structure, Chief?
MR. TAOMOTO: I’m sorry, could you repeat that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have language that says construction of a garage structure. So this is
brand new?
MR. TAOMOTO: Yeah, I overlooked that.
regarding Hoolehua.

That is regarding the fire facilities for last year

CHAIR HOKAMA: The nonslip floor finish is that.. .who’s going to do the application? Is it
in-house?
MR. TAOMOTO: No, that will have to go out to bid.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Why wouldn’t this be a maintenance request?
MR. TAOMOTO: In the past, we had included it in this Countywide facilities. It does include
more than one facility for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s fine. But why wouldn’t this be a maintenance request?
MR. TAOMOTO: I have no answer for that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know you not asking us for bond. You just asking us for cash. And, I
mean, you know, I mean if it’s a reasonable maintenance requirement on the
Department’s part, you know, the Committee has no issues with that. I just wanna
make sure that the request is in the right category. And I wanna make sure that we
understand capital is not maintenance.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. My understanding of this project was that it was an installation of a
new flooring finish for this facilities, not just like a regular repair and maintenance
activity of repainting or repairing activity.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Well, I mean, I know finishes, I did enough construction for big
landowners and everything else, so. So, you asking us that you’re going do a two-part
epoxy system kind of a coating on the floor, Chief? Is that what you’re asking us for?
MR. TAOMOTO: It is a epoxy type. I’m not sure if it’s one part or two parts.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So... okay well just give us the breakdown, please, Chief, of for each
component of the request. Mr. Carroll, questions on the Department’s proposal on
this project?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Just that overall their question about maintenance and I
hear steel coming rusty and things like that. I would strongly suggest that perhaps
maintenance programs need to be reviewed. Maalaea Harbor, when I had my boat
there, there’s old dry dock trailers that are made out of steel beams down there that
are 40 years old and they haven’t rusted ‘cause they’re taken care of. So, I think,
perhaps maintenance needs to be examined. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that comment. Your Chair will review the maintenance
budget requests of the Department. So, thank you for your comment. Mr. Couch?
Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: How many stations are we having to refinish the floors on?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
MR. TAOMOTO: There are two stations that need finishing right now and I need to assess
the other stations.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What are the two current stations, Chief, you feel have the top priority at
this time?
MR. TAOMOTO: Paia is one of ‘em and Kula was the other one that was brought up. But I
need to make assessments on, with the other stations in order to prioritize, which
ones needs to go first. But Paia does need to go first, but whichever, no order after
that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we would ask for your recommendations so we can place the proper
verbiage in the project sheets for you. And we rely on you to tell us which stations you
feel has the priority needs for the short-term versus long-term.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do any of the newer stations require the floor treatments? I can
understand Paia ‘cause it’s a pretty old station and they may have had that slick
finish. But I hope that we’re not building any new... or none of the newer stations have
this challenge.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Chief?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Do they?
-
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MR. TAOMOTO: Yes, I’m not aware of what the requirements are as to the finish, but the
new stations are all coming out with the new nonslip finish. And Chief Murray just
mentioned that it is a requirement to have a particular finish. I can’t recite it for you
exactly though, but it is, all the new stations are, like the last station was Kaunakakai.
They had nonslip finish for the flooring.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Any other questions, Members, on this project? Chief, you acid
wash your floor on a regular basis? Do they deal with HAZMAT materials, wear and
tear of tires, and barrels, hoses, issues and whatnot?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, Chair. We do cleaning on a daily basis and thoroughly once a week.
Acid wash, we’ve kind of gone away from that. Those things deteriorate the new
polymers that they utilize on those floors.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And I just bring it up ‘cause I don’t know you already had the
original construction deal with the etching of the flooring or not. So, again, I don’t
know what was the specs for those original flooring requirements. But I would say
half of, well maybe almost half of the Members, have some construction
understanding, either running projects or have done projects. So, we have a bit
understanding to support.. .understand your requests.
There being no further
questions on this one, next project.
MR. MURRAY: Okay, next project before you, we have the Lanai Fire Station Improvements
for an apparatus bay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. What is the general dimensions, Chief, you’re looking at for this
additional bay, please? Can you give us just, you know, an estimate? We not going
hold you, but just so we get a sense of the size.
MR. TAOMOTO: Well, Chair, we haven’t gone into design yet for the apparatus bay, so we
didn’t get to that point yet. But off the top of the head, there is a wild land vehicle, a
relief engine, and a utility pickup there. So, we’re looking it to be...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are you looking at one long bay that can house two pieces of equipment or
just one short bay that can only handle one piece of equipment? Again, I just asking
to get a sense of the project, please.
MS. TAOMOTO: Yeah, so just talking with Chief right now. But, yeah, probably just one bay
and two in tandem back to back.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right, right, right, yeah. Okay.
MR. TAOMOTO: And the engine is roughly about 33 feet. Wild land vehicle is probably like
20, 50, with room to spare...
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Sixty feet?
MR. TAOMOTO: Roughly. As a, you know, ball park. The exact figure will change in design.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So with this additional bay will there be any pieces of equipment that will
not be under a covered protection at the Lanai station? Or will all equipment be able
to be housed in a apparatus bay?
MR. TAOMOTO: Well that is the intent, yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I just need to be assured because if it’s not then I’m gonna ask you why
not because I would rather ask the Members to support something that takes care all
the equipment than just some of the equipment if we’re gonna invest ‘cause we paid
good money for all those pieces equipment to get to Lanai.
MR. TAOMOTO:
Oh, yeah, yeah, absolutely.
negotiations with the landowner.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
equipment ‘cause

That would come out in design and

Well so I just want you to know I’m open to you housing all

--

MR. TAOMOTO: Yeah, if we’re gonna build something...
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Ms. Crivello deal with Molokai salt. I deal with Lanai dirt. And our dirt
can eat anything.
MR. TAOMOTO: Yes, I was stationed there for three years.
talking about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So, you understand what I’m talking

I know exactly what you’re

--

MR. TAOMOTO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
island.

--about our iron sulfates and oxidizing the soil, it eats anything on our

MR. TAOMOTO: Right, yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: One thing I wanted to ask before I ask the Members for their questions,
you have acquisition. What kind of acquisition are you considering, please?
MR. TAOMOTO: Well that.. .it’s still in negotiations with the landowner. It’s ongoing. We...
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is the Department’s requirement regarding acquisition? Because we
own the land on the side, which is the traditional entry park, passive entry park that
the community uses for the churches bon dances, the open field play for our youth,
-
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exercise area for your firefighters. That’s our land. So, I’m just trying to understand
this acquisition component, please?
MR. TAOMOTO: Yeah, I don’t know the exact details to that, but I will have to check with the
County CIP Coordinator where the negotiations went. Pulama Lanai is... there was
discussion on to the rear as well as to the side, but we need, that is still in
negotiations and hasn’t been settled yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I’m open to the rear but just know that part of at the rear of the
current side of the current station, there is plans and that’s why you see utility poles
from Maui Electric, already earmarking where we have intended for the bypass road to
be built as a condition of zoning to the landowner. We haven’t agreed to changing that
proposed route. So, if you start looking at that site, Chief, make sure the building
does not impede, intrude, obstruct, the proposed road system that goes, bypasses the
city and goes around the city to get to the Koele Resort from Kaumalapau Highway.
MR. TAOMOTO: Okay. And that bypass is going to be built by the State or...
CHAIR HOKAMA: That is... right now it is a condition of zoning for the landowner that got
entitlement of project districts.
MR. TAOMOTO: Okay, so yeah, we can meet with your office as well as the County CIP
Coordinator regarding those issues.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, we just want you be aware of those factors before you settle on one
site.
MR. TAOMOTO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Members, any questions on this project? Mr. Carroll, Lanai
project? Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Just the acquisition sounds kind of strange.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Next project.
MR. MURRAY: The next project you have before you is at the Kahului Fire Station. It is for
an apparatus shelter at a cost of $440,000. This picture you have before you is where
the location would be.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So, Chief, the location is the open space with the white lines or is it with
the equipment is, that’s the site? Can you kind of...
MR. MURRAY: Right where the equipment is if you can see the Harley Davidson building in
orange.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. MURRAY: It will be just about parallel to that on our property.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So basically where the current equipment is currently being situated on
the photograph, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Or your yellow equipment pieces, apparatuses?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: In that area? Okay, what is the difference between a apparatus bay and
an apparatus shelter since you folks chose to use two different words for the projects?
MR. MURRAY: We wanted to be clear that this would be for our backups. Actually there
would be two areas of front line. One would be for hazardous materials utility truck
that you see to the right, the second to the right. And then the rescue truck that we
just got, the utility that was just replaced as well as the boat and the jet skis and
other equipment that can fit in that area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so you looking at something like what 60 by... 40 by 60, the shelter?
I just trying to get one sense of your size.
MR. MURRAY: We didn’t do the design yet but, I believe, it will be beyond 80 feet by 35, 40.
And it’s three-sided.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So this is more like a butler where you have the shell and then, you
know, you park your vehicles under the shell, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. Do you qualify like police for some of this type of equipment
under Homeland Defense Response or other type of funds, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: We have done that in the past, but it’s been years since we’ve attained grants
through those processes. We have been concentrating on the radio system that police
spoke about earlier. That’s where those funds have been going to because of the need
there.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But you think you could qualify potentially in maybe next cycle of
Federal applications to ask for some of those monies?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we try that every year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Does the State have any type of funds available for a response such
as your Department?
MR. MURRAY: The State, the normal grant that we try for on an annual basis is the
Department of Transportation’s Highway Safety grant. And we have been fortunate to
have that grant more often than not, but those funds are for speeding up our response
on the highways.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Guzman, sir, any questions on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Yeah, I believe, this was brought up last year, yeah. And then
we were talking about a temporary shelter and then at some point there was
discussion about the consolidated base area and whether it was going to be beneficial
for us to invest at the Kahului Station versus moving all the materials or building on
the new consolidated base area.
MR. MURRAY: Right that was a discussion. First, it was a temporary, thinking that the
consolidated base area would be coming up within the next few years. And then
seeing that that wasn’t happening right away, we put in for something more
permanent. And as it’s shown in the past, if we don’t think ahead we run out of space
with pretty much every project that we go through. So, in the future, we would like to
see at a consolidated base where our portion would be. Yeah, I think, that would work
out for us. But...
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So this would be more of a temporary shelter or are we talking
more permanent shelter?
MR. MURRAY: It will be a permanent shelter.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Permanent shelter?
MR. MURRAY: Permanent shelter.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: So, it’s a completely different concept than
MR. MURRAY: Completely different idea, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --you presented last budget?
MR. MURRAY: Right, I believe, it was two budgets ago.
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. When is the plans to, if we do build out, and
eventually go to a consolidated base area, how many, I mean, what is the projections
of that happening? And when we... are we going to abandon that area, the Kahului
Station?
MR. MURRAY: No, we would not abandon. Our goal and preliminary talks was that we
would receive 25 to 30 acres at that parcel, and then we would be doing an admin
building, a new mechanic shop. But the needs for storage and all of those, we could
convert these areas if need be. But the history has shown we continuously searching
for shelter. So, I believe, it would be a good investment.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN:
Okay, so, yeah, just in terms of my question, I just
didn’t.. .wasn’t sure whether we were going, you know, if we were to build it and then
abandon that area later on. It would be somewhat of a waste. But now that you’ve
told me that
--

MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: --I guess, the future plan is to keep the Kahului Station area.
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Even though we do build a consolidated base area.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we would have that in conjunction too. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Okay. Very good, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Guzman. So, Chief, does this type of structure we talking
about the shelter, if it’s butler-type building. And I’m assuming as part of your
construction component you can ask in your specs that, if need be, we can lift it and
move it to the new site and reconstruct there. I mean, that’s the beauty of the butlers,
supposed to be, if need be, it’s moveable. Like old the Quonset huts, the military
Quonset, but
--

MR. MURRAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --it was movable.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: ‘Cause that’s what I’m thinking is the advantage of this request, Chief,
that if need be for the new site you could actually rebuild that whole structure on the

-

MR. MURRAY: We could move it.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: --new site.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah, it provides some flexibility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
MR. MURRAY: Definitely.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have options, Chief, on that one. Mr. White, questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well, you know, my love for building shelters for equipment. And, you
know, this.. .you have an 18,000-square-foot building in Waikapu, which can shelter a
whole lot of stuff. And, I know, you probably have a whole of stuff in there. But
anyway, I don’t really have a question. I can’t support this. Just like the things that
raise your hackles, this is one of the ones that bothers me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well

--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --we appreciate your comments. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, I’m good. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And I’m going to put my committee hat
on, Chief Murray. Is this going to be outside the setback or ‘cause it looks pretty close
to the property line there?
MR. MURRAY: It will be outside of the setback.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Just wanted to make sure

--

MR. MURRAY: Oh, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --that’s been taken into account.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, the Chief is aware, I mean, you know, this more than likely is within
SMA area also. So, I mean the Chief, has
--

MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
--additional Federal governmental requirements to deal with also.
Mr. Carroll, questions for the Department on this project?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
Thank you, Chair.
Many years ago we had the Fire
Department over here and we did discuss about maintenance of the trucks, and one
thing was brought up that fire trucks aren’t like Rojac trucks, or anybody else. They
have a lot of gauges. They have a lot of things that are difficult to maintain, and
something like the Wailuku Fire Station where you can have the doors closed where
you have those trucks goes a long ways towards the necessary maintenance. A truck,
like for instance, Rojac’s
like that, they keep ‘em nice and everything, but they
don’t have all of that gauges and everything else on there. So, I would like to see all
that type of trucks if possible in an enclosure like Wailuku Station because it is
important to the maintenance. And again, that was something that was brought up
like 2003 or 2004, or something. But and that was the direction that they always said
they were going to try to go at that time to try to make sure that those trucks had the
protection. Of course, pickup trucks and things like that shouldn’t be a problem to
maintain them outside, it’s the bigger trucks, pumpers, and other ones like that that
need that, ladder trucks and what. So, I support anything that we can move towards
that would help in that area ‘cause we just can’t afford to have failures on fire trucks.
Thank you.
_____

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Okay. Any other questions you may ask on this
project, Members? Having none, I think, that is it, Chief. Is there... do you have
additional comments you wish to share, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Real quick. I know, there is a lot of talk about maintenance, and the need for
that to be done. And, I know, in one of our programs that we presented earlier we
talked about a BMR. And, I believe, that person would also help with all of our other
projects. So, thank you for that opportunity to bring that up.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Okay, thank you, Chief. We appreciate both of you assisting the
Committee this afternoon regarding our questions regarding your requests. So, thank
you very much. We’re gonna take a five
--

MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --a short recess subject to the call of the Chair and then we’ll bring up
OCS. Recess.
.(gavel)...
.

RECESS:
RECONVENE:

.

4:06 p.m.
4:17 p.m.

CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)... Okay, we shall bring this Committee meeting back to order
for April 21, 2016. Members, we will now review the budget request for the Office of
Council Services. It’s your Chair’s intent that we complete this this afternoon before
the public hearing to be conducted by Chairman White under the auspicious of the
Council. And when we complete the review of OCS that will complete the Committee’s
responsibilities for today and we will not be returning tonight. Okay, so, thank you
very much for the good work, Members for today. Mr. Baz, if you have any comments
we would ask that you share it with us at this time, please.
.

.

.
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DEPARTMENT OF OFFICE OF COUNCIL SERVICES
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, the County Council has two programs under, one we
discussed already, the Office of County Auditor. This one today we’re discussing is the
Office of Council Services, and the ancillary support of the County Council, and
salaries of the Members themselves. We’re starting on Page 147. We have the
Director of the Office of Council Services here, Mr. David Raatz.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz. Mr. Raatz, any opening comments, please.
MR. RAATZ: Yes, Mr. Chair. Thank you very much. Pleasure to be with you and the
Committee members this afternoon. Again, for the record, I am David Raatz, Director
of Council Services. I have with me this afternoon the supervisors of our three
sections, Jo-Ann Sato, our Supervising Committee Secretary; Chancy Hopper, our
Supervising Legislative Analyst; and Ross Izumigawa, the Supervisor of our
Administrative Support Section. The Office of Council Services provides staffing for
the Council’s Committees, and research and logistical support to all nine
Councilmembers, in the performance of their legislative duties. Our office structure of
21 full-time and 2 part-time employees, includes, again, 3 sections.
First the
Secretarial Section, which runs the committee meetings and manages committee
records. A Support Section and the employees in this section perform the office’s
business functions, which include Budget and Finance, payroll, travel, Human
Resources, procurement, facility maintenance, and an awry... array, excuse me, of
services including IT. And finally, our Research Section, which is composed of
legislative analysts and legislative attorneys, and these are the folks who have the
primary responsibility for drafting legislative documents for the Council. I would note,
again, the Council’s legislative powers include being the policymaker for the County of
Maui, and the enumerated powers in the Charter include the ability to hire special
counsel, and the ability to conduct audits of any County agency or program. So, the
budget request does include funding for these two areas of the Council’s authority,
even though, we recognize they’re not, the funds are tapped into every single year.
With respect to audits, in particular, I recognize that some have viewed that the Office
of the County Auditor, which has been fairly recently established by Charter
amendment, should perhaps conduct all the audits, but the OCA is an independent
agency even though for administrative purposes they’re attached to the Legislative
Branch. And the Council cannot require the Auditor to conduct any particular audit.
So, the Council, as it’s recently done sometimes determines that it must initiate its
own audit. So, wanted to mention why we do have a funding request for audits
despite OCA being in existence. I do have a handout, I believe, that the Members have
received, a memo dated April 20th, and I can briefly go over some of the components,
Mr. Chair. On Page 1, under Proposed Fiscal Year 2017 Budget, we have a breakdown
of our A, B, and C Accounts. And just as a general overview, the OCS budget request
is for approximately $5.6 million, which is about a 2.7 percent increase over the
adopted Fiscal Year 2016 Budget. The A Account for salaries includes a 0.8 percent
increase over the adopted Fiscal Year 2016 Budget, which incorporates a cost of
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$22,898, for a 1.6 percent increase in salaries for all positions, except Director,
Supervising Legislative Analyst, and legislative attorneys. Under the B Account, the
proposed budget includes a 7 percent increase over the adopted the FY 16 Budget.
This is for operations and this incorporates the cost of $100,000 to allow all
Committees to mail documents to the public and approximately $44,000 in increased
contractual costs for television coverage.
Third and finally, the C Account for
equipment. The proposed budget includes a 41.3 percent increase over the adopted
Fiscal Year ‘16 Budget. This is a high percentage but the dollar cost is relatively low.
This is largely attributable to costs of $8,500 for printer and computer purchases and
repairs. Moving on to our Goals and Objectives, which the Members can see at
Page 152 of the Mayor’s Proposed Budget book. Our first goal is to undertake the
County’s legislative function in an efficient, excuse me, effective, efficient, and legally
proper manner. And we’ve looked at the metrics for the Council and its committees
and, I think, it’s fair to say by every measure this Council and its committees have
been very productive in both the quantity and quality of the legislation. And some of
the statistics are included in the attached infographic. We’re actually at a record pace
for the numbers of bills and resolutions that have been adopted in this calendar year.
The committee reports that were issued in Calendar Year 2015 exceeded the amount
of any committee reports in over a decade. And so, this is largely attributable to the
fact that as we know Maui County continues to grow and face unprecedented
challenges for both current residents and future generations. So, in light of the heavy
workload of policymaking, I would note the Council and its committees actually
conduct more meetings and are in session longer than their counterparts compared to
any other County Council in the State of Hawaii. Goal No. 2 for OCS is to retain,
develop and recruit a capable, motivated and diverse workforce. Thanks to the
Council’s support of OCS, we developed a well-qualified, high-functioning team of
professionals. I would note retention is an area of possible concern as annual salary
increases have not been approved for the current Council term, which is a different
practice than most other prior Council terms. And the salary scale in the County
Code has remained static for the last few years. I think, it’s also important to note,
under the Charter, the Council has sole and complete discretion on determining OCS
salaries.
OCS employees are excluded from civil service and from collective
bargaining. And just a final note on statute, excuse me, on salaries, we noted the
discussion earlier this Budget session regarding a State statute that may mandate a
certain level of salaries in the Office of the Mayor, and we researched Hawaii Revised
Statutes, and we don’t believe that statute or any other similar statute applies to OCS
employees. So, the Council is not bound in any way. Finally, I would note our
expansion budget request, on Page 155, in the Mayor’s Proposed Budget, includes the
previously mentioned appropriations for committee mailers and for television coverage.
And the adopted Fiscal Year 16 Budget numbers have been run by our support section
staff and that’s the other handout that you were provided today that provides an
analysis in where we are right now and how it compares to our Fiscal Year ‘17
proposal. So with that, Mr. Chair, I’d be happy to answer any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much. Mr. Carroll, questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. Has the Department considered perhaps
having a part-time position in Hana for when the Council Services person is not there
for sickness or for other reasons? Is there anything in the budget that might cover
that?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
Department.

I don’t know if it’s a question for Mr. Hokama or for the

CHAIR HOKAMA: You know I would say from our perspective, Mr. Carroll, that would be a,
is a determination this Committee can make to the full Council, a recommendation
regarding staffing. Again, my position has been that, you know, unless we can justify
the work load for increased positions, I have a hard time.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Since we are doing the services for Hana, Molokai, and Lanai,
there are times when we don’t send somebody to Hana, but it’s really hard to go over
there and determine what the community really wants to speak on. We might not
think that well it’s nothing to do with Hana. But community members also are
concerned with other things in Maui County. So, I hate to see it when we don’t have it
over there. And we have agreed to do it, to service these three areas. So, I’d like to see
some contingency that doesn’t require Council Services or my office sending somebody
driving for four hours just to handle the meetings. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. I think, one of the new technology breakthroughs that we
could consider, but I would need to work with Clerks since they have some jurisdiction
over this Chambers is maybe potentially in the future because, you know, video
testimony is something that, as your Chair understands is something we offer but we
are not required to offer. Again depending on funding availability, but, I think, there’s
new technology that if you can find ways to use programs such as Skype, which is a
pretty much inexpensive or free program software, might be, that might be one way we
can get additional, the ways of receiving people’s testimony, on the day of the meeting.
But right now, Mr. Carroll, my problem is not enough financial resources to pay for all
of the requests. So, I’m open to your recommendations on how we can provide this
service.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman? Okay, anything on Category A, which is Salaries, Members?
You can go down and I would ask you to look at the Details. So, Mr. Raatz, I’m trying
to figure out on Page 4-4, you still have a Legislative Analyst expansion that is yet to
be filled. My understanding is you were given some flexibility for a secretary or
analyst. The way I’m viewing it is nothing has moved forward, so can you give us a
-
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status report what are you looking to fill this position for, what is your anticipated
hiring date, and what is the issues that have obstructed you from currently filling the
position? And for this year is all of this A amount as part of your savings for the
Department?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. On the question of the open position in the office, OCS
has been in recruitment for a Legislative Analyst. And we’re in the final stages of the
recruitment. Frankly, we wanted to pause for a moment to allow the Budget session
to play out. But we have three finalists waiting in the wings and we’ve explained to
them our timing issues and we may be soon moving forward with allowing the
Councilmembers to conduct interviews and have the Council Chair recommend a
finalist for the Council’s consideration.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well the way I understand the structure downstairs, I would ask
that, I would prefer a secretary. The way I’m looking at the workload on my
Committee Staff, and other committee staff, I think, that is an area of weakness,
especially in what we are requesting the responsibilities of the secretary component to
take over from support. So, yeah, I’m gonna make adjustments in A definitely.
Mr. Guzman, any questions in the A Category? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, for the, your Premium Pay, on Details 4-8, Page 155,
for the Program, you note a $5,000 increase from 130,000 to 135,000, for anticipated
increase. What is your overtime, I guess, year-to-date? And what is your anticipated
overtime total for this fiscal?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?

MR. RAATZ: Thank you. Yes, for Fiscal Year ‘16, we did receive a budgeted allocation of
$130,000 for Premium Pay. Through March 31, we spent about $45,000. We do
estimate that we’ll spend another approximately $75,000 before the end of the fiscal
year. So, our estimated cost for this fiscal year in Premium Pay would be about
$120,000.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I’m just curious is it more your analysts that are with the
overtime or do you have a breakdown where most of your overtime is spent?
MR. RAATZ: We do have a breakdown.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Or positions?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And, Councilmember, I’m sorry, I don’t have the break
down at finger tips, I don’t believe. But it does cut across all three sections. It tends
to ebb and flow with various projects. So, it’s.. .we try to make predictions as best we
-
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can. But it’s the type of thing that we can’t totally control based on our deadline
driven environment as a legislative body.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, alright, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Couch, any questions, sir?
B Account, Members.

Mr. Carroll, questions?

Okay,

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Actually, Mr. Chair? I thought of one.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Sure, Mr. Couch, you may ask one question.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I just noticed that, you know, all these, all other departments
throughout the County, some that we just had to do, all got increases in their wages.
But I noticed we’re not doing any this year. Is there a particular reason for that?
MR. RAATZ: I’m sorry, Councilmember. The increases in what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Salary.
MR. RAATZ: Well, it’s a policy decision for the County Council. OCS is unique in that regard
compared to other County agencies. And the proposal before you right now does
incorporate a 1.6 percent increase for most positions that were.. .we’ve saved some
money based on vacancies we’ve had for a period of time and people coming in at
different pay scales. But if you look at each position the request before you is a
1.6 percent increase, except for my position and the Supervising Legislative Analyst
and legislative attorneys.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well I am looking on Details and that I’m reading it wrong, but
I don’t see an increase.
MR. RAATZ: That’s, I believe, it’s listed under Salary Adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No I’m talking on page, for instance 4-4, Position Title, Plus or
Minus Over FY 2016 Adopted Amount, nothing, and then ‘17 amount is the same
as.. .it looks like the ‘16 amount is for the Legislative Analyst, first one on the list. Am
I reading that wrong?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you’re reading it right. What you need, what we need to remember,
Members, is that employees of our branch are not provided increases tied to collective
bargaining agreements.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I understand that. I just, I had asked about why there was
no increase and then I was told that everybody’s got a 1.6 percent increase, and I don’t
see that reflected here. That’s...
CHAIR HOKAMA: The only adjustment you would see is on 4-8, Mr. Couch.
-
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, that’s the 22,898 figure I had referenced earlier
under Salary Adjustments, Sub-object Code 5250.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Since Mr. Couch did bring up a good comment or and
question, Mr. Raatz, we are aware that you have placed the EA salaries as part of the
A Account, which is appropriate. Have... I’m making an assumption you’ve placed all
the fringes in Countywide for this positions or employees?
Is that a good
understanding of the Committee?
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
MR. BAZ: Thank you. All employees of the Office of Council Services as well as the
Councilmembers’ salaries are paid for with General Funds and those fringe benefit
costs are included in the Finance Department’s Countywide costs.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
account

So we are part of... it’s already included in the Countywide Fringes

--

MR. BAZ: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --in Finance?
MR. BAZ: They’re not included in the Office of Council Services budget.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, I just wanted to make sure that we had our fringes squared away.
Okay, thank you very much for that. Members, questions on Category B at this time?
Mr. Guzman?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No, questions. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No, thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Mr. Carroll? Okay, and then, again, Members, if you do have
a question, please let the Chair know. I’m happy to have you express it. Page 4-7,
Mr. Raatz? Not 4-7, where is the one I’m looking for regarding Computer Services.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair, I believe, that might be 4-10.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four dash ten. Oh, I tell you, you guys are great. You guys channeling
well today. This $10,500 for a new computer consulting contract, are you looking to
extend the current contract or are you planning to go out for a new bid, Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
year ago.

At this body’s request, we did go out for bid about a

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. RAATZ: So this would be an extension.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Has the service of the vendor improved?
MR. RAATZ: I believe that the service has been adequate this fiscal year. We did take into
consideration the concerns from this body during the last budget session and have
been closely monitoring the work.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, at his time you are willing to recommend extension and an
increase in the contract for this consultant?
MR. RAATZ: Yes, Mr. Chair, that is our proposal.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So from 65,800 to 76,300, is this a reasonable increase for one year?
MR. RAATZ: Mr. Chair, yes. We do believe it’s reasonable and we do appreciate the
continuing concern and we’ll be very careful before we execute anything further.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate your comments on that. I’m trying to get a grip too on
your 901041B, Mr. Raatz, you asking us for 114,000, for printing and binding. Can
you give us some additional comments and, I think, you mentioned some mailers,
but?
MR. RAATZ: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair, for pointing this out. And this actually is probably
one of the main differences in the proposed budget before you compared to recent
fiscal years for OCS. We’ve noted the recent practice of this Committee mailing flyers
to members of the public reporting on its legislative work. And from what we can tell
those have been well received and because our responsibility is to provide the same
level of services to all Councilmembers and all committees, we’re suggesting that
consideration be given to have funding so that all of the standing committees can
engage in similar practices.

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate that philosophy, but we all know that each committee
has different responsibilities. But the Members can have their discussion on this
request. So, thank you for presenting it to the Committee. I’m kinda curious on your
intentions on the Professional Services, Mr. Raatz, so if you could give us some
comment on your intentions regarding the budget request for Professional Services?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Four dash ten, Members.
MR. RAATZ: This is a figure that represents our estimate of ongoing costs for cable cast
coverage of Council meetings and committee meetings based on the recently executed
contract with our provider, Akaku.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And with this... it’s a contract, right, Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: That’s correct, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So with this contract, this additional monies is for the same level of
service, additional level of service, can you give us a comment, please?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you. It’s the same level of service. This Council has actually more
committees than has often been the case in the past. As I previously mentioned, this
has been a very productive Council that meets frequently, there are very few meetings
on the calendar that don’t actually happen. So, the level of service is the same but the
quantity of service based on the Council’s workload seems to be increasing a little.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Akaku, what is the minimum charge per meeting or by contract?
MR. RAATZ: It’s approximately $770.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Minimum?
MR. RAATZ: That’s correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And what would that entail, up to the first 60 minutes of air time?
MR. RAATZ: That includes a regular meeting slot of three hours and then it would go beyond
that, I believe, there’s extra charges.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, three hours?
MR. RAATZ: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: For this. So let’s say like our Policy Committee the other week met for
what 20 minutes, doesn’t matter, we still pay the 770?
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MR. RAATZ: That’s correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for that. Members, questions? I’ve asked questions, but
if you have? Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you for bringing that up.
When is that contract gonna get renewed? And, you know, I have to, Mr. Chair, I have
to disclose that I am a board member of Akaku, but I gotta tell you that’s for a
20-minute meeting, $770, is just not right, I don’t think. So, when is that contract
gonna be up so we can renegotiate that? Maybe have a minimum of an hour, hour
and a half maybe. And I don’t know because we do have quite frequently we have
meetings that will only last an hour and, I think, we need to fix that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you. Yes, we did put the contract out for bid, I think, last summer. And
this was the winning bid and...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But what were the specs? The specs sounds like it was a
three-hour meeting minimum on the meetings. Could we make the specs a little bit
different? Hour and a half, hour with an extra ‘cause I can imagine that we probably
would even if we went to a three-hour meeting or three-and-a-half-hour meeting, we
would probably end up paying less overall over the course of the year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair and Councilmember Couch. Your point is well taken. It
has, the terms of the contract, have provided some practical limitations and dilemmas
for us. In fact, just today we had a situation with the Special Committee on County
Governance. And the resolution that established that body said that each of the
Special Committee’s meetings shall be cable cast. So, and this was gonna be an
off-site meeting ‘cause it was two floors up in the Mayor’s Office but that was
considered an off-site just as if we were to have a meeting on Lanai or in Hana or
anywhere else, and that meant the minimum charge was gonna be $1,770. And we
knew that the meeting was gonna be very brief because the body was only allowed to
receive a report from a temporary investigated group and not have any deliberations
take place. So what we ended up doing is just using our own tripod that OCS owns
and we filmed the meeting and we’re gonna provide it to Akaku for later showing. It’s
a way of saving money, but it was a dilemma because, you know, the public has come
to expect gavel-to-gavel coverage. But if it gets too expensive it’s hard to justify it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I guess, that doesn’t answer my question. My question is can
we either on the new contract or renegotiate this contract to have a lower minimum?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, Councilmember Couch, I think, everything is
subject to negotiation and we will take a look at that and see what we can do.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair. I have another one. You brought up
the Computer Services. How often is that contract done? That’s a three-year contract,
I believe?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Well every contract technically is just for one year,
subject to renewal. And I’m not sure if Mr. Izumigawa has the information on the
HPSI contract.
MR. IZUMIGAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, Councilmember for the question. Generally, our
contracts when go out for procurement, as Mr. Raatz had mentioned, we sign a
contract for one year. The standard practice that we normally employ is that contracts
can be amended or extended for an additional four years beyond that. So technically
we do sign contracts for one year at a time. And if we feel that service is satisfaction
and we wanna continue with the present contract terms and prices then that contract
is open for amendment or extension for one additional year up to, I should say, up to
four additional years. Your questions regarding HPSI or even the Akaku contract is
along these lines as well. So, again, we have contracted one year and they are up for
amendment on the same terms, on the same costs, without having to re-procure the
contract again for up to four additional years.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, then well then that goes against what shows here that
it’s going to be an increase of $10,500. So, that’s not the same costs.
MR. IZUMIGAWA: No, the contract, I guess, what you’re asking about is, I believe on
Sub-object Code 6110 for Computer Services.
COUNCILMEMEER COUCH: Correct.
MR. IZUMIGAWA:
That does include the contract for HPSI.
It also includes other
computer-related services when we go out and procure the contract, many times on
what it is based on is the number of estimated hours that we expect to incur for that
coming contract year. So the price is based on the number of hours that we expect. If
the number of hours increases then the cost can increase. If the number of in-person
visits increase then cost can increase as well because those terms are in the contract
based on per visit or number of hours that we incur for the contract.
MR. RAATZ: If I could, Mr. Chair, to provide some additional information. Our Legislative
Analyst, who is the liaison with Akaku, just reminded me that the increased charge
includes a new monthly equipment charge of $2,500.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That’s on the Akaku one?
MR. RAATZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
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MR. RAATZ: And also I misspoke, the standard meeting time is four hours, not three hours.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: The standard meeting time?
MR. RAATZ: Which means we can go up to four hours at the standard rate.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So, it’s a four hour.
MR. RAATZ: One minute to four hours.
COUNCILMEMEER COUCH: Four-hour minimum sounds like you’re saying?
MR. RAATZ: Or four-hour maximum depending on how you look at it, I guess.
envision a regular meeting is up to four hours.

They

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, at the same rate?
MR. RAATZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, yeah, that’s, we definitely need to rework that, I would
think. I don’t know how long we’ve ever had a four-hour meeting, but we’re paying for
a four-hour meeting every time. Okay, we have to look into that. But back to the
Computer Services, you mentioned an in-person onsite charge and all of these folks
are over on Oahu. And we have very competent and very good, you know, companies
over here. Are we getting charged, I mean, we, in essence we really are getting charged
for a flight over here as well, right?
MR. IZUMIGAWA: That is part of the terms of the contract. The last time it went out for
procurement we did receive some interest from Maui-based companies as well. When
we considered all the factors that were in the request for proposals and we looked at,
you know, the cost involved per their responses to the request for proposals, our
present vendor did win out the contract again. They were actually, amongst other
factors, they actually charged less... a lower charge then the Maui-based companies.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And you’ve done some analysis after that saying with
these add-ons with our hours and theirs, it would still come out lower to have the
folks from Oahu come over here?
MR. IZUMIGAWA: That is correct, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Mr. White?

Thank you.

Mr. Carroll, questions?

-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions. I just point out that a little over half of the additional
amount for the Akaku coverage is just for the ninth meeting or the ninth committee
meeting instead of eight that we’ve had in the past.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Nothing right now, Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Give us some comment, please, this, it’s interesting, 4-10,
additional data service, about $14,000 more. Can you give us some comment on that
6152, please, Mr. Raatz? What is driving this need for funding for data service?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This is for cellular services for both phones and tablets
that Councilmembers use in their legislative work primarily.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This is not taken out of their office accounts? ‘Cause they pick the phone
they wanna use. They pick the tablet that they wanna use. They pick what type of
service or data requirements they may need because, I mean, I’m assuming,
Mr. Couch has a different level of requirements ‘cause of his knowledge and familiarity
versus someone like me who, I would say, is on the low end of the spectrum. I know
some, but I don’t know a lot, which gets me into trouble a lot. So, I’m trying to
understand why this would be part of Council Services, and not be placed in the
Members’ account?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We have had a policy for at least a couple of years now,
I think, and it’s reflected in approved budgets of providing Councilmembers with a
basic level of service when it comes to cellular data plans and other ways of taking
advantage of mobile tools and other technology tools. And then anything beyond the
base level that each Councilmember wants to use would be taken from that
Councilmember’s office funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, let me tell you what, I have a hard time with that one,
Mr. Raatz. Depending upon when each of us may have entered office and depending
what type of government plan was available to us at that time, I still have through
Verizon under the County’s government plan an unlimited usage plan, okay. They
keep telling me I gotta get off it. They’re not gonna honor it, but I made Federal
lawyers tell me that that’s not accurate. And so, I’ve kept my unlimited plan at
minimum price. But if you’re a new subscriber you’re not gonna get that option
anymore as I understand it. So, my minimum service may be totally different from the
Member that just got in office this year or last year. So, where’s the fairness in all of
us having the same basic level because we don’t have the same level of service
dependent, again, my plan is 18 years old.
MR. RAATZ: That’s certainly a fair point, Mr. Chair. Obviously, it’s ultimately a policy
decision. We wanted to put forward the policy at least for consideration especially
with increased use of mobile tools and tablets with the Granicus system that each
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Member was taking care of and could perform their basic legislative functions as well
their counterparts without having to dip into office funds.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well

--

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: --I would hope we would go back and allow the Members to make certain
choices. You know, the last time we replaced the Members’ laptops they decided to
choose a model with no CD-ROM drive. That’s not what I wanted, but that’s what I
got. Why are they buying equipment that I don’t want?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: They don’t make it the other way.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well then that should have been told and say what is your other option
and what would you like as your tool of need then, you know. So, for me, I don’t have
a problem allowing the Members and put it in their account enough money to make
those Member choices unless there is a benefit. And, the Chair, will say from a
Council policy perspective, we will use brand 1BC versus A23 because dah, dah, dah,
dah. And we get it. I’m okay with that. But unless there is a policy that tells me
(inaudible)... I now like Apple. You like Droid, okay. It’s just what we comfortable
with as individual users of technology, okay. So, I would rather have that choice and
have it deducted out of my budget because that was my choice. I’m not impeding or
impacting the eight other Members. You guys make your own choice and pay it out of
your own budget. You wanna buy a $10,000 equipment, hey, fine. You know, the
Chair signs off, fine. I wanna spend $10 for it, he signs off, that’s fine too. I live with
it. I just trying to make it so that Members will take responsibility for their choices.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Wait Mr. Couch had his hand up first.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: It’s my understanding that at least on the tablets that the data,
it’s unlimited data and the little MiFi thing that we all hook up to the tablets. Is that
correct?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: Yes, that is correct, Councilmember.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, and I’m not sure as individuals we could get that.
think, it’s more of a bulk kind of thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I got it.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Well you got it because you had.. .1 had the same from before
too. But I don’t have, my cell phone is not County cell phone. I don’t use it for
County business, so.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Got it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But you have your cell phone or two. A lot of Members have
two cell phones, so. It’s one of those situations where I know, for cell phones, it’s
gonna be tough for the unlimited data. But, I think, for the tablets, I think, it’s a bulk
purchase kind of thing.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I think, the reason we did it.. .we chose to do it this
way is primarily because of the implementation of Granicus and wanting to make it as
simple as possible for Members as we move into that process that they choose, like I’ve
chosen the kupuna font capable version. My sister next door has still works with the
small one. And so the data plans that go along with that make those pieces of
equipment capable for us to take anywhere with us. And now that we’re on Granicus
all the binders that we’ve been dealing with are all in here for all future meetings. So,
we need to have a data plan in order to make this a portable easy-to-use binder. So, I
think, it’s appropriate for the reason we chose to do it out of Council Services instead
of the Members’ accounts is because this is something we’re kind of forcing on
everybody and we wanted to make a little easier. And we can certainly look at
changing it around but, I think, we’ve made a good move with moving to Granicus.
And it’s taking some getting used to. But, I think, this is the, a good way to go for us
at this point.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments. I guess, we’ll just call it the GI tablet,
government issue. Mr. Raatz, we noticed also excess mileage reimbursement. You’ve
kind of increased.. .bumped it up a nice amount. What’s happening?
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
coming fiscal year.

That’s based on our actual projected cost for this

CHAIR HOKAMA: So, it goes up 30 percent?
MR. RAATZ: Well, if we’re talking about the travel category in general that doesn’t...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Again, I just looking at your excess mileage, 6254

--

MR. RAATZ: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --from 30,000 to 41,300. That’s more than one-third. So, I’m just trying
to figure out what is driving this? And, you know, if you have a good explanation, you
know, we understand. I’m just trying to figure out what is driving this big increase.
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MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I’d like to ask our Supervising Legislative Analyst,
Ms. Hopper, to answer that please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
MS. HOPPER: Mr. Chair, I believe, that category we calculate a certain amount based on
what’s allowable. The Councilmembers must reside in districts. They have to travel in
here. I think, traditionally, in the past couple budget years, the calculated amount
has been reduced by Council. So, this is to allow every Councilmember to drive from
their place into the County. It had been reduced in past years and we’re just at this
time restoring it to what the actual calculation is, if every Councilmember should
claim those mileage costs.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You don’t have it broken down under your revised budget. But
how much have you spent so far, year-to-date? You basing it on actuals or just
projected distances between the estimated distance between the Members’ place of
dwelling to the County building?
MR. RAATZ: It’s ultimately based on projected assuming that each Member does the
maximum allowable driving and request the maximum level of reimbursement. And
this is the type of thing where we do try to be cautious. We don’t want to come up
empty in the fiscal year with the understanding that the Legislative Branch can’t find
money and propose budget amendments during the fiscal year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We can do amendments within our own budget area. So, if we need to we
will do it just like we do it for the departments. What is the, our current rate of
reimbursement and who is setting that rate, Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: That’s an IRS set figure. I don’t have the current figure right in front of me. We
could provide that to the Committee.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. But we’re at the current rate? We’re not behind the schedule,
right? We’re reimbursing our people at the appropriate cost?
MR. RAATZ: That’s correct, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, very good. I understand audit. Yes, we have authority to audit any
operations or functions or subject within the County of Maui. So, I would say I
understand it. On Pages 4-13 to 20, on the individual Members B Accounts, it seems
you went on a flat 2.5 percent increase. What do you base that on?
MR. RAATZ: That was a proposal taken into account what we anticipated might be fair in
terms of what other offices within the County would be receiving based on collective
bargaining agreements and other factors.
We wanted to make sure that
Councilmembers can maintain competitive balance in terms of compensating their
own staff and running their office operations in a professional manner.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well this Chair doesn’t really care about collective bargaining
agreements for the Leg Branch.
Four-twenty-one, my favorite vendor, ShoreTel
Conference Phones, didn’t we just give you money for this year to secure phones? I
thought we gave you guys money for this current fiscal year. What happened to that
request, Mr. Raatz?
MR. RAATZ: That’s correct, Mr. Chair. For the office phones, those have all been provided to
everyone in the Legislative Branch. We’re...
CHAIR HOKAMA: But didn’t we give you four conference phones also, Mr. Raatz, as part of
the ‘16 budget? I thought we did. Correct me if I’m wrong on that, Mr. Raatz.
MR. RAATZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My notes indicate that we don’t already have that
funding and, we believe, that there’s a need for this in the Fiscal Year ‘17 Budget.
MR. IZUMIGAWA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Izumigawa?
MR. IZUMIGAWA: If I may expand, please. The Council did allocate some monies for the
ShoreTel phones for the District Offices and for the Council Chambers. ITSD has yet
to roll out the ShoreTel phones to the District Offices. When they did roll out the
ShoreTel phones to the Council Chambers, ITSD did graciously provide the conference
phone that we are presently using. So, at this time, we are not sure if there is a need
for Council Services to purchase these phones or if ITSD will be providing these
phones for us pending on what their use will be and what the need will be at that
time. So at this time we have not utilized those funds
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. IZUMIGAWA: --not knowing how the rollout will continue in Fiscal ‘17. We have asked
for the funding to be in Fiscal ‘17 should the need occur that we need to buy these
phones.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, we are very clear. You did not use the money this year that
was provided. The vendor assisted with this phone, which I can tell you at the Special
Council meeting worked like hell. Okay. We had to cancel that meeting or stop that
meeting ‘cause we couldn’t get appropriate communications. So, I am one unhappy
camper with ShoreTel and whoever is that other bloody vendor that we have contract
with. Members, any questions on Category C, Equipment? Mr. Carroll? Mr. Couch?
Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman? I wanted to ask on 4-21, Mr. Raatz, I just trying to get a
understanding, bottom of the page, you have Leased Equipment for me. Can you tell
me what equipment is this ‘cause I don’t know what it is?
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MR. RAATZ: I’ll ask Mr. Izumigawa to handle that, please.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Izumigawa, can you give me some comment, please, on
this $3,000 copier that’s being under my account Category C?
MR. IZUMIGAWA: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for the question. What you see here regarding the,
there being titled Leased Equipment is a Budget Office designation. My understanding
is when a Councilmember has set aside monies to be used in the C Account, for
reasons that are not clear to us, the Budget Office has defined this as leased
equipment. So, I would defer this designation to the Budget Office if they could
provide some explanation. We are not entirely clear on why this is so, but to our
knowledge this is merely a designation that they have put on for any monies that a
Councilmember has put under the C Account.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. Baz, do you have any comment you could share? Oh, I’m
sorry, I didn’t notice Mr. Baz was not here with us at this time. Okay, yes, I made
sure that my office had a C Account because I didn’t know what my needs for
equipment requirements would be during a fiscal year. So, I budgeted accordingly
under A, B, C Accounts. Again, it is something I put for flexibility in case needed and
if it’s not needed it’s not gonna be spent. Cause I put it under C. I’m not gonna move
it B. I’m not gonna move it to A. So, that’s my explanation to you, Members, on how I
approached my own office account. You all have your own choices to make with your
office and the Chair will leave those decisions to each Member’s decisions. Are there
any questions under C Account for Office of Council Services, Members? Having none,
Mr. Raatz, any other comments you wish to share regarding your proposal to us?
MR. RAATZ: Not at this time, Mr. Chair. I’d be happy to answer any questions that may
come later. Thank you very much for your time.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. All this new equipment this is for your support... our support staff
or is this for any Member needs under one, two, three, four of your priority of
equipment?
MR. RAATZ: I think, it’s primarily for the secretarial section.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, so the computer, the printers?
MR. RAATZ: Certainly the printers.
hiring a new staff person.

And, I think, the computer may be in anticipation of

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Izumigawa?
MR. IZUMIGAWA: Mr. Chair, thank you for the question. Included with this category we
foresee with the advancement of technology for the possible need of including video
conferencing capabilities in the conference room for Councilmembers to utilize. And
so, some of this equipment is with that in mind.
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, well I would ask you to at least touch base with the Clerk, our
County Clerk as the Members may be aware he has a beautiful RD screen from the
State for video conferencing that doesn’t work. So hoorah for new equipment or a
program that doesn’t work for its purpose? But that wasn’t County funds and County
expenditure. So, we’ll leave that to the State for their defense. Okay, Members, if you
have no further questions for the Office of Council Services, Mr. Raatz, and his staff,
we are done for the day. We will not return tonight. However, let me help you prepare
for tomorrow. We will review Special Purpose Revenues. We’ll start with Police, Parks,
DEM, Public Works, followed by Housing and Human Concerns, and then we’ll finish
up with OED and Finance Department. The Staff has e-mailed you a schedule
regarding the department and related funds. The worksheets regarding RPT has been
e-mailed to Members, and proposals are due at noon. We’ll see how things go.. .what
is today, Thursday? Yeah, you know what... gosh, I can’t believe I’m being, gonna say
this, I’ll give you until 1:30 tomorrow instead of twelve. I would like to give you more,
but you have to understand the Staff and I need time to review it because I’m gonna
present Monday the Chair’s draft, which means the eight of you please enjoy your
weekend because the Staff and I will be here going through your recommendations in
making the Chair’s proposal. But before we adjourn I’d like to share a few things.
Again, once we complete most of our requirements here, Mr. Baz, who is not here, has
informed your Chair that he has been requested by departments for us to consider in
May and early June, although the fiscal year ends on June 30th, at least a half dozen
budget amendments for the Fiscal Year ‘16 Budget, which does not make me a happy
Chairman, but your Chair will do what we need.., and propose to you what we need to
do to ensure the continued operations of our County services to the people of Maui
County. So saying that, I’m just giving you advance notice that it is going to be a long
march to June 30th of this year, so be prepared, Members. Other than that, thank you
for your patience and your participation. Mr. Couch, questions?
COUNCILMEMEER COUCH: We are coming back at six o’clock for

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White’s jurisdiction.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --Mr. White’s jurisdiction.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Not my jurisdiction. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. Correct. All right.
CHAIR HOKAMA:
(gavel)...

Yeah.

ACTION:

ADJOURN:

This Committee is done for the day.

DEFER pending further discussion

5:19 p.m.
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We are adjourned.
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APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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Transcribed by: Delfey Fernandez
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